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Corporate Information
AEER
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DIRECTORS
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Mr. Szeto Wai Sun
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Hui Yik Bun
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kwan Pak

MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman)
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph

MEMBERS OF REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE
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Corporate Information
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Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman)
Mr. Yip Mow Lum

Mr. Hui Yik Bun

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun
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MEMBERS OF ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Hui Yik Bun (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Yun Kong

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph
Ms. Li Wan Mei

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 31119

Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman

KY1-1205

Cayman lIslands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

10th Floor and 23rd Floor, Wing On House
71 Des Voeux Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Appleby Global Services (Cayman) Limited
71 Fort Street, PO Box 500

George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman lIslands
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Corporate Information
AREHR

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

(and with effect from 15 August 2022 onwards, at 17th Floor,
Far East Finance Centre, No. 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
Chong Hing Bank Limited

CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Hua Xia Bank Co., Limited Hong Kong Branch

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITOR

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the

Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

WEBSITE

https://www.bsgroup.com.hk
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Major Accomplishments

RER
2021

—_E-—F

April

4R

> The Group was invited by NASDAQ to
appear on the NASDAQ huge screen
in Times Square, New York, becoming
the first Hong Kong-funded securities
company to land on the screen. It gained
international fame
AEEEZBEMNMERRIABEG KA
BRRBRLEREMOFRESMETER KR
%m%ﬁ%ﬁ EEBER

May

5H

>

BIESTREERRAF | —F

The Group gives preferential treatment
to all employees. It enabled employees
to subscribe five lots iBond 2021 with no
deposit and interest fees to reward them
for their tireless work. Employees drive
the Group to achieve great results despite
adverse market conditions
AEEEFEBET UREs 2FER
#E5F iBond 2021 - AR E B T T EF 45 & b
I HHAEERFTERIEE

—/ ZZFFH

Bright Smart placed its advertisement on the huge
screen on the exterior wall of NASDAQ, a landmark
of the financial centre of the US, which enhanced its
international reputation
BAREEEZRHERPOMWE — WETERZ SN
BEARE RAXNEEONRBEMNEE

The Group’s Chairman Mr. Yip Mow Lum (left) always
cares about and cherishes employees, and often
rewards employees in different ways
AEBEREEXMEE(LD)—RABELNEEREET:
ARRFAXEEET

rE



Major Accomplishments

RERL

June

67

July
7R

Bright Smart Securities Hong Kong
Squash Championships 2021 is the largest
squash competition in Hong Kong, whose
title sponsor is the Group and which is
organised by Hong Kong Squash and
financially supported by Leisure & Cultural
Services Department, to support the
sustainable development of the sports
industry in Hong Kong and to build a
healthy society
REAEETVBREDEBERBE TN K
BRXICEBEEHN RS BHEBER
RIZE2021] - IR BRAREMEIRE
EOUXKBEEREREBERE BOIRY
RELE

The Group actively integrated Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) into its
business and vision to pursue sustainable
development. The Group was awarded Gold
Prize under the ESG Rising Star and Silver
Prize under Special Awards (Criteria set by
Fund Managers) at the ESG Achievement
Awards 2020 organised by the Institute of
ESG & Benchmark (IESGB). It is a double
affirmation of the Group’s contribution to
sustainable development
AEBBEHRERERE HEREEELBRA
INAREBRBRS  BAGIFUAIFE
BR - ASEREEINBELERGEE
BEEDS(ESGB)EWRMIRE R
12 B IR K Bt K 882020 - RE[IRIE
HERCEBRLENREISEN[FRAXR
R(AESLERTE ZEN)IRZENRMIEKX
B2 O REAKSERARBEZRRMELER
WEESE

A large poster was hung on the outer wall of Hong Kong
Squash Centre
BEERD OB KE S EER

Mr. Hui Yik Bun, The Group’s Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer, accepted the awards on behalf
of the Group
AEERTEETRITHRARTENEERARTEEBER
#I8
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Major Accomplishments

KRERL

BIESTREERRAF | —F

August

8H

>

BS Securities (Baobao) and BS Futures
(Doudou), the one-stop investment
trading apps developed based on the
Group’s forward-looking vision of financial
technology, won an honour again.
The apps was honoured as “Excellent
Securities and Futures Trading Apps”
at “Elite Enterprise Awards” organised
by Oriental Daily. It fully proves that the
Group is highly recognised in the field of
innovative financial technology

AEEREYSRMRNEBAIER BT
MEN-—UARERHAPP — BRI FHE
EIRBTHEZ T |AAPHRERIKRE -
E(RABF)BBRNBECERRZ|RE
BIEEESFNPERFAppRE ] FHH
EAREEAFERBRPEESERA

The Group’s Chairman Mr. Yip Mow Lum
has been actively involved in charity for
many years and spared no effort to help
those in need in society. He donated
HK$500,000 to support Caritas Hong Kong
in the name of Yip Mow Lum Charity Fund
and held a cheque presentation ceremony
at the 2021 Caritas Charity TV Show at
TVB City, showing love through practical
actions
AEBFRFEXMEESFREBR HEK
EEH TEKRNEPHSEEFTEMA
T - EXFUIEXMNEBESESIZERR/E
I+ETRNIXHEEEAE  WETVBER
WERPH2021[AEEE LI RERGET
TEREERX BRERTHLEED

—/ FER

The Group’s Chairman Mr. Yip Mow Lum is forward-
looking and leads a professional team to independently
develop BS Securities (Baobao) and BS Futures
(Doudou), which have won numerous awards and are
well recognised by the industry
AEEFFEXMRELERIEERER  XEQ A —REXE
GETHERSIBSEEINRTIHE[ES | AAP - #
HER O AXREARRAR

Chairman Mr. Yip Mow Lum is philanthropic-minded.
He donated HK$500,000 to Caritas Hong Kong in 2021.
Mr. Hui Yik Bun (first from the left), Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer, attended the cheque
presentation ceremony

REEBEFRFEXMEELZ TN - 2021F B EREH
REO0B T ' HATTE S RITHAHFEN EE(ER
REFEEEEEES



Major Accomplishments

RERL

The Group co-hosted a forum on new
opportunities in global investments in 2021
to share future IPO deployment and stock
selection strategies and analyse global
economic trends to help investors deploy
investment strategies for the second half of
the year and seize opportunities
AEEBMESEINIRKKET K BEHRE
2021) " PERRHREZE - FENERSE
B WHOMBRREBEES  BIREEINE
THFHRERE - BIGEH

September

9H

>

In order to meet the different needs
of customers, the Group is committed
to exploring various financial products
for investors to trade, which has been
repeatedly recognised by the industry. The
Group was awarded the Top 20 Partner
— Over One Billion CME Group Micro
Contracts Traded by Chicago Mercantile
Exchange (CME), demonstrating the
Group’s solid strength in the industry
RRREFPTRFE  AEERHNEERRE
TREMMBREERS  BEEANETE -
AEBEREZNTERZSHACEEM A
%% [Top 20 Partner — Over One Billion CME
Group Micro Contracts Traded ) A2 »
REBEXERNEEE SN

The forum attracted a large number of investors to
sign up, and had a full house. Many viewers actively
asked investment questions to guest speakers, and the
atmosphere was warm

WERS| AR EERZ2E  BEEER  TOHEH
RERHEERMEZEERE  HSRFHR

Ms. Wang Wenhui (left), client development and sales
manager for Retail Business at CME, presented the
award to Mr. Hui Yik Bun, Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer (right)
CHEMTEEBEFEREFHELCBIRAENECE) -
BERETRTESRITRARTEW L)
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Major Accomplishments

KRERL

BIESTREERRAF | —F

October

104

>

The Group co-hosted the forum on the
fourth quarter new opportunities in global
investments in 2021, which was well
received. It shared global investment
deployment, IPO investment strategies,
and analysed global economic trends for
investors

REESE I FHFRIKRENRBRE
2021 BER BRI R—RREENZFRIR
KREEE - RIRE R SRR BEED

November

11A

>

The Group published the Market Outlook
Survey Report 2022 that contains the
analysis of the latest trends and popular
sectors of the Hong Kong stock market
in 2022 at its media sharing session.
The attendees include most of the well-
known media agencies in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The survey report was
widely reported by the media

REBEFEESZE A 20229 K AIHE
REFAERE] oM —FEREHE
AREPITERE AEREETERED A
BEFRIBLE  BRADTEREBREZRE

—/ ZZFFH

Mr. Hui Yik Bun (middle), Chief Executive Officer of the
Group and Mr. Chan Wai Ming (left), senior manager,
acted as the keynote speakers of the forum and shared
investment strategies and stock market prospects

REBTREHFEWEEP RaREERERLEE
(L) BERRREITHRS  DEZRERBLRTA

=

The survey is mainly aimed at the public’s views on the
trends of the Hong Kong stock market in the fourth
quarter of 2021 and the outlook of the market for 2022.
Chik Yiu Fai, Head of the Research Department at the
Group, released the survey report to media agencies
RARATEHHTRY S~ FFNZTBERESR
TEZFAMAENEEL  AEEA R LEEREE
EERMEEREATAETRE



Major Accomplishments
RER

December
12A
> The Group sponsored a three-day event,
Interesting and Fun Expo, organised by the
Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society
at AsiaWorld-Expo. Bright Smart, as one
of the sponsors of the event, set up a large
booth to explain financial literacy to the
public and distribute lucky bags for the
Year of the Tiger
REBREFEDSREES ST N[ HE
LmBFUINEE | EBH—E=BRREMNE
BEERT - BAERIDEE 22— F
&j(%fm; 0 T % 58 A1 145 0 ot B K Ms. Yip Wing Yan, Jacquelyn (middle), the Assistant to
REFBR - BARE Chairman of the Group, attended the opening ceremony
and received the SDG World Record Certificate and
certificate of appreciation from the organiser

TRPEERBPDAF)HFEREE  BREMEMNR
X SDGH R 42 8% & & K B H R
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Major Accomplishments
RER

2l

_————

January

1A

> The Group has been striving for progress
and adhering to the “client-oriented and
service-first” philosophy. It has become
famous in the industry for its professional,
reliable and serious services. The Group
stood out in 2022 and was granted Most
Popular Brokerage Brand Award by TVB
Weekly
REB—BEHFKEDT  BTFIUERE IR
BE-INES  BEIZXAE RERE
MRGHZRER  NFERAREMmML - 8
BETVB Weekly & 8 [ ARF @]\ i vik Bun (middle), Executive Director and Chief

NS Executive Officer, attended the presentation ceremony
and received the award on behalf of the Group
BITESRTBRBHTENAERIRERAEEBLFEE
118 & B AR

> The Group distributed bonuses to
all employees in recognition of their
dedication and hard work. Outstanding
employees will receive a year-end bonus
and a monthly bonus up to 37 months.
In addition, the Group spent a large
sum of money inviting employees to visit
Disneyland and handed out lai see packets
filled with cash and shopping coupons,
hoping to help employees achieve a
balance between their busy work and life
REBAENESARIKELL - AEH  The Group has seen stellar performance regardless of
2EE T i FHE - ERIZK  adversity and employees make undeniable contributions.
RO R T R A R AT T e tod bonuses and la s6s
BIESTMEA - B RREERENMUHK packets to employees as a reward
SwETHEHRLTRE  WHHEXREKX ASEERETYE (XE- 8B —FEIEEY
FEREYES 2SS TETEST T\iﬁg : I}Eﬁﬂiiﬁ%;ﬁﬁ%d\ﬁﬁ(&_:)Fﬂ%ﬁl?)ﬁ%ﬂ?%ﬁ[l}x
YRR % o BB HERATE T ER

BARFETHMEEERAF | —T——/ ——FFH 11



Major Accomplishments

RERL

12

February

2R

>

Following the donations in 2020 and 2021,
Yip Mow Lum Charity Fund established
by Chairman Mr. Yip Mow Lum donated
HK$10 million to the Hospital Authority in
2022 to assist the fight against COVID-19.
It donated a total of HK$30 million in the
three straight years to encourage and
thank all front-line and back-office medical
workers for their undaunted commitment
to their jobs and selfless dedication to the
fight against the pandemic
AEEFEERXMEFEIBOIERMNES
E¢ |6 —_T—T . —T-—F1% S5FH
RIBHE1,000B T TEERMEIME - EE
=F 5 HBH3,0008 - SR BKH— AT
mREHOHEZEASERER TR
HEFEA AELFERMOBEBEENE
E=F

The Group received the full support
of the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited to host a lecture called
“Comprehensive Review of the Prospects
of Hong Kong Stocks and Futures
Investment in 2022”, which analysed the
trends and prospects of Hong Kong’s
stock market and futures market and US
stock market in 2022 for investors, helping
them win and seize the opportunity
REEBEBRIM 2 X #FF 0225 %
IR AEREMIZHEB)BEEIHE
HEARKREEZN_S-__FKBRT - #
EMBUARERTSELHNR  BH—RK
BEREYE  HBhEEHK

Yip Mow Lum Charity Fund donated another HK$10
million to the Hospital Authority, showing social
corporate responsibilities
[EXMNEREEC | BRNEREERBR —TE8 T T8
HEtEaE-

The “Comprehensive Review of the Prospects of Hong
Kong Stocks and Futures Investment in 2022” online
lecture was broadcast simultaneously all over the world,
attracting a large number of investors to watch it online
(2022 Bk - HEREAM R 2EBEIA FEEE2 KA
FSEE RS AMKBREEER FIRE

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2021/22



Major Accomplishments

KRERL

March

3A

>

The Group won seven awards at the HKEX
Awards 2021/2022 organised by Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(“HKEX”) in recognition of its notable
contributions to the development of Hong
Kong’s investment markets, hitting a
historical high in years and becoming the
biggest winner of the awards ceremony.
The awards include:

1. Top Broker — Equity Index Futures &

Options;
2. Top Broker — Stock Futures &
Options;

3. Top Broker — Weekly Index Options;
4.  Top Active Trader — Futures &
Options — After-Hours Trading;

5. Top Broker — Listed Bond Market;
6. Top Breakthrough Broker — L&l

Product Turnover; and
7. Top Breakthrough Broker — MSCI
Taiwan Index Futures & Options

AEBREBRGREEMBR AR (BER
FIT) SR [ BB R Z AT K 882021/2022] % -
LETRETE  URGEEARSTEHEER
EHEZER  EREEATEFZT
MAERRERENARR  RESE:

1. RERELEE - KREEHPELS
1

2. RABERE - BERHERHE:

3. mARKKLHE - SREHEE:

4. RERXRHE — HERHE - KW
BRRHEE:

5. RABERLE — LHMEZMS:

6. RKRBARLLH — BERERAER
PXREE

7. REBIELE — MSCIEEEHH
BN

BARFETHMEEERAF | —T——/ ——FFH

Bright Smart was granted seven awards by HKEX,

making Chairman Mr. Yip Mow Lum overjoyed

B REBER T EAAR  KERME  TREXMEE

BERELEM

13



Branch Network

AT A 4

HONG KONG & &

Hong Kong Headquarters

ERRNRER
Central Branch

RRAT
Wanchai Branch

BEFHT

KOWLOON h &

Kowloon Headquarters

NEERMER

Mongkok Golden Hill Branch

EATILDT

Kwun Tong Branch

BENT

Sham Shui Po Branch

RKE B1T

10/F & 23/F (Sales & Customer Services Department),

Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central
FREGETNHRKLEEAEI0E2ER2BELE
(BRERE PR )

Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 58-60 Queen’s Road Central
HIRE G REFE8-605E IR A A EEE

Shop 1, G/F, Gold Swan Commercial Building,

438-444 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai

R R FF 4384445 R B /8 © 15 7 % K B 0 T15% 48

Mezzanine Floor and First Floor, Honour House, 375-381 Nathan Road
NEEBHBEI5-3BIREDAERERIERE

1/F, Golden Hill Commercial Building, 39-41 Argyle Street, Mongkok
HEATEEZH0-NRSIUHERNEE

Shops 4-6, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road, Kwun Tong
BREZESRELTT O T4E65H

G/F, 39 Yen Chow Street, Sham Shui Po

WK RN ET 395 B i T

NEW TERRITORIES #i 5

Tsuen Wan Branch

XEH1

Tai Po Branch
REDT

Sheung Shui Branch

ERA1T

Yuen Long Branch

T AT
Tuen Mun Branch

BT

G/F & Cockloft, Sze Yuen Mansion, 253 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
L&D IR B3 BIREM T REE

G/F, 141-145 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po

RIBEEREI41-1455% T

Shop D, G/F & Cockloft, 80 Lung Sum Avenue, Sheung Shui

FKEEZREKBOT L D& K B E

Shop No. 5, G/F., Kan Yip Building, 225-237 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long
TCRAE WA BT BA B 225-237 5 E) £ 12 i T 55 4

Shop 23, G/F, Honley Court, 94-110 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road,

Tuen Mun

TR EE R 04110 SREM P LT 23 57

BRIGHT SMART MOBILE TEACHING CENTRE BA#E2EH&H

14

(852) 2537 1371

(852) 3961 6688

(852) 3127 0888

(852) 3604 1888

(852) 3188 0928

(852) 3768 0888

(852) 3666 5688

(852) 3929 2798

(852) 3763 3388

(852) 3768 7188

(852) 3926 2688

(852) 3193 1688

(852) 6282 6635
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Awards
4218

-

CENO opw N

=4

16

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service — 10 Year Plus Caring Company
Logo

The Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society — Certificate of Appreciation
for the Fun Fair

SDG World Record — Goal 3: Good Health and Well-Being

TVB Weekly - Most Popular Brokerage Brand Award

Chicago Mercantile Exchange Top 20 Partner — Over One Billion CME Group
Micro Contracts Traded

Oriental Daily News — Outstanding listed securities and futures companies
Oriental Daily News — Outstanding securities and futures trading apps

The Community Chest BEA Charity Golf Day 2021

Zhitongcaijing/Royalflush Finance — Best IPO service award of the Golden
Central Awards

Trading member of the Singapore Exchange

©

ESG Achievement Awards 2020 of the Institute of ESG & Benchmark —
Platinum Award of the Special Awards (Criteria set by Fund Managers)

ESG Achievement Awards 2020 of the Institute of ESG & Benchmark — Gold
Award of the ESG Rising Star

The HKEX Awards - Top Breakthrough Broker 2021/22 - L&l Product
Turnover

The HKEX Awards — Top Active Trader 2021/22 — Futures & Options — After-
Hours Trading

The HKEX Awards — Top Broker 2021/22 - Stock Futures & Options

The HKEX Awards — Top Broker 2021/22 - Equity Index Futures & Options
The HKEX Awards — Top Broker 2021/22 — Weekly Index Options

The HKEX Awards — Top Broker 2021/22 - Listed Bond Market

The HKEX Awards — Top Breakthrough Broker 2021/22 — MSCI Taiwan Index
Futures & Options

®

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2021/22
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Financial Highlights
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Revenue
Other income

Profit from operations
Profit before taxation

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to
equity shareholders

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents)
Final dividend per share (HK cents)

(31 March 2022: 1,697,296,308 shares,
31 March 2021: 1,697,296,308 shares)
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Chairman’s Statement
FFEHRE

It has been two and a half years since the outbreak of COVID-19
at the end of 2019, and the protracted fight against the disease
has severely weakened Hong Kong’s economy and the global
economy. Economic recovery is a long way off. With a steady
increase in vaccination rates in 2022, it was thought that the
clouds were dispelled to see the sun, but the variant Omicron is
spreading in Hong Kong, triggering an unprecedented fifth wave
of the pandemic, as of the end of April this year, the aggressive
outbreak has brought the total number of confirmed cases in
Hong Kong to more than 1.2 million and the death toll to more
than 9,200. Infection experts warned that anti-pandemic efforts
cannot be slackened as the sixth wave may come at any time,
which will be another tough battle. Although the daily number
of confirmed cases in Hong Kong has dropped to three digits,
the outbreaks resurge and customs clearance policies and
gathering restrictions have been relaxed and tightened at times
It still restricts the restaurants, entertainment, tourism, aviation,
retail and other industries. A full economic recovery is nowhere
in sight. Hong Kong’s economy was expected to grow by 6.4%
in 2021. But due to uncertainties of the pandemic, the growth
rate is cut to 2%-3.5% for 2022. Many European and American
countries can’'t wait to “lift bans”. The countries are trying to
return to normal life by stopping closing borders and relaxing the
number of arrivals. However, the International Monetary Fund is
less optimistic about the outlook and cuts the global economic
growth forecast for 2022 to 4.4%. It warns countries to always
pay attention to the downside risks to be brought about by the
resurgent pandemic
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Chairman’s Statement
EFFEHRE

Some major cities in Mainland China also see sporadic
outbreaks. The supply chain was affected, which pushed up
commodity prices and intensified inflation, challenging the
outlook. But Mainland economy remains robust and resilient. A
series of reform measures unveiled under the 14th Five-Year Plan
and “internal circulation” and “internal and external circulation”
support high-quality economic development. These factors,
together with ample fiscal and monetary policies, will prop up
the steady growth of Mainland economy in 2022 and become a
major driver of global economic growth.

Besides the lingering pandemic, Sino-US relations remain tense,
which will affect the bilateral relations and the direction of the
stock, foreign exchange and money markets. What’s more, the
conflicts between Russia and Ukraine is making the international
situation unpredictable. More than two months after the conflicts
started, the two countries are still at odds. It has become a field
for the United States, NATO, Russia, Ukraine and other countries
to struggle with each other. This will be a geopolitical powder
keg. Once the Russia-Ukraine conflicts escalates, the global
economic situation will get worse. In recent years, U.S. stocks
have been rising for a long time but falling at times. Now that
inflation is heating up, it is imperative to shrink the balance sheet
and raise interest rates, causing invisible downward pressure on
U.S. stocks. Tense relationship between China and the United
States continues. The American Stock Exchange has been
cracking down on U.S.-listed Chinese companies. It restricted
or delisted Chinese companies from the U.S. stock exchanges
via accounting and auditing standards and other means. The
clampdown is detrimental to U.S. stocks.
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Chairman’s Statement
FFEHRE

2021 has been a tough year for China Concept Stocks,
technology and real estate sectors. Successive sanctions
and regulatory actions, including delisting, fines, supervision,
three-red-line policy, and prohibition of the leakage of
sensitive information of Mainland residents, dragged down the
stock prices of the affected companies. Hong Kong stocks
experienced an unprecedented correction. The Hang Seng
Index was approaching a low of 18,000 points, and the average
daily turnover shrunk sharply. The overall performance of Hong
Kong stocks was unsatisfactory. The amount of funds raised
through IPOs on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in 2021 was
far lower than before. New listings in Hong Kong fell by more
than 34% year on year, making the city slip from second to
fourth place in global ranking.

The Hong Kong stock market did not fare well. Hong Kong’s
securities industry was facing internal and external challenges,
leading to shrinking turnover and falling new listings. The
market sentiment was worse than ever. Amid the fifth wave
of COVID-19, the equipment purchased by securities firms for
working from home increased their operating costs sharply.
In the deteriorating business environment, many small and
medium-sized securities brokers in Hong Kong, which are
“unlisted, small in size, cash-strapped and unprofitable”, are
already on the verge of bankruptcy. Since 2021, more than 33
securities firms in Hong Kong have ceased operations. It is
expected to cause a chilling effect in the industry. It is believed
that the wave of business closures in the securities industry will
further deteriorate, and the sale of securities firms attracts little
attention, which may result in a wave of closures in the second
half of the year.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFFEHRE

Fortunately, Bright Smart Securities, as the leader of the
securities industry, has been active and flexible no matter
whether it is a bull or bear market. Its turnover bucked the
trend for growth. Net profit for the Year amounted to HK$561.5
million. | am pleased to present the results of Bright Smart
Securities & Commodities Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2022 (the “Year”) to the shareholders. The Group
recorded a total revenue for the Year of HK$1,068.0 million
(2021: HK$1,285.2 million), representing a decrease of 16.9% as
compared to that for the year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Prior
Year”). In particular, brokerage commission income fell by 13.0%
year on year to HK$690.8 million (2021: HK$793.8 million).
Interest income from margin lending for the Year amounted to
HK$326.1 million (2021: HK$271.2 million), representing a year-
on-year growth of 20.2%.

Profit for the Year fell by 20.2% to HK$561.5 million (2021:
HK$703.9 million) as compared with the Prior Year. Basic
earnings per share were 33.08 HK cents (2021: 41.47 HK cents),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 20.2%. The board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
recommended the payment of a final dividend of 10.00 HK cents
per share (2021: 13.00 HK cents per share) for the Year. As at
31 March 2022, the total number of the Group’s client accounts
reached 526,849, representing an increase of 9.2% over that
of 482,413 as at 31 March 2021. Client assets (including cash
and stocks) decreased by 13.1% year on year to approximately
HK$64.5 billion (31 March 2021: approximately HK$74.2 billion).
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Chairman’s Statement
FFEHRE

The outstanding performance of the Group was attributed to the
following comparative advantages:

1. The Group has always had a keen sense of crisis alert
and forward thinking. As early as 2015, it set up a backup
office in the prime location of Kowloon with a total area of
over 20,000 square feet. With its equipment and facilities
equivalent to the head office in Central, this backup office
played an important role during the outbreak last year. It
assured clients that the Group could still operate as usual
without interruption and they could continuously trade
securities without worries even during the unruly outbreak.
The move is unprecedented and unique in Hong Kong’s
securities industry. In contrast, most of its peers can only
provide limited services or even go out of business when
facing unexpected incidents.

2. Two proprietary trading apps, BS Securities (Baobao) and
BS Futures (Doudou), have been well received by investors
since their eye-catching launch. The following statistics
show that the Group’s unfailing effort paid off:

i. The total number of client accounts increased by
more than 40,000, representing an increase of
approximately 9.2% over the number of accounts
opened in the Prior Year;

ii. The number of downloads of Baobao and Doudou
apps rose by approximately 35% as compared with
the Prior Year;

iii. ~ The number of accounts opened through Baobao and
Doudou apps increased by approximately 20% as
compared with the Prior Year;

iv.. - The number of orders on Baobao app was
approximately 24 million, representing an increase of
approximately 50% as compared with the Prior Year;

V. The total number of orders on all platforms exceeded

31 million, representing an increase of approximately
47.8% as compared with the Prior Year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE
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Staying abreast of market trend, the Group has adopted
some market-oriented strategies and put forth some offers
such as:

Vi.

Rewards of 20 shares of TraHK (2800.hk) and 10
shares of HSBC (0005.hk) for opening new accounts

Rewards of up to 10 shares of Tencent (0700.hk) for
stock transfer, with full refund of transfer fee up to
$0.2 million

Margin lending ratio up to 95% at interest rates as
low as 1.5%

Commission of only US$0.008 per share for trading of
US stocks

1-month genuine zero commission for trading of
Hong Kong stocks/A shares, and waiver of platform
charge

Free commission for another 7 months (pay first and
refund later), etc.
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Chairman’s Statement
FFEHRE

The Group adheres to its proactive operating model by
adopting a cautious and prudent strategy involving both
offensive and defensive tactics in all market conditions. Apart
from optimising and perfecting its online trading channels and
regularly enhancing the functions of the “Baobao” and “Doudou”
apps and improving the speed to place an order, the Group
perpetuated the expansion of its offline network by operating
a total of 14 outlets including Bright Smart Mobile Teaching
Centre, the first of its kind in Hong Kong, in a bid to provide
clients with considerate services. Over 90% of the Group’s
branches now open seven days a week with an aim of providing
clients with the best comprehensive services. To further
refine this branch network and improve its customised service
coverage, the Group will consider any site with low rent, prime
location and high pedestrian flow.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFFEHRE

In addition, the Group stays abreast of the latest development
and offers diversified products to provide clients with
comprehensive and professional brokerage services. Its wide
range of businesses covers the whole financial market in Hong
Kong and includes Hong Kong stocks, US stocks, Shanghai-
Hong Kong Stock Connect A shares, Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Stock Connect A shares, China B shares, Japanese stocks,
Taiwanese stocks, Singaporean stocks, UK stocks, Australian
stocks, Hong Kong futures, Hang Seng Index options, Hong
Kong stock options, index futures, interest rate futures, foreign
exchange futures, bullion and energy futures, cash crop and
staple food futures, bond futures, leveraged foreign exchange
products, IPO share subscription and margin financing. With
such a comprehensive portfolio, the clients can trade a whole
array of financial products around the world with just one
account.

The Group also keeps itself up-to-date and strives for constant
innovation to satisfy investment needs of clients. The Group
launched a new service called “pre-market trading in U.S.
stocks”, where clients can buy and sell U.S. stocks earlier at
4pm (summer time) and 5pm (winter time) in Hong Kong time,
enabling clients to seize opportunities and follow changes in
the market to trade U.S. stocks earlier and making them more
flexible and able to grasp market changes to devise strategies.
In order to bring investors closer to the global market, the Group
developed and launched eDDA Service approved by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority with famous banks in Hong Kong.
This service allows clients to deposit money and trade financial
products anytime, anywhere regardless of time differences and
Hong Kong holidays after going through a simple registration
procedure with any bank account on Baobao and Doudou apps.
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Chairman’s Statement
FFEHRE

The Group has been highly recognised by the society for its
services and won numerous awards over the years, including
seven awards like Top Active Exchange Participants in Stock
Futures, Top Active Exchange Participants in Stock Options
and Top Breakthrough Exchange Participant — L&l Product
Turnover in the HKEX Awards 2021/2022, marking a historical
high in years; excellent listed securities and futures companies
and excellent securities and futures trading apps by Oriental
Daily; best new stock service award by Zhitongcaijing/Royalflush
Finance; most promising listed companies by organising
committee of China Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards, making
it the only Hong Kong'’s securities firm to receive this honour;
excellent Hong Kong stock dealer award from Tencent, a media
outlet from Mainland China; Best Reward & Recognition Strategy
Award (Platinum) of Best HR Award by CT Goodjobs. This long
list of awards received is a testimony to the Group’s significant
position and leading competitiveness in the industry.

As network and mobile communication technologies become
increasingly popular, Internet finance grows rapidly and
inevitably gives rise to online transaction security issues.
Investors are increasingly aware of risks and attach great
importance to online transaction security. The Group
understands that online transaction security is the primary
concern of investors, and has therefore always been committed
to maintaining a stable and safe transaction environment. During
the Year, it developed an anti-disruption system, with four
trading platforms for trading global stocks, namely BS Securities
(Baobao), Bright Smart Securities (MH), computer (web version)
and computer (professional version). The platforms can support
and complement each other to provide clients with four-fold
protection. Furthermore, the Group set up three futures and
two leveraged foreign exchange trading platforms, on which
global futures and leveraged foreign exchange products can
be traded. The platforms complement each other to avoid
disruptions and ensure security from nine aspects. To increase
the online security level for the protection of clients’ assets,
clients are required to use “two-factor authentication” to bind
the designated electronic devices when logging into the Group’s
trading system. Upon completion of the transaction, they will
receive a text message or email from the Group. Regarding the
provision of the safest and most reliable trading platform and
therefore gain the trust of its clients, the Group continues to
test the security system regularly and invest in the perfection of
the security level of online transactions while strengthening the
capacity and speed of its trading system.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFFEHRE

As for investors’ education, the Group has been working on
this and often organises seminars with renowned exchanges
and major financial institutions across the globe to introduce
new investment products and the latest market dynamics
to investors. The Group partnered with, among others, the
HKEX, the Chicago Mercantile Exchange (CME) and Singapore
Exchange Ltd to hold large seminars to analyse the latest
trends in the market and investment techniques. The seminars
received active response and had a full house. It continuously
followed traditions and held cross-industry large online and
offline lectures, bringing together heavyweight celebrities. It
won high praise. At the same time, the Group’s BSTV was the
first in the industry to hold investment seminars with global live
streaming online. Prominent guests and issuers of derivatives
products and exchange traded funds (ETFs), were invited to
share their analyses of market trends, investment strategies
and insightful professional advice in relation to a wide variety
of financial products, and to answer clients’ questions about
their investments. To cater to the market needs for information
about all kinds of financial products and to provide investors
with comprehensive and in-depth financial information, BSTV will
diversify its programmes to strategies for investments in index
and stock options, warrants and ETF products according to
market trends.

The Group upholds the principle of “giving back to where one
takes from” and has always been actively undertaking social
responsibility while expanding its business. The Group actively
participated in various charitable events. As a sponsor for
“Joyful Charity Run”, the Group was recognised as a “Caring
Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service (HKCSS)
and granted the “Outstanding Social Caring Organisation Award”
by Social Enterprise Research Academy. It will continuously
make donations this year to support charitable activities to
be organised by Caritas Hong Kong, The Community Chest,
Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society, United Nations
Children’s Fund and so forth and became the title sponsor of
the Bright Smart Securities Hong Kong Squash Championships
organised by Hong Kong Squash, in a bid to support the
sustainable development of education and sports industries in
Hong Kong and to foster a new generation and build a healthy
society. Hong Kong has been ravaged by COVID-19 since 2020.
Yip Mow Lum Charity Fund donated a total of HK$30 million to
the Hospital Authority in 2020, 2021 and 2022 to cheer for all
medical workers. It donated more than HK$10 million to Hong
Kong Baptist University over years. The Group spares no effort
to give back to the community, hoping to carry forward the
caring spirit of “helping all”.
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Chairman’s Statement
FFEHRE

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead to the second half of 2022 and 2023, the
global outlook remains uncertain, with geopolitical volatility,
the ongoing conflicts between China and the US, and the
threat of COVID-19, which will weigh on the economy like three
mountains. The Federal Reserve is expected to provide less
fiscal support this year as it begins raising interest rates and
shrinking its balance sheet in response to rising inflationary
pressures. In conclusion, economic recovery will become an
inevitable trend, but the pace is likely to slow down due to the
above factors. Although Hong Kong is close to achieving herd
immunity, timing for the customs clearance between the city
and Mainland China has yet been realised. Hong Kong cannot
do as Singapore does, where fully vaccinated passengers
from flights and business travel between Hong Kong and other
overseas countries no longer need COVID-19 testing and self-
quarantine. As long as people cannot move freely, it is difficult
for all industries to fully recover. Unemployment will remain high,
and even if governments continuously offer subsidies, it will be
difficult to alleviate poverty.

Whether the clouds can be dispelled to see the sun in 2023 still
depends on the trend of the pandemic. The wave of survival of
the fittest in the securities industry will not subside with the end
of the pandemic. The industry is facing an increasingly fierce
competition for capital, talent and technology, and the outlook is
extremely challenging. In the face of fierce competition both at
home and abroad, the Group has always been treading on thin
ice, striving to do its best to cater to the increasing investment
demands of investors. With 27 years of operating history in
Hong Kong, the Group has been listed on the Main Board of
HKEX for nearly 12 years. With a sound financial foundation and
competitive edge, the Group will carry on its proactive business
model in order to take on new challenges. To further strengthen
its competitiveness and increase its market share, the Group will
maintain its prudent, flexible and innovative operating approach
in seeking breakthrough on its existing businesses while actively
exploring new markets and new financial products.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFFEHRE

In addition to the unceasing support and trust of all its clients,
Bright Smart Securities’ continuous success is also attributed
to the concerted and determined effort of all employees to
provide quality and sincere services with good value for money
to clients. | would like to thank the directors, the management
team and all staff members for their efforts and contributions
in achieving the remarkable performance during the Year. The
Group is proud to share its success with the staff by offering
large bonuses to them. In particular, staff members with the best
performances during the Year received generous bonuses that
beat their peers. The Group wished to leverage on such rewards
to motivate the whole staff to join hands and take the Group to
new heights in the future.

At the beginning of 2022, |, as always, set clear goals and plans
for the business development of the Group for the new vyear. |
hope that all front-line and back-office employees will develop
their potential, go beyond themselves, break through their limits
and strive for future success. Upholding the business philosophy
of integrity, sincerity, equity and conscience, | will lead Bright
Smart Securities to work its way through obstacles, explore
new business opportunities, and provide clients with the best
investment services in recognition of the continual trust and
support of clients and shareholders.

Yip Mow Lum
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 June 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWEDN

MARKET REVIEW

The global market was an ever-changing landscape in the Year.
In spite of more than two years into the COVID-19 pandemic, it
is capricious, with the virus constantly mutating and spreading
across many countries. The fifth wave of the COVID-19
pandemic is even worse than the previous waves. As of the end
of April 2022, there were more than 500 million confirmed cases
and more than 6.2 million deaths in the world. The pandemic
has caused disruptions to supply chains in many countries, and
the resumption of flights seems light years away. As the saying
goes, one trouble follows another. The world’s focus has been
on whether COVID-19 could subside as soon as possible and
on rebuilding the economy, but the war between Russia and
Ukraine suddenly began, which has fuelled a surge in energy
prices, bringing the already stagnant financial economy into
unprecedented difficulties and further worsening global stock
markets. The U.S. was striving to achieve economic recovery
and implemented the quantitative easing to prop up markets.
However, amid the pandemic, the US job market remained under
stress, commodity prices and wage costs went up, and wages
of workers cannot keep up with inflation, with soaring grain and
petrol prices and worsening inflation. The US consumer price
index, the annual inflation rate, rose 8.5% in March, hitting a
new 40-year high. In the face of inflation, the Federal Reserve
accelerated tapering programme, marking the start of a rate-
hike cycle.

The ongoing dispute between China and the United States
casts a haze on the market. In recent years, the U.S. has been
putting pressure on Chinese U.S.-listed companies and even
delisted such companies, which has put them in a predicament.
[t can be said that there is an opportunity when there is a
crisis, because this delisting wave creates an opportunity for
Hong Kong stock market due to the fact that most of such
delisted companies may return to Hong Kong for listing, which
in turn further enlarges the scale of Hong Kong stock. Due to
certain unfavourable factors like the pandemic, the fund-raising
activities of Hong Kong IPO continued to slow down this year.
According to the statistics from the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (“HKEX”), 96 new companies went public in
2021, a decrease of approximately 34.2% from 146 in 2020.
The total amount of funds raised was approximately HK$331.3
billion, a year-on-year decrease of approximately 17.2%. With the
pandemic easing and under control, IPO activity is expected to
pick up gradually. With the return of Chinese Concept Stocks,
the Hong Kong IPO market is set to take a new turn.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWEDN

Hong Kong experienced ups and downs in the Year, when the
stock market rose first but fell afterwards, and transactions
continuously shrank. At the beginning of 2021, the market
expectation is that the global economy will recover. Capital
inflows from Mainland China drove the market upward. The
Hang Seng Index performed well at the beginning of last year.
However, as a series of regulatory measures have been in place
in Mainland China since 2021, various sectors such as education
and new economy have been impacted. The unpredictable
policies have led to large fluctuations in related sectors, and the
overall market sentiment has been affected. Hong Kong stocks
fell repeatedly during the Year. The statistics from HKEX showed
that the total market value of Hong Kong-listed companies
amounted to HK$42.4 trillion in 2021, a year-on-year drop of
10.7% from HK$47.5 trillion in 2020. The situation does not
reverse in 2022. The Hang Seng Index plunged more than 6,800
points in just over a month from a high of 25,050 on 10 February
to 18,235 on 15 March, its lowest level in more than a decade.

Due to a slowdown in internal and external demand, coupled
with government measures such as lockdown and strict social
distancing, various business activities were forced to be
put on hold, leading to a tougher business environment and
weak economic fundamentals in Hong Kong. The 5th wave
of COVID-19 outbreak started in Hong Kong in March 2022,
causing more than one million infections and overwhelming the
city’s healthcare system. A large number of employees had to
undergo isolation and quarantine at home, and some industries
were paralysed at one point. According to the estimate by the
catering industry, 500 restaurants has been closed and about
100,000 catering employees have lost their jobs or been idle
during the fifth wave of the pandemic alone. Hong Kong’s
economy is facing daunting challenges, all industries are
sluggish, and the market sentiment has fallen into lows. In the
first quarter of this year, the seasonally adjusted unemployment
rate in Hong Kong was 5%, and approximately 188,000 people
were unemployed, representing a decrease of 1.3 percentage
points compared to the same period of the last year, and the
underemployment rate fell 0.7 percentage points to 3.1%.
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BEEENWEDN

In Mainland China, despite many uncertainties in the internal and
external environment, such as COVID-19 throughout the vyear,
persistent external inflation, and the debt bubble crash of some
real estate companies, the Mainland economy remained stable
on the whole. Strong and effective anti-pandemic measures,
continuous deepening of reforms and promotion of high-quality
development, and timely cuts in reserve requirement ratios and
interest rates to maintain reasonable and abundant liquidity
enable China to lead the world in recovering from the pandemic.
China’s gross domestic product (“GDP”) was increased by
RMB12.8 trillion to RMB114.4 ftrillion in 2021 from RMB101.6
trillion in 2020, ranking second in the world. China is expected
to account for more than 18% of the global economy. Compared
with other countries, the Mainland economy has shown strong
resilience and recovery.

Although many Western countries advocate coexistence with
the coronavirus, the virus keeps mutating, which will lead
to uncertainties to the pandemic in the future. Coupled with
continued geopolitical risks, it is still unknown whether the
latest U.S. monetary policy can suppress inflation. However,
despite the huge impact of the pandemic on the economy, it
is believed that the economic recovery will be accelerated and
global stock markets will be buoyed by efforts by governments
around the world to encourage people to get vaccinated and
see stable development. Data from the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (“HKMA”) showed that the bank balance remained
strong at approximately HK$337.5 billion as at 31 March 2022.
In addition, the GDP of Hong Kong rose by 6.4% year on year
to approximately HK$2.8 trillion in 2021. Hong Kong’s economy
is expected to see a strong rebound in 2023 if the haze brought
about by the pandemic is swept away and business travellers
swarm to the city following the reopening of borders.
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BEENWEDN

OPERATIONAL RESULTS

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of HK$1,068.0
million (2021: HK$1,285.2 million), representing a decrease of
16.9% as compared to that for the Prior Year. Profit for the Year
was HK$561.5 million (2021: HK$703.9 million), representing
a decrease of 20.2% as compared to that for the Prior Year.
Total comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders
amounted to HK$561.3 million (2021: HK$703.6 million),
representing a decrease of 20.2% as compared to that for the
Prior Year. Basic and diluted earnings per share were 33.08
HK cents (2021: 41.47 HK cents). The board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) recommended the payment of a final
dividend of 10.00 HK cents per share (2021: 13.0 HK cents per
share) for the Year.
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BEEENWEDTN

According to the statistics from HKEX, the average daily turnover
for the fiscal year was approximately HK$147.50 billion, a
decrease of approximately 4.9% from approximately HK$155.06
billion for the Prior Year. In view of changes in the market
conditions, the Group adjusted its marketing and operating
strategies in a timely and appropriate manner. Besides, the
Group invested heavily in the research and development of
one-stop mobile trading apps, BS Securities (Baobao) and
BS Futures (Doudou), as it anticipated the rapid increase in
investor demand for financial technology. With continuous

REBEEXMWGTEN  APRFEZAHR
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improvement of their performance and remarkable results, the X ZFARBEEE  WIRABKRRLRE
apps successfully drew hundreds of thousands of downloads #—FREEFHZF  BEAERTENTE
by investors. The Group will continuously improve its trading {E4F% 4 - DBk E - IR 2 # S8 -
platforms and services while upgrading its network security
devices in order to strengthen the protection of its clients’
interests, be well-prepared for market fluctuations, overcome
challenges and seize opportunities.
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TOTAL NUMBER OF CLIENT ACCOUNTS
AND ASSETS

The Group that has made constant progress over the years,
regardless of market conditions, has invested a lot of resources
to provide clients with more comprehensive, better quality and
more professional services. As at the end of March 2022, the
Group, together with the Central Head Office and all branches
and “Bright Smart Mobile Teaching Centre”, had a total of
14 outlets, covering the core areas of Hong Kong, with most
of them operating seven days a week, breaking the industry
tradition. The mobile teaching centre improved client service
quality and offered convenience to all clients. The Group’s
proactive expansion successfully led to a steady growth in
the total number of client accounts. During the fiscal year, the
number of new accounts (after deducting the number of client
accounts closed) reached 44,436, increasing the total number
of client accounts to 526,849, a growth of 9.2% as compared
to 482,413 as at 31 March 2021. As at 31 March 2022, client
assets (including cash, stocks and margin deposits) amounted
to approximately HK$64.5 billion (31 March 2021: approximately
HK$74.2 billion).
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REVENUE

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue of HK$1,068.0
million (2021: HK$1,285.2 million), representing a decrease of
16.9% as compared to that for the Prior Year. A summary of the

A

Group’s revenue by business divisions is set out below. ™

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-ALEE
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Revenue from: RENRTEEZBA:
— Securities brokerage —BEER 437,221 40.9% 517,581 40.3% (15.5%)
— Hong Kong futures and —AEHERBAELRS
options brokerage 125,030 11.7% 120,400 9.4% 3.8%
— Global futures brokerage —REREIE &L 99,797 9.4% 92,753 7.2% 7.6%
— Bullion trading —-E2BRS 10,791 1.0% 15,177 1.2% (28.9%)
— Leveraged foreign exchange —1ERRINEZ S
trading 2,548 0.2% 3,305 0.2% (22.9%)
— Stock option brokerage —REBELL 15,463 1.5% 16,167 1.3% (4.4%)
— IPO brokerage —-BRAABELY 13,290 1.3% 46,919 3.6% (71.7%)
Interest income from IPO BRAHZERE
financing FLE WA 37,737 3.5% 201,661 15.7% (81.3%)
Interest income from margin HFERMERMEBA
financing 326,135 30.5% 271,238 21.1% 20.2%
1,068,012 100.0% 1,285,201 100.0% (16.9%)
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I. Securities brokerage

The total turnover of securities on HKEX for the Year was

I. BHEEL

BRAANANEE Z KR & FE715364,317

HK$36,431.7 billion, a year-on-year decrease of 4.9% BT R T B4 (ZF —— F:

(2021: HK$38,300.4 billion). Commission income from
the Group’s securities brokerage business amounted to
HK$437.2 million (2021: HK$517.6 million) and accounted
for 40.9% (2021: 40.3%) of the total revenue, a decrease of
15.5% as compared with the Prior Year.

Commission Income from Securities

Brokerage of the Group
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Transaction Amount of the
Hong Kong Stock Market

BEBRETERREHE
HK$Billion
+EHET
-4.99
40,000 38,300.4 9%
36,431.7
30,000 I
20,000
10,000
0 — —
2021 2022
T —ECCF

Year ended 31 March
HE=ZA=1T—HILFE

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2021/22



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWEDTN

II. Hong Kong futures and options brokerage

II. EEBHERBERLRL

In view of the fluctuations in the market, clients of the HRMAES AEBE s BEFFNASBE
Group used futures increasingly as hedging instruments. ETHEF HABTEBHEZRIMBRA
Although the number of derivative contracts traded on AHRAMNDZITEEREFAHNRREK
the Hong Kong Futures Exchange (“HKFE”) for the Year HRITSEBER(ZEZ—F 13968 8
decreased by 1.5% to 137.5 million (2021: 139.6 million), oK) BB15%KIE  AEBAFEHS
commission income from the Group’s Hong Kong futures BEABHERBELELHBSKRAZEI25.08
and options brokerage business went up by 3.8% to BAT(ZTEZ—F:1204B8 88 7T) ' &
HK$125.0 million for the Year as compared to that for the FFEEABS8%  HREXEENTR (ZF
Prior Year (2021: HK$120.4 million), accounting for 11.7% T 1 9.4%) °

(2021: 9.4%) of the total revenue.

Commission Income from Hong Kong
Futures and Options Brokerage of the Group
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Transaction Volume of Derivative
Contracts at the HKFE
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III. Global futures brokerage

Iv.

VI.

40

The trading in the Hong Kong investment market continued
to be active and diversified, stimulating investors’ desire to
invest in the global market; coupled with the increasingly
volatile global market amid the COVID-19 pandemic,
investors flocked to the futures market. Commission
income from global futures brokerage for the Year
increased by 7.6% to HK$99.8 million as compared to that
for the Prior Year (2021: HK$92.8 million), accounting for
9.4% (2021: 7.2%) of the total revenue.

Bullion trading

Income from the Group’s bullion trading business for
the Year decreased by 28.9% to HK$10.8 million as
compared to that for the Prior Year (2021: HK$15.2 million),
accounting for 1.0% (2021: 1.2%) of the total revenue.

Leveraged foreign exchange trading

Income from the Group’s leveraged foreign exchange
trading business for the Year decreased by 22.9% to
HK$2.5 million as compared to that for the Prior Year
(2021: HK$3.3 million), accounting for 0.2% (2021: 0.2%) of
the total revenue.

Stock options brokerage

Commission income from the Group’s stock options
brokerage business for the Year decreased by 4.4% to
HK$15.5 million as compared to that for the Prior Year
(2021: HK$16.2 million), accounting for 1.5% (2021: 1.3%)
of the total revenue. As stock options are highly leveraged
investment products, the Group carefully monitors
the margin level of stock option accounts and makes
adjustments according to market conditions in order to
properly control risks.
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VII.

VIIL

IPO brokerage and IPO financing

As the market sentiment has turned cautious amidst
the volatile development of the COVID-19 epidemic,
and the market reaction to the new stock market has
become muted, commission income from the Group’s IPO
brokerage business for the Year decreased substantially by
71.7% to HK$13.3 million as compared to that for the Prior
Year (2021 HK$46.9 million). Interest income from IPO
financing decreased by 81.3% correspondingly to HK$37.7
million (2021: HK$201.7 million).

Margin financing

During the Year, the Group’s average daily margin lending
increased by 24.9% to HK$9.79 billion (2021: HK$7.84
billion) and the Group’s interest income from margin
financing amounted to HK$326.1 million (2021: HK$271.2
million), representing a year-on-year growth of 20.2%, and
accounting for 30.5% (2021: 21.1%) of the total revenue.
The Group implements effective credit control procedures
and recorded no bad debts in the past few years.

LOSS FROM INVESTMENTS

The Group held Hong Kong-listed securities, bonds and futures
contracts as investments during the Year. As at 31 March 2022,
the book value of investments in stocks, bonds and futures
stood at HK$51.0 million (2021: HK$78.4 million). During the

Year,

the loss from financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss was HK$26.8 million (2021: gain of HK$10.1 million).
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OPERATING EXPENSES AND NET PROFIT REFpITRAR =X

MARGIN

Operating expenses of the Group for the Year decreased by ANEFEAREE 7KL E FFEE T¥20.3%
20.3% to HK$593.6 million as compared to that for the Prior /4&593.68 & & T(Z T = — F:74438 8 &
Year (2021: HK$744.3 million). Nevertheless, net profit margin of  7©) i AEBA R X TH E52.6% (ZF——F -

the Group fell to 52.6% (2021: 54.8%).
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A breakdown of operating expenses is as follows:

and Analysis

RERXHAMT

Increment/
2022 2021 (decrement)
i,
—E-= T —F OB )
HK$’°000 HK$’000 %
FET FAT
Staff cost BT A& 160,616 152,895 5.0%
Amortisation and depreciation BIHRTE 77,541 79,519 (2.5%)
Net changes for expended credit FEAEEEEFE
losses 7,429 851 773.0%
Finance costs B 75 B AR 124,512 239,223 (48.0%)
Advertising and promotion expenses & & N 5 1& & 19,488 34,979 (44.3%)
Auditors’ remuneration % ELED B & 1,733 1,703 1.8%
Commission, handling and KuwBe  FEEBREEBA
settlement expenses 114,566 143,997 (20.4%)
Information and communication B EBARYS
expenses 44,435 47,512 (6.5%)
Rental, rates and building e EZEMREFEER
management fees 4,618 4,772 (3.2%)
Legal and professional fee FRENEXEBR 1,891 2,133 (11.3%)
Miscellaneous expenses MIERAY 36,728 36,728 —
593,557 744,312 (20.3%)
FUTURE PLANS R E

Looking ahead, the speed of economic recovery will depend on
the development of COVID-19. Issues, including external political
factors, the phasing out of massive fiscal stimulus in other
countries, and continued inflationary pressure, are believed to
continuously influence the development of global economy and
financial markets. With the ongoing dispute between China and
the U.S., there are still many uncertainties, and the market is
facing the test of rising inflation and supply shortages. However,
the pandemic will finally end. With increasing vaccination rates,
the global economy will stabilise. The public hopes that the
pandemic will gradually be brought under control, customs
clearance with the mainland will be resumed, flights will resume,
and Hong Kong will reconnect with the international community.
Traditional economies such as retail, tourism, aviation and
manufacturing are expected to rebound after the outbreak
eases. We believe that the “hardest ice age” is over, and Hong
Kong’s economy is bound to get better and better.
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However, regardless of changes in market conditions, the Group
will continuously adopt an aggressive development strategy
and also introduce new products, services and market offers
to expand its clientele. Apart from continuously optimising and
improving all online trading channels and regularly enhancing
the functions of the “Baobao” and “Doudou” apps and improving
the speed to place an order, the Group will also establish a
complete branch network that will cover the 14 outlets in the
core areas of Hong Kong, in a bid to provide investors with
professional and considerate investment services. Moreover, it
will continuously identify sites at prime geographical locations
with heavy traffic to set up new branches to support the
business development, and will also hold regular job fairs to
attract a large number of talents with the aim of enhancing the
service quality as well as taking up the responsibility to nurture
the next generation of elites for the industry.

Meanwhile, to take up an important role in investors’
education, the Group launched a broadcasting channel “Bright
Smart Finance Channel”, through which it makes a financial
programme on each trading day to provide investors with instant
information and answer their questions. Besides, it organised
various investment seminars and stock and futures investment
simulation competitions free of charge. For instance, the Group
partnered with world-renowned stock exchanges, financial
institutions and top industry experts to provide investors
with comprehensive, reliable and free wealth management
information so as to enhance their knowledge about financial
products and economic trends across the world and broaden
their investment choices. It believes that investors’ education
should be open for all, easy to understand and diversified so
as to enhance the financial literacy of the public via different
channels and assist them in developing responsible financial
habits, behaviours and decisions.
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DEVELOP DIVERSIFIED GLOBAL
FINANCIAL PRODUCTS

The Group has thoroughly studied investors’ habits, behaviour
and investment trends, and analysed them according to client
data and surveys. In view of the rising attention to and popularity
of global financial products, investors have growing interest in
such products. The Group has connected its online securities
and futures trading platforms as well as mobile apps to markets
around the world, providing comprehensive and professional
brokerage services and bringing together Hong Kong stocks,
US stocks, Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect A shares,
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect A shares, China B shares,
Japanese stocks, Taiwanese stocks, Singaporean stocks,
Australian stocks, UK stocks, Hong Kong futures, Hang Seng
Index options, Hong Kong stock options, Dow Jones Futures,
A50 Futures, foreign exchange futures, gold futures, oil futures,
copper futures, HKEX’'s CNH Gold Futures, HKEX’s USD Gold
Futures, leveraged foreign exchange products, iron ore futures,
IPO share subscription and margin financing. It will continuously
seek and expand global investment products so as to cater to
the needs of different clients. The Group believes that investors’
interest in global financial products is growing. Therefore, it will
continuously develop more global financial products to meet
market demands.

During the Year, the Group launched a new service called “pre-
market trading in U.S. stocks”, where clients can buy and sell
U.S. stocks earlier at 4pm (summer time) and 5pm (winter time)
in Hong Kong time, enabling clients to seize opportunities and
follow changes in the market to trade U.S. stocks earlier and
making them more flexible and able to grasp market changes to
devise strategies.

BARSCMEMERAT | —T-—/ ——FFH

AZTIERREMEM

AEBEFABRKEENEE TANBE
BREZFPHEEBERTEREAELETON AR
RREBEMBXBEIREBL  REFEHRR
TREMNBREERNGBRE - NEBNES
EFHERERSFakTFHEREN B2 E
BER AREPREZEMEBXENLLRE -

EBRMEER X BAEBAK REBA
B~ PEIBA - BAR - &R - BN ORAX -

R B EAEEEE BRI B
HE - ASOHIE - SNEHIE - HE - Hd -

OARM(ES ELHE EX(EBES
HE EERIEER BROSY  FRZ
BARFTERES Y ERELERAERH
BEER NOATAEFNEE - AEEM
ERAXHBRLBEQNESEAMAE - B
W AEESRENRESEREBESR N
HETIEEE -

AEE AKEHRBIERBAEREIRYE &
FrAIARRFEEERMBE T T4 (ESKE) LT
TR (RSRMEEXR  REFPHAFTESL
#oEAERXHNEY REETERRS B
MBEEREERETIGNE  BEEWEIE -

45



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWEDN

PROMOTING DIGITAL INVESTMENT
SERVICES

As the Group anticipates that the development of fintech will
significantly change the investment habits of its clients, it
actively engages in digitalising investment services by making
substantial investments in half a year of time to develop two
apps, namely BS Securities (Baobao) and BS Futures (Doudou).
They are equipped with Al 3.0 features (such as behavioural
authentication, news tracking and personalised portfolio
monitoring). The Group’s mobile apps can fulfil all the investment
needs of its clients, enabling them to open accounts, trade
global financial products and read global financial news right
away at anytime and anywhere.

Since the Group always strives for excellence and invests
substantially in fintech and software and hardware support, new
features were developed and added to the Baobao and Doudou
apps with a view to satisfying market needs. For example,
the Baobao app now allows users to check the gain or loss
of their positions, sell odd lots automatically, browse trading
records within a month, search for warrants and Callable Bull/
Bear Contracts (“CBBC”), check the amount of CBBC in public
hand, and receive push message. In order to bring investors
closer to the global market, the Group developed and launched
eDDA Service approved by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
with famous banks in Hong Kong. This service allows clients to
deposit money and trade stocks and futures anytime, anywhere
regardless of time differences and Hong Kong holidays after
going through a simple registration procedure with any bank
account on Baobao and Doudou apps. It breaks the industry
tradition.
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The Group keeps pace with the times and upgrades existing
hardware and software at a large cost. It has increased the
confidence in the Group’s brand, services and trading systems
and won praises from the industry and media, including seven
awards like Top Active Exchange Participants in Stock Futures,
Top Active Exchange Participants in Stock Options and Top
Breakthrough Exchange Participant — L&l Product Turnover in
the HKEX Awards 2021/2022, marking a historical high in years;
excellent listed securities and futures companies and excellent
securities and futures trading apps by Oriental Daily; best new
stock service award by Zhitongcaijing/Royalflush Finance; most
promising listed companies by organising committee of China
Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards, making it the only Hong
Kong’s securities firm to receive this honour; excellent Hong
Kong stock dealer award from Tencent, a media outlet from
Mainland China; Best Reward & Recognition Strategy Award
(Platinum) of Best HR Award by CT Goodjobs. This long list
of awards received is a testimony to the Group’s significant
position and leading competitiveness in the industry.

As the application of fintech in the wealth management industry
matures, the Group plans to promote digitalised and smart
trading services amongst its clients, combine online and offline
marketing and operating strategies, reduce costs, enhance its
efficiency, expand its clientele and enhance their experience
using fintech, in a bid to strengthen its core competitiveness and
leadership position in the industry.
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ENHANCING ONLINE TRADING SECURITY

At the same time, the Group has invested substantial
resources in improving the efficiency and capacity of its
online trading systems to meet clients’ needs. In order to
offer a more convenient and stable online trading platform,
the Group has previously made huge investment in improving
its trading systems, relocated its central computer system to
the centralised data centre of HKEX in Tseung Kwan O, and
conducted large-scale tests on all transaction systems, including
regular simulated tests involving a trading volume exceeding
five times of the existing peak volume on HKEX, so as to
continuously enhance the efficiency and stability of the existing
securities and futures trading platforms. As for network security,
the Group has implemented the “dual password” security
measure and authentication by which two different passwords
are required for logging into the trading systems and conducting
transactions. Furthermore, an email will be delivered instantly
or a push message will be sent on Baobao and Doudou apps
to notify the clients of any login or any transaction conducted
electronically through their accounts in accordance with the
regulatory requirements. In addition, the Group also closely
monitors and counteracts any unrelated fake website. If any
such website is identified, the Group will notify the clients and
take legal actions against the website in order to prevent its
clients from suffering unnecessary loss. The Group will keep
abreast of the latest market developments and study the need
and room for capacity expansion of its trading systems. It will
also step up client education on online trading security and
enhance their awareness and skills of risk prevention.

The Group actively develops a more robust and reliable trading
system to meet the professional needs of investors. It has
developed an anti-disruption system to greatly enhance security
from nine aspects.
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The Group noted frequent “disconnections, delays, instability
and even crashes” in the trading systems of individual brokers
and banks during the Year. So, aware of the importance of
establishment of multiple trading platforms that complement
each other in the process of investment, it has developed
an anti-disruption system, with four trading platforms for
trading global stocks, namely BS Securities (Baobao),
Bright Smart Securities (MH), computer (web version) and
computer (professional version). The platforms can support
and complement each other to provide clients with four-fold
protection. Furthermore, the Group has set up three futures
and two leveraged foreign exchange trading platforms, on
which global futures and leveraged foreign exchange products
can be traded. The platforms can complement each other to
avoid disruptions, which ensure unimpeded and convenient
investments without crashes.

CONCLUSION

The Group firmly believes that only by keeping close to the
needs of clients can it stands out in the fierce competition. The
Group, with the “client-oriented and service-first” philosophy,
adopted both offensive and defensive strategies at the moment
when the real economy went downhill. On one hand, it has
been committed to optimising the performance of Baobao and
Doudou apps to improve user experience. On the other hand, it
allocated more resources on various online and offline platforms
for publicity and promotion and increasing brand exposure,
attracting more investors to open accounts and trade products
through Bright Smart Securities. The Group plans to further
optimise its branch network, actively look for potential locations
to establish new footholds, and reach a wider range of target
clients, in order to expand its market share and strengthen
its brand competitiveness. The Group’s achievements today
depend on the long-standing support and trust of its clients. The
Group will be dedicated to providing clients with better services
and developing safer, more stable, faster and more convenient
trading platforms in the future, so as to reward clients for their
love and support and make them feel at home. The Group will
meanwhile develop more diversified businesses, recruit talents
from different sectors and seize every valuable opportunity, so
as to enhance its operation efficiency and seek higher returns
for shareholders.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s operations were financed by shareholders’ equity,
cash generated from operation and bank borrowings.

The Group maintains sufficient liquidity with total bank deposits,
bank balances and cash amounting to HK$524.7 million as at
31 March 2022 (2021: HK$418.5 million). The Group had bank
borrowings of HK$5,162.2 million as at 31 March 2022 (2021:
HK$11,436.0 million) which bore interest primarily at floating
rate. The bank borrowings were primarily collateralised by its
margin clients’ securities pledged to the Group. As at 31 March
2022, unutilised banking facilities amounted to HK$16,048.8
million (2021: HK$9,183.4 million). The Group’s gearing ratio
(total bank borrowings excluding IPO financing divided by the
total shareholders’ equity) was 208.9% (2021: 425.7%). As at 31
March 2022, the Group had net current assets of HK$2,296.3
million (2021: HK$1,943.9 million) and a current ratio (current
assets divided by current liabilities) of 1.3 times (2021: 1.1 times).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions. For the licensed subsidiaries, the Group
ensures that each of the subsidiaries maintains a liquidity level
adequate to support the level of activities with a sufficient buffer
to accommodate increases in liquidity requirements arising
from potential increases in the level of business activities.
During the Year, all the licensed subsidiaries complied with the
liquidity requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (Cap. 571N of the Laws of Hong Kong “FRR”).

CHARGES ON ASSETS

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 March
2022 and 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDTN

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2022, corporate guarantees provided by the
Company in respect of banking facilities granted by authorised
institutions to its subsidiaries engaging in securities and futures
broking amounted to HK$15,724.5 million (2021: HK$14,917.2
million). As at 31 March 2022, the subsidiaries of the Company
have utilised HK$4,063.7 million of these aggregate banking
facilities (2021: HK$7,535.0 million).

As at 31 March 2022, the directors did not consider that any
claim would be made against the Group under any of the
guarantees.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The capital commitments as at 31 March 2022 were
approximately HK$5.4 million (2021: HK$2.3 million).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a work force of 262
employees (2021: 260 employees). Staff costs, excluding
directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$128.7
million for the Year (2021: HK$127.1 million). The Group's
remuneration policy aims to offer competitive remuneration
packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent employees.
The Group believes that the remuneration packages are
reasonable and competitive and in line with market trends. The
Group has put in place a bonus scheme for its executives and
employees as a measure to provide a competitive remuneration
package for the Group’s long-term growth and development.
The Group also provides appropriate training and development
programmes to its employees to enhance the staff’'s work ability
and personal efficiency.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year, the Group did not make any significant
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWEDN

LITIGATION

As at 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this report, the Group
has not been involved in any litigation of significance.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due
from clients, brokers and clearing houses. The management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of amounts due from clients, individual evaluations
are performed on all clients (including cash and margin clients)
based on the underlying collateral. Cash clients are required
to place deposits as prescribed in the Group’s policy before
execution of any purchase transactions. Receivables due from
cash clients are due within the settlement period commonly
adopted in the relevant market practices, which is usually within
a few days from the trade date. Because accounts receivable
from cash clients relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default, there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are considered fully recoverable, and the prescribed deposit
requirements and the short settlement period involved, the
credit risk arising from the amounts due from cash clients is
considered low. The Group normally obtains liquid securities
and/or cash deposits as collateral for providing financing to
its cash and margin clients and has policy to manage these
exposures on a fair value basis. Margin loans due from margin
clients are repayable on demand. For commodities and
futures brokerage, an initial margin is required prior to opening
transaction. Market conditions and adequacy of securities
collateral and margin deposits of each cash account, margin
account and futures account are monitored by the management
on a daily basis. Margin calls and forced liquidation are made
where necessary.
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BEEENWEDN

In respect of amounts receivable from brokers and clearing
houses, credit risks are considered low as the Group normally
enters into transactions with brokers and clearing houses which
are registered with regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation
in the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk as
credits are granted to a large population of clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, including the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, and to ensure compliance with
FRR. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
long terms.

Interest rate risk

The Group charges interest on its margin clients and cash
clients with outstanding loan amounts on the basis of its cost of
funding plus a mark-up. Financial assets (such as margin loans
and deposits with banks) and financial liabilities (such as bank
loans) are primarily at floating rates. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are not subject to significant interest rate
risk.
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Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising from
financial instruments that are denominated in United States
dollars (“USD”), Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”),
Japanese Yen (“JPY”), Australian dollars (“AUD”) and British
pound (“GBP”). As the Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) is pegged
to the USD, the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD as insignificant.
In respect of financial instruments denominated in other
currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept at
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.
The management monitors all the foreign currency positions on
a daily basis.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price changes arising from listed
equity investments, futures contracts and accounts receivable
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s equity investments are listed on the SEHK while
investment in futures contracts are traded on HKFE. Listed
investments held in the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss portfolio have been chosen based on their
longer term growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.

Accounts receivable from margin, cash and IPO clients expose
the Group to price risk as their fair value is made with reference
to the fair value of collaterals, capped by the principal amount
and accrued interest, without discounting.
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Biographies of Directors
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. YIP Mow Lum
Chairman & Executive Director

(Appointed as a director on 4 August 2009 and elected as the
chairman on 4 August 2010)

Aged 70, is the founder, the Chairman of the Board, an
Executive Director and the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Yip is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee and Risk
Management Committee of the Company. He is responsible for
the formulation of corporate strategies, overseeing operations
and the overall steering of the Group’s management. Mr. Yip has
solid experience in brokerage industry and investment and has
over 30 years’ management experience in securities and futures
brokerage. He is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Yip is a responsible officer recognised by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC”) for engaging in the
Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts) regulated activity. He is the
sole director of New Charming Holdings Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company and the uncle of Mr. Chan Wing
Shing, Wilson, one of the Executive Directors of the Company
and the father of Ms. Yip Wing Yan, Jacquelyn, the Assistant to
Chairman of the Group.
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Mr. HUI Yik Bun
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

(Appointed as a director and Co-Chief Executive Officer on 5
October 2015 and re-designated as Chief Executive Officer on
31 May 2016)

Aged 48, is an Executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. He is responsible for overall business
development, operations and management of the Group. He is
also the chairman of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee, a member of the Risk Management Committee and
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He has over 28
years of experience in securities and futures businesses, and
has worked in a number of securities firms. Mr. Hui has expertise
in brokerage operations, sales management and market
operations of securities and futures businesses, particularly with
over 18 years of experience in frontline management. Mr. Hui is
also a responsible officer recognised by the SFC for engaging
in the Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 5 (advising on
futures contracts), Type 7 (providing automated trading services)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities.
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Biographies of Directors
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Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson
Executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 57, is an Executive Director of the Company and the
Dealing Director of the Group in charge of the daily dealing
operations of securities and futures businesses. Mr. Chan is
also a director of Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.)
Limited and Bright Smart Futures & Commodities Company
Limited, both are subsidiaries of the Group. He has over 22
years’ experience in securities and futures businesses and is
a responsible officer recognised by the SFC for engaging in
the Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 5 (advising on
futures contracts), Type 7 (providing automated trading services)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. Mr. Chan
is the nephew of Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the founder, the Chairman
of the Board and the controlling shareholder of the Company
and the cousin of Ms. Yip Wing Yan, Jacquelyn, the Assistant to
Chairman of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Yun Kong
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 56, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
and the Risk Management Committee as well as a member of
the Nomination Committee and the Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Yu is a practising
certified public accountant with over 30 years’ experience in
public accounting practice. He is a fellow member of both the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also an
associate member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
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Mr. SZETO Wai Sun

Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 63, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management Committee
and the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
of the Company. Mr. Szeto holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Laws (Hons) and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from
The University of Hong Kong, and obtained the Professional
Certificate in Chinese Civil & Commercial Law, a course jointly
organised by Tsinghua University in the PRC and the School
of Professional and Continuing Education of The University of
Hong Kong in 2002. He also holds a Professional Diploma for
the Financial Times Non-Executive Director issued in May 2015,
and is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Szeto
was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1985 and worked in
a number of law firms in Hong Kong including Edmund Cheung
& Co. and Y.T. Chan & Co., before founding his own firm Sun
Lawyers LLP (formerly known as W.S. Szeto & Lee, Solicitors)
in 2003. He remains the Senior Partner of Sun Lawyers and is a
practising Notary Public in Hong Kong. He was an independent
non-executive director of Target Insurance (Holdings) Limited (a
company of which its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, Stock Code: 6161) during the period from
November 2014 to December 2020.
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Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 66, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management Committee and
the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee of the
Company. Mr. Ling has over 25 years’ experience in accounting,
finance and administration and has been a director and the
company secretary of a charitable organisation since 2004.
Mr. Ling has been an independent non-executive director of
Pangaea Connectivity Technology Limited (a company of which
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, Stock Code: 1473) since January 2021. Mr. Ling joined
Midland Realty (Holdings) Limited in 1990 and was the executive
director when he left the company in 1997. Prior to that, he was
a controller of Hong Kong Telephone Company Limited and has
also worked at Chase Manhattan Bank and the First National
Bank of Boston in accounting field. Mr. Ling is an associate
member of The Chartered Governance Institute and The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries), holding Chartered Secretary
and Chartered Governance Professional dual designations.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YIP Mow Lum

(Biographical details are set out on page 55)
Mr. HUI Yik Bun

(Biographical details are set out on page 56)
Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson

(Biographical details are set out on page 57)
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Ms. YIP Wing Yan, Jacquelyn
Assistant to Chairman
(Joined the Group in July 2018)

Aged 41, is the Assistant to Chairman of the Group with the
responsibilities for assisting the Chairman of the Board in
overseeing the Group’s daily internal operations and devising key
strategies for future development plan. She leads, coordinates
and gives advices to various departments to provide optimum
supports and quality services. She holds a Bachelor's Degree
in Business Administration (major in Accountancy) from the City
University of Hong Kong. Ms. Yip is the daughter of Mr. Yip Mow
Lum, the founder, the Chairman of the Board and the controlling
shareholder of the Company and the cousin of Mr. Chan Wing
Shing, Wilson, one of the Executive Directors of the Company.
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Ms. LI Wan Mei
Chief Financial Officer
(Joined the Group in November 2008)

Aged 38, is the Chief Financial Officer in charge of the
overall financial and accounting management of the Group.
She is also a member of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee. Ms. Li has over 15 years’ accounting
experience, including three years’ experience gained in
PricewaterhouseCoopers. She holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Business Administration from the Lingnan University and
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHAN Kwan Pak

(February 2011-May 2012; re-appointed in October 2012)

Aged 65, is a member of The Chartered Governance Institute
and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries), holding dual
designations of Chartered Secretary and Chartered Governance
Professional. He is also a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan has
extensive experience in company secretarial practices in respect
of listed companies.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  dERERTKE

SCOPE AND PERIOD OF REPORTING

A major trend for corporate development, sustainability has
become a key topic that draws the attention of stakeholders.
Policies set out in this report have been prepared with
the participation of and upon the consideration by major
stakeholders including shareholders, customers, business
partners and employees to address future challenges.

To achieve sustainability, the Group strives to promote
environmental protection, instilling corporate social
responsibilities to its business and management strategies and
maintaining a culture of sound governance. This report presents
the Group’s sustainability approach and practices from the year
ended 31 March 2022 (the “Year”). This report fully cover the
Group’s operation, which is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), with the aim to inform
stakeholders of the Group’s performance in environmental,
social and governance terms.

BOARD STATEMENT

The Group believes that comprehensive Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) principles will effectively enhance
the Group’s investment value and bring long-term return to
our stakeholders. In order to develop the Company to be a
sustainable enterprise, continuously improve the Group’s ESG
management and performance and gain recognition from capital
market for the Company’s ESG work, the Group has established
an Environmental, Social and Governance Committee (the
“Committee”) during the Year.

The Committee is responsible for directing and reviewing the
development of the Group’s ESG management policies and
strategies to ensure that they are up-to-date, relevant and meets
applicable legal and regulatory requirements; monitoring the
development and implementation of the Group’s ESG objectives,
including setting the Group’s performance targets for ESG
management, reviewing the progress of achieving those targets,
and advising on the actions required to achieve those targets;
reviewing the main external ESG trends and reporting to the
Board the major trends affecting the Group’s ESG policies and
strategies and its objectives setting; directing and reviewing the
identification and prioritization of the materiality of ESG issues
of the Group; reviewing ESG reports and other ESG-related
disclosures, and making recommendations to the Board for
approval.
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The Committee delegates specific tasks to an ESG working
group (the “Working Group”) which comprises members from
relevant departments of the Group. Specific tasks delegated
include preparing annual ESG reports, monitoring ESG
performance, identifying ESG risks and implementing the ESG
activities of the Group in a comprehensive manner.

The Group is committed to constantly reviewing and adjusting
its sustainability policies to satisfy the everchanging needs of our
stakeholders. The Board acknowledges that it has the ultimate
responsibility for the Group’s ESG matters.

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has the
overall responsibility for ensuring effectiveness of the Company’s
ESG strategy and reporting with an aim that the Group can
operate its financial services businesses in a responsible and
sustainable manner.

To reinforce the Board’s ESG management approach and
strategy as well as further enhance ESG governance, the Board
has established the Committee for overseeing and managing
ESG matters specifically. The Committee members comprises
an executive director, independent non-executive directors and
senior management of the Company. Under the Committee,
Working Group is established, which comprises representatives
from relevant departments. Their respective roles and functions
are as follows:
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The Committee

direct and review the development of the Group’s ESG
management policies and strategies to ensure that they
are up-to-date, relevant and meets applicable legal and
regulatory requirements;

monitor the development and implementation of the
Group’s ESG objectives, including setting the Group’s
performance targets for ESG management; review the
progress of achieving those targets, and advise on the
actions required to achieve those targets;

review the main external ESG trends and report to the
Board the major trends affecting the Group’s ESG policies
and strategies and its objectives setting;

direct and review the identification and prioritisation of the
materiality of ESG issues of the Group; and

identify ESG risks and opportunities related to the Group,
assess the impact arising from such risks or opportunities
on the Group, and make recommendations to the Board on
responses to those risks or opportunities.

The Committee will report at least once per year to the Board on
the implementation and the progress made towards achieving
ESG objectives.

Based on the recommendation from the Committee, the Board
will review the progress made towards achieving the ESG-
related goals as well as effectiveness of the management
approach and strategy.

The Working Group
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work through the key performance indicators and the right
tools and resources to handle the ESG issues; and

formulate and execute action plans and ensure execution
by respective teams so as to achieve the ESG-related
goals set by the Board and the Committee.
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REPORTING FRAMEWORK

During the preparation for this ESG Report, the Group has
applied the reporting principles in the ESG Reporting Guide as
the following:

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to identify
material issues during the Year, thereby adopting the confirmed
material issues as the focus for the preparation of this report.
The materiality of issues was reviewed and confirmed by the
Board and the Committee. Please refer to the sections headed
“Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Assessment” for
further details.

Quantitative: The standards and methodologies used in
the calculation of relevant data in this report, as well as the
applicable assumptions were disclosed. The key performance
indicators (“KPI(s)”) data are supplemented by explanatory notes
to establish benchmarks where applicable.

Consistency: The preparation approach of this ESG Report
was substantially consistent with the previous year, and
explanations were provided regarding data with changes in the
scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies.

This report has undergone the internal review process of the
Group and was approved by the Board.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND BEREZ2SEREEMHFTMA

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group is committed to making proactive efforts to AEBHNEGETSHHEHAETEEL
continuously interact with key stakeholder groups. The Group ) - AEBEEFHEREEGKE - W iFEHB
maintains active engagement with its stakeholders, and collects &EEBRBEWEERBEEZER H THHERDER
their feedback through various communication channels to B X% WMAEAEENLENEE -
understand and address their concerns in order to improve the

Group’s operation and practices correspondingly.

Major communication channels Issues of concerns

TEBBERE BxEE

Key stakeholders

TERFNE

Customers Onsite communications Services quality
xR I35 % A BR7%E %=
Emails and mobile applications Customer privacy protection
ERRFHEARER BERILEBIRE
Customer service hotlines
BEPRB AR
Company website
NGIEER
Employees Performance appraisal interviews Employment and labour practices
= 78 RAT 4 5h 4 12 1% & %5 T1& i

Shareholders and
Investors

BERREEE

66

Staff activities

Diversity and equal opportunities

BITEH ZHtRTERSE
Daily communications Training and development
HE R 3% 9l R 3 R

Orientation and training sessions
E A R e

General meetings

RERE

Company website

NGIEERS

Corporate communication documents
N E X

Occupational health and safety

Bx@EEREL S

Corporate governance
PEER

Substainability and profitability
ARFEERERT
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Key stakeholders

Major communication channels

Issues of concerns

ERRFNE

Business Partners and

Suppliers
PERHERMEERN

Community

At

Government and

Regulatory Bodies

B REEHE

TERBBRE

Daily communications
HE RN
Assessments

1

Meetings

& 2%
=i

Community services
1= AR 7
Company website
NGIEER

Social media

R KBS

Regular dialogues
K GE

Meetings

& 2%
= A

Public consultation

N\ R
Aiﬂiuﬁu

Written correspondence

EHAE
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o Services quality and performance
fRisE 2R I[

° Environmentally preferable products
and services

RIREm MR

° Employee volunteering
BIEREY

° Community fundraising
HERER

° Energy conservation
BE R &6 49

° Waste recycling and management
BEMEERAN A RE R

° Anti-corruption/Anti-money laundering
R&5/ Rk
° Compliance with laws and regulations

BT RRRER
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ESG POLICIES

The Group’s ESG policies are based on five basic principles set
out below:

68

To enhance corporate value and focus on shareholders’
return;

To foster financial transparency and boost investors’
confidence;

To cater to customers’ needs and protect customers’
interests;

To develop employees and safeguard employees’ interests;
and

To support environmental protection and seek to give back
to the community.

Environmental

Policies on environment and energy

Environmental protection and energy conservation form
an important part of our corporate social responsibilities.
Apart from full compliance with laws and regulations
relating to environmental protection, the Group also seeks
to prevent pollution, conserve energy and reduce emission,
with a view to achieving sustainability in the course of its
day-to-day operations.

Use of resources

Operating in the financial services sector, the Group
upholds energy conservation and advocates the best
use of resources. Disclosures on emissions and use of
resources primarily relate to the use of electricity, water
and paper in its head office and branch offices, as well
as the greenhouse gas emissions in the course of fuel
consumption by vehicles and the yacht of the Company.
Except for the mentioned emissions and use of resources,
the Group’s business has no direct impact on the
environment and natural resources.
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Environment and natural resources

1.

Greenhouse gases

Scope of greenhouse

gas emissions Sources of emissions

BEREHEREE B HOR
Scope 1
Direct emissions

& [E1

HEHEK

Scope 2

Indirect emissions
g2

B BREN
Scope 3

Other indirect emissions
EE3

H B R ok B

Consumption of paper

N6 B B B I 3 M MY MR LR R

Purchase and use of electricity

Emissions as a
percentage of
total emission

Volume of
emissions

(in tonnes of CO,e)
ERE

(AW = 1k e BHME
2235 54

Consumption of fuel by the Group’s 139.1 12.2%
fleet of vehicles and the yacht

941.2 83.0%

54.0 4.8%

Total
@t

1,134.3 100.0%

During the Year, a total of 1,134.3 tonnes of CO.e,
which mainly comprised carbon dioxide, methane
and nitrous oxide, were emitted from the Group’s
operations as greenhouse gas emissions.

In order to reduce the greenhouse gas emissions,
the Group has set a medium-term target to achieve a
reduction of carbon emissions, together with specific
action plans formulated. In terms of the greenhouse
gas emissions generated by vehicles, the Group will
decide to reduce the non-essential and aging cars
with low fuel efficiency and giving priority to energy-
saving vehicles in the procurement process.
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Electricity

During the Year, the Group consumed 941,179
kilowatt-hours of electricity. To identify opportunities
for increasing energy efficiency, the Group monitors
the energy consumption intensity across its
operations from time to time. The Group has set
the target to achieve a better control and reduction
of electricity consumption by gradually replacing
the existing incandescent tubes with LED lamps
in office areas. Other measures were taken for
energy conservation, including setting the default
mode of printers and computers at energy-saving;
encouraging switching off computers, air-conditioners
and illumination systems during non-office hours
or periods of extended away; and ongoing
improvements to equipment including illumination and
air-conditioning systems to uplift the overall energy
efficiency.

Water

During the Year, the Group consumed approximately
1,315 cubic metres of water. As part of the water
usage fee was included in the management fee paid
to landlord, full data on water consumption are not
available.

The Group continually strengthens water management
to avoid waste of water resources. The pipelines,
drainage and equipment are regularly inspected to
prevent dripping and leakage. The Group targets to
install hands-free faucets or push button faucets and
dual-flush toilets in public washrooms in its offices
and branches. The Group has also posted signages
in public areas and washrooms to strengthen
employees’ water-saving awareness.

£
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Fuel

During the Year, the Group consumed 49,243
litres of petrol and gas oil in its vehicles and yacht,
representing emission of 139.1 tonnes of COe in
aggregate. The Group will reduce the non-essential
and aging cars with low fuel efficiency and giving
priority to energy-saving vehicles in the procurement
process. Also, vehicle and yacht inspection and
maintenance are regularly performed to keep good
efficiency of vehicles and yacht and thus reduce fuel
consumption.

Hazardous wastes and packaging materials

No hazardous wastes or packaging materials are
produced from the business operations of the Group.
In selecting suppliers or cooperation partners, the
Group takes into consideration, among others, their
environmental and energy policies, to maximise
environmental protection and minimise pollution.

Non-hazardous wastes

Non-hazardous wastes produced from the operations
of the Group primarily comprise paper used in
offices, which amounted to a total of approximately
11.2 tonnes of paper and in turn 54.0 tonnes of CO_e
emission during the Year. The recycled papers were
not included in the calculation of GHG emission. To
minimise paper consumption, a number of measures
are in place, including measures to encourage setting
double-sided printing as the default mode and reuse
of paper and so forth.

In recent years, the Group has sought for a paperless
working environment by adopting electronic means
for internal dissemination of information, such
as payroll notices, circulars, memoranda and so
forth. This has saved the use of space, facilitated
the sharing of information on our intranet, and cut
down on the use of paper, and in turn augmented
efficiency in our day-to-day operations. The Group
also encourages its staff to recycle waste paper
if possible, fully use the blank area on the paper
for drafting or other internal purposes and use
notebooks or tablets instead of paper for meetings.
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By partnering with its printing solutions provider, the
Group has adopted “Follow You” print solution in
the head office, helping the Group becoming more
cost efficient through smarter printing. The print
solution enables the Group to achieve environmental
objectives by reducing unclaimed printing, as printing
is released only upon presentation of a staff card
from that particular staff who gives the printing
instruction.

Further, digitised services including electronic
statements, account opening through mobile apps
and account opening through the internet have been
made available. We also use electronic mails and
messaging tools in disseminating latest promotional
materials to our customers. To reduce paper
consumption, the Group also sets a target to switch
to electronic statements instead of receiving paper
statements from counterparties and encourage our
clients to switch to electronic statements from paper
statements by offering commission discount.

We also recommend shareholders to access
information including HKEX announcements and
shareholders’ correspondences via the internet.
The policies for a paperless workplace contribute
to environmental protection as well as saving on
operating expenses.

Measures for green offices

To produce less wastes and recycle resources,
suppliers are regularly arranged to collect used
printing cartridges and toners for recycling purpose,
while recycling bins are placed at its head and branch
offices for collecting used paper.
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Climate Change Impact

The world’s climate has changed significantly in the past
decades — global temperatures have increased and
extreme weather events are becoming more frequent
and severe, which may cause disruptions to business
operations globally, and in turn poses adverse effects to
the macro economy.

The Group mainly engages in financial services business
which does not involve production. The increase in
temperature may lead to an increase in the energy
consumption of the Group’s offices and branches. Natural
disasters, such as typhoon, may damage our properties
and systems, which may result in business interruption.
We have established a backup office with backup systems
in order to maintain normal business operations in case of
natural disasters.

The Group will continue to monitor the potential risks of
climate change and its impacts on the Group’s operations
and customers, and devise and implement preventive and
emergency measures accordingly. Besides, the Group will
continue its efforts to control energy consumption and
carbon emissions.
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B. Social B. ##&
Employment and labour practices EBEREIER
1. Employment 1. EE
The Group believes that a motivated and balanced AEERE  BBEDNNTFHNET
workforce is crucial for building a sustainable EFESREY—ErFENEER
business model and delivering long-term returns. AMERRPOREZFEE -
As at 31 March 2022, the employees of the Group HEZZ--_F=-A=+—8 4%
totalled 262, working in the head office and branches BlEERBEFEWE2HE REBRITR
in Hong Kong. DITIAE ©
The demographics of the Group’s workforce as at 31 HE-_T-_—_FZA=Z+—H8 &&
March 2022 are summarised below: EETERXAZKSTERBMRET
11% 1%
36% 26%
By Employment
By Gender By Age 99% Type
gl BRER RERER
64% 63%
Male @ Female <30 31-50 @ >51 ® Full-time Part-time
] # ES™ Fy
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The Group has a diverse workforce in terms of
gender and age, providing a variety of ideas and
levels of competencies that contribute to the
Group’s success. The Group is firmly committed to
gender equality, and particularly encourages female
participation at managerial and operational levels.

The management believes that employees are
important assets of the Group. Competitive
remuneration and benefit package is provided in
order to attract and retain talents. To ensure that
the Group follows the best-in-class standards,
it regularly reviews the remuneration and benefit
package and benchmark it against its industry
peers. All employees are entitled to discretionary
bonus, medical benefits, annual leaves and other
compassionate leaves, educational subsidies,
examination subsidies and so forth.

To continuously improve employment practices, the
Group’s conducts exit surveys to closely monitor the
turnover rate and gather insights and information from
the employees leaving the Group. This will allow us to
address employees’ concerns and enhance retention
measures.

The turnover rates of the Group’s workforce as at 31
March 2022 are as below:

By Gender By Age
& Rl RER
Male 36% <=30
£

Female 36% 31-50
z

>=51
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To ensure the staff clearly understand their rights
and obligations, the employee handbook and other
policies and guidelines are in place covering the
areas of compensation and dismissal, recruitment,
working hours, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination
and other fringe benefits, etc. The Group has been
reviewing its related policies from time to time to
ensure the Group complies with the latest statutory
requirements. Also, a set of grievance procedures
is also in place, to provide staff with a channel to
confidentially escalate complaints and concerns to
the Human Resources Department or the Chairman
of the Board.

Health and safety

The Group provides a safe and healthy workplace for
its employees in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations such as the “Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance” in Hong Kong.

We care about the physical and mental health of
each and every one of our employees, with frequent
production of posters to remind our employees of
occupational safety and health.

The Group enhances emergency preparedness and
ensures there are well-stocked first-aid kits in offices,
warehouse and branches to protect the health and
safety of employees, in the event that they are injured
at work.

Every case of injury (if any) is required to be reported
to the Human Resources Department and be
individually assessed under the internal guideline
procedures. During the Year, the number of lost
days due to work injuries was 3 days. There were no
reported work-related fatalities in the past three years
including the Year.
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The Group provides medical insurance to its
employees. Nursing rooms are also provided to
accommodate breastfeeding mother employees.
Additionally, in order to improve the air quality in our
workplace, air purifiers are installed at our offices.
Adjustable design work chairs are provided to protect
employees’ neck and back.

Precautions Against Covid-19

The ongoing global outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic poses a health risk for people. The
Group takes the potential health and safety impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic on its employees and
customers very seriously. In order to ensure the
safety and health of all staff, the Group continues
monitoring the situation closely and made its best
efforts to minimize the risk of cross-infection among
staff by comprehensive implementation of various
precautionary measures.

o To provide all employees with COVID-19 swab
test for regular Covid-19 testing before coming
offices, and the Group took further measures
and arranged for its employees to work from
home according to the operational needs;

o To perform compulsory temperature check to
all employees and visitors before entering the
office area;

° To distribute disposable masks, gloves,
sanitizing products to employees and provide
hand sanitizers in office areas;

° To require all employees to wear masks at all
times during work and to report to the Human
Resources Department immediately when they
feel unwell;

° To arrange regular cleaning and disinfection of
all areas to improve the environmental hygiene
of offices; and

° To encourage online video conferences and
telephone conferences while avoiding face-to-
face meetings.
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Development and training

The Group acknowledges that employees are
the most important assets of the Company. To
maintain its leading position in the vibrant and
versatile financial market, the Group encourages
and subsidises employees at different job grades to
enroll and/or participate in development or training
courses in support of their career and professional
development. A policy on Training & Development
Program is in place to deploying responsible officers,
sales, operations and compliance staff with sufficient
skills, knowledge, professional qualifications and
experience for the responsible discharge of their
duties.

During the Year, we provided anti-corruption, anti-
money laundering, cybersecurity, risk management,
compliance and professional development trainings
and all employees had opportunities to receive the
relevant training.
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Trained employees (for the year ended 31 March 2022)

ZHEEEBE-TE-—F=A=+—HLEFE)

Percentage of employees trained by gender
RHERBIHNEIEEES L

Male 100% Female 98%
ES L4

Percentage of employees trained by position grade
REBUSERAINZIEETIL

Management 100% Manager 100% General staff 99%
B8 K Ie ERET

Training Hours (for the year ended 31 March 2022)

BYBB(BE-E-_-F=A=+—HLFE)

Gender

% Bl

Male Female

B 28

5,289.1 Hours (Average: 31.30 Hours) 1,217.0 Hours (Average: 13.09 Hours)
5,289.1/NEr (FF19: 31.30 /)N ) 1,217.0/N B (£15: 13.09 /)N BF)

Position Grade

B &R

Management Manager General staff

ERE FESE E®BET

135.5 Hours 2,790.3 Hours 3,580.3 Hours
(Average: 16.94 Hours) (Average: 31.00 Hours) (Average: 21.83 Hours)

135.5/NEF (F15: 16.94/)N ) 2,790.3/NBF (F15: 31.00 /NEF)  3,580.3/NEF (F19: 21.83 /)N BF)
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Labour standards

Recruitment are conducted by the Human Resources
Department of the Group according to relevant labour
laws and regulations, including but not limited to, the
“Employment Ordinance” in Hong Kong. Personal
data collected in the course of recruitment are only
used for selecting suitable candidates.

The Group fully complies with relevant laws and
regulations in related regions concerning prevention
of forced or child labour. In the recruitment process,
the Group implements appropriate procedures
to ensure that employment adheres to minimum
age provisions of applicable laws. The Group also
prohibits any form of forced labour. The age and
identity of its employees are verified and employment
contracts are entered into with each of its employees.

We endeavour to provide a harassment-free
working environment to employees. Any types of
discrimination is prohibited in the Company. We have
diversity policy in place to foster equal opportunities
among the workplace that ensures all employees
treat others in dignity and respect and employees
shall not be discriminated by sex, pregnancy, marital
status, disability, family circumstances and race,
while we follow the principle of meritocracy when
recruiting, hiring, training and promoting employees
regardless of their background. A candidate’s life
experience, knowledge, inventiveness, innovation,
self-expression, unique capabilities and talent are
what we seek. Employees facing any forms of
discrimination, inequality and harassment can lodge
complaints following the complaint procedures.

REBWANBERIBERBES T
EREER BEETRREBNUE
EEF)EITHRIE - TREBEPI
ENEAERREARBRAEEA
BobINMEFAZERESESE
B BRI EHBRAEEST
BHETRETWHIBFR o

AEEERETEMBILEEBILL
BRBBSBRETINERNZER - &
REERT  AEREEHEEEREFIA
BRYXEEITAERLIEZNRZE
FRME - REBEIFZE TR
BB c HEENFRNINARE
IRE YREBEEERI TRES
B

BRI REEREEAXERENT
tFERE - ERARR AL LEE[AER
MR - HPREERHTFERS
REZTTICHE  BRAEEENREE
5 RETERAMA - 22 BHR
AR BIR -~ RKEMN R KT E
XA XERE - B HIIRE
FOE - BTRARAHRA g
RESEMAMZEZER - HMEENE
EBEMEBOALLSR - F&E - 8l
& BIE - RERSD  BEARER
B - R B R BERPZAMER -
PRFHFREE  AIUREBERFE
B A AR AR ER -

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2021/22



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  dERERTKE

Operating practices
1.  Supply chain management

The Group attaches great importance to the
mutually beneficial and long-term relationship with
its suppliers. In its procurement policies, the Group
adheres to the principle of “cost effectiveness”, under
which high-quality customer services are ensured
while costs are minimised. Different departments stay
in good communication with its suppliers, conduct
review and checking processes from time and
time. In making decisions for procurement, factors
including historical price quotations, product offering,
service offering, performance and environmental
and social policies by suppliers are all taken into
consideration, so that suppliers adhering to similar
notions and offering reasonable prices are selected.

The Group will also be alert to whether there is
unfavourable news of its engaged suppliers on the
environmental aspect. In the event of such news, the
Group will internally discuss the need to change the
supplier.

The ESG risk assessment on the suppliers should
be carried out on an ongoing basis during the
contract term. In case of any material negative
news or behaviour of an engaged supplier, the
relevant department should conduct an immediate
assessment and determine the necessary follow-up
actions.

Number of Suppliers by Location

BB oW EETHE

LEEM
1. HERERE
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AE RBBRRAITKAEAR RS BR
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REREHEEBRHEER -
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H174 - HEMPAIRETARFER
REFMBORETE -

For the year ended
31 March 2022
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Hong Kong BB

Other Regions H it [=
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Product responsibility

Internal control and compliance procedures are
in place to ensure compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations by the Group’s frontline staff
members. The Group also provides relevant training
to its employees, thereby ensuring that employees
apprehend the nature and risks underlying financial
services and that they are equipped with professional
knowledge sufficient for them to provide the
most suitable advice to their customers under all
circumstances. Financial services provided by the
Group are not subject to recalls for health and safety
reasons.

Customer opinions/complaints

With clear black-and-white procedures within the
Group, all disputes and complaints are investigated
and resolved in an impartial and rapid manner.
General complaints are dealt with by the customer
services department, which replies accordingly
to the respective customers. Compliance-related
complaints are dealt with independently by the
compliance department, which replies accordingly
to the respective customers and/or relevant law
enforcement bodies. During the Year, there were 11
complaints received from our clients. All complaints
were duly resolved with satisfactory results.

Laws and regulations

The Group has obtained all licences, qualifications
and permits required of its business operations. The
compliance department is responsible for ensuring
that business operations comply with laws and
regulations. Updates on relevant laws and regulations
are notified to relevant operating units and employees
from time to time. During the Year, there had been no
violation of any laws or regulations on the part of the
Group that would have or would likely have material
adverse effect on the Group.
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Privacy of personal data

For the protection of privacy in respect of personal
data, the Group has developed its policies for the
protection of personal data on the basis of the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. With due regards
to personal data privacy, the Group is committed to
fully enforcing and observing the principles of data
protection as well as all relevant provisions in the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. The Group seeks
to ensure that appropriate measures are in place to
prevent the misuse or leakage of personal data, and
shall hold such personal data only for the purpose
of such collection. Relevant staff are provided with
adequate training in compliance with applicable
laws on data privacy protection, to strengthen their
awareness and to protect personal data against loss,
unauthorised access, use, modification or disclosure.
Access to the customer database is limited to
authorised staff, whilst authentication is required
before accessing the data. To reduce the risk of
identity theft, the Group takes appropriate measures
to dispose of documents that contain customer
information.

The Group’s Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance/
Privacy Policy Statement are made available on its
website to disclose the relevant protection policies to
its customers.

Protecting Intellectual Property Rights

The Group recognises the importance of intellectual
property rights (“IPR”) and makes effort to protect
IPR and the confidentiality of proprietary information
provided to or owned by us during business activities.
The Group has also formulated relevant measures
for its own IPR protection. We would consider to
take legal actions for infringement of IPR cases after
assessing the materiality and impact, competition and
reputation issues.
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Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption/Anti-money laundering ("“AML”)

To build its corporate culture and procedures that
stay in line with laws and regulations as well as
ethics, the Group has established policies on anti-
corruption and AML, which stipulate procedures for
screening customers, “know your customers” policy,
rules for archiving and rules for whistleblowing in
case of suspected deals.

During the Year, anti-corruption training was provided
to directors, management and other general staff.
There was no legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees during
the Year.

Gifts and benefits

The Group has developed its policies against
bribery and the receipt or provision of gifts. In all
circumstances, employees must declare any receipt
of gifts or benefits to the compliance department,
which would advise based on the circumstances,
for example whether such gifts or benefits can
be accepted, should be rejected or other ways of
handling.
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Policies for handling internal complaints

We have policies for handling internal complaints,
whereby employees may report to the Chairman of
the Board any improper behaviours on an anonymous
basis. Such improper behaviours include but are not
limited to:

° improper behaviours involving financial
reporting;
° improper behaviours involving internal control;

° behaviours in violation of any applicable laws;

° behaviours posing threat to the safety or health
of the others; and

° wilful concealment of any one of the above.

Whistleblowers do not face intimidation, retaliation or
improper disciplinary actions in any form as a result
of reporting the aforesaid behaviours. The Company
uses its best endeavours to keep all disclosed
information confidential and to handle the same in a
prudent manner. Without consent of the respective
employees, the Company will not disclose the identity
of the reporting employees. However, under certain
circumstances such as where it becomes necessary
to initiate litigation procedures due to investigation,
the Company may be required by law or be obliged
under law to disclose the identity of the reporting
employees. In such event, all reasonable steps
will be taken by the Company to ensure that such
employees will not get affected. Any acts to harass or
affect the whistleblowers will be considered serious
misconducts and once established would result in
termination of employment.
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Customer services

Dedicated customer services have bestowed on
the Group trust and support from its customers.
With clear and black-and-white internal procedures,
the Group impartially and rapidly investigates and
resolves all disputes and complaints. As an integrated
financial services provider, we have set up service
teams that are comprised of different professionals
to provide diversified financial services, including
securities brokerage, margin financing, commodities
and futures brokerage, bullion trading, forex trading
and so forth. As of 31 March 2022, 110 of the
Group’s employees were persons licenced by the
Securities and Futures Commission to engage in one
or more of the regulated activities.

During the Year, the Group was granted the following
accolades with its caring and professional service
attitudes:

—  The HKEX Awards — Top Breakthrough Broker
2021/22 — L&l Product Turnover, The HKEX
Equity Derivatives Awards 2021/22 — Top
Active Trader — Futures & Options — After-
Hours Trading, The HKEX Equity Derivatives
Awards 2021/22 — Top Broker — Stock
Futures & Options, The HKEX Equity Derivatives
Awards 2021/22 —Top Broker — Equity Index
Futures & Options, The HKEX Equity Derivatives
Awards 2021/22 — Top Broker — Weekly Index
Options, The HKEX FIC Awards 2021/22 —
Top Broker — Listed Bond Market, The HKEX
Equity Derivatives Awards 2021/22 — Top
Breakthrough Broker — MSCI Taiwan Index
Futures & Options

—  “Outstanding Securities and Futures Trading
Apps” and “Outstanding listed securities and
futures companies” in Elite Enterprise Awards
2021 by Oriental Daily News

—  Most Popular Brokerage Brand Award by TVB
Weekly
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— Gold Award of the ESG Rising Star and Silver
Award of the Special Awards (Criteria set by
Fund Managers) at the ESG Achievement
Awards by the Institute of ESG & Benchmark

— Best IPO Service Award in Golden Central
Awards by Zhitongcaijing/RoyalFlush
Information Network

Community
Community investment

Recognising the responsibility of a good corporate citizen
to contribute to the community, the Group has long
maintained its eagerness to serve and give back to the
community, with active participation in various community
activities. The management of the Group advocates staff
participation in philanthropic deeds, to arouse attention to
the community and drive further participation from other
people in community services.

As Hong Kong has been ravaged by COVID-19, Mr. Yip
Mow Lum, Chairman of the Group, provided some support
for the frontline medical workers to assist in the fight
against the virus, by donating HK$30 million to the Hospital
Authority of Hong Kong in the name of “Yip Mow Lum
Charity Fund” for three consecutive years.

During the Year, Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Group,
donated HK$500,000 to support Caritas Hong Kong in
the name of “Yip Mow Lim Charity Fund” to support the
underprivileged.

During the Year, the Group has made a donation of
HK$250,000 to The Chinese International School
Foundation Limited, in order to support the all-round
development of students. The Group also donated
HK$100,000 to UNICEF Hong Kong in support of the
implementation of A Gift of Warmth Plan, to contribute to
the protection of children in the world suffering disasters.

During the Year, the Group sponsored The Community
Chest BEA Charity Golf Day 2021 with a donation of
HK$45,000 for mental health services provided by the
Chest’s member agencies.
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The Group has also been awarded the following
certificates of appreciation and commendation:

— 2021 Certificate of Appreciation for the East Asia
Charity Golf Day by the Community Chest

—  Certificate of Appreciation for the Interesting and
Fun Expo by the Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange
Society

— 10 Year Plus Caring Company Logo granted by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service

Caring Company Scheme
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance and complying with regulatory
requirements, to secure and uplift confidence of shareholders
as well as potential investors. In order to meet expectations
of the public and shareholders and fulfill its commitment to
good corporate governance, the Board reviews the Company’s
corporate governance practices from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2022 (the “Year”), the Company
has applied the principles of, and has complied with, all the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises six Directors, half of whom are non-
executive directors independent from the management. The
Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategies of
the Company, ensuring the availability of sufficient funds and
resources for implementing such strategies, overseeing the
financial position of the Company, and complying with laws and
regulations in the course of business operations. All members
of the Board possess the skills and experience required by
the businesses of the Group. As at 31 March 2022, the Board
comprised three executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum
(Chairman), Mr. Hui Yik Bun (CEO) and Mr. Chan Wing Shing,
Wilson; and three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fali,
Joseph. The biographical details of the current Directors are set
out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
section of this annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and CEO should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. To balance power and authority, Mr. Yip
Mow Lum acts as the Chairman of the Company, whereas Mr.
Hui Yik Bun acts as CEO.

Their respective responsibilities are clearly established. The
Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board properly
discharges its responsibilities and conforms to good corporate
governance practices and procedures. In addition, he is also
responsible for ensuring that all Directors are sufficiently briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and that all Directors
receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner. The CEO is responsible for day-to-day management
and administration of the Group’s business, including the
implementation of significant strategies formulated by the Board.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

The Board, under the leadership of the Chairman, is responsible
for formulating the Company’s corporate strategy, overseeing
the management of the Company and evaluating the
business performance, with the ultimate aim to maximise the
shareholders’ value and long-term success of the Company.
The management is responsible for day-to-day management
and operation of the Group within the authority delegated by the
Board.

In addition, the Board has established five Board committees
namely, the Audit Committee, the Risk Management Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee as
well as the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
and has delegated to these committees various functions and
responsibilities set out in their respective terms of reference.
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During the Year, the Company was in full compliance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules, with three independent
non-executive Directors on the Board throughout the VYear.
In addition, Mr. Yu Yun Kong and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph
have the appropriate professional qualifications of accounting
and related financial management experience. In addition, the
Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence to the
Group pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson is a nephew of Mr. Yip Mow
Lum. Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Mr. Hui Yik Bun and Mr. Chan Wing
Shing, Wilson concurrently are directors of several subsidiaries
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, there are no other
relationships between the Board members, including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company acknowledges the importance of diversity at
the Board in contributing to the quality of performance of the
Company. The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy.
In determining the composition of the Board, the Company
takes into account a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background
or professional experience. Appointment of Directors is solely
based on meritocracy. The Board Diversity Policy is among
the criteria used in selecting members to join the Board.
Furthermore, the Company also takes into consideration its
own business model and specific needs form time to time in
determining the optimal composition of the Board.
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BOARD PRACTICES

The Board holds at least four regular meetings annually at
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s
business development, operations and financial performance.
Notice of at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular
Board meetings. All regular Board meetings adhere to a
formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed to
the Board and the Directors are invited to include matters of
special concerns for discussion in the agenda. All Directors
have access to the Board papers and all related materials, and
are provided with adequate information by the management to
enable the Board to make informed decisions on the matters to
be discussed. The minutes of the Board meetings have sufficient
details of the matters discussed at Board meetings which are
prepared and kept by the Company Secretary and are opened
for inspection by any Director. The Directors are free to access
to the management for enquiries about further information, when
required, and the Directors can obtain independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense.

During the Year, four regular Board meetings and two general
meeting were held. Details of the attendance of the Directors to
the regular Board meetings and general meeting are as follows:

Name of Director

Executive Directors: BITES:

Mr. Yip Mow Lum BRMEE

Mr. Hui Yik Bun AFEW R E

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson B oK BB 5T A
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIFHTEE:
Mr. Yu Yun Kong R ENM 5 A&

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun A)E 4 3 A&

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph % B 18 St A

EEEER

EXEEFRIBITOREHER  WEBFE
T—R SRAREZEGER 2ERME
B -REFEMATHER 2REFHE
REVIARFEREN  FMEECHEETSSH
HRELAZRE ARIHLGRERAHRESS
BZ EFTAREETNARRSEAESE
o rRERHARCHESEXHRMESR
MR ERETERERSEN  HEEE
ARGRFRELMNBRE EFSRHLIER
HHACREFEERTAIR TR YHA
AWEEBEIET ENEFHIUEHESS
EERLE - WO EFAUBERBAEEEN
EHE-FER EFTAUNEABLIEXEA
TZER HBEEBRBAARRAE-

AEE EFQCLBETHAEEEETHEER
MABRRAE - SEFNEFETHERRK
RABZHERFRAOT:

Attendance/

Attendance/ number of
number of board CELEIEL
meetings held meeting held
HEBITESEE HEBORE
ERZRE REZRE

4/4 1/2

4/4 2/2

4/4 1/2

4/4 2/2

4/4 2/2

4/4 2/2
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package from the company
secretary ensuring that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operation, business, the relevant laws
and regulations, the Listing Rules and governance policies.
The Company Secretary also provides the updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant
legal and regulatory requirements to the Board from time to
time.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. During the Year, all Directors
participated in continuous professional development through
reading materials on regulatory updates, director’s duties and
responsibilities and corporate governance matters and attending
relevant seminar(s) or course(s) provided by professional bodies.
All Directors have provided the Company with a record of the
relevant training undertaken during the Year as summarized
below:

Name of Director

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Yip Mow Lum ERMEE

Mr. Hui Yik Bun TR EE

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson BR ok 3 2k A&
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Yu Yun Kong RENM & A&

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun AIE#E &
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph B S

BABLZEREBERAR | —FT——/ ——FFR

BENZEESHERATAWERTE2E  E
AREBOBIAXN - EREHARF ZERE
X% HBARROAR  EMARRRERBRRAE
LT - RRARENETRKEESEFSHN
EHRAREMBREREREERE R
RNERRESD -

o ARBPEEEBEREE2EFEFTE
Bl BMEEFHEMERRERRAE - XA
FEA 2REZFEMNECHEETEN &
EBENBEERCEERETENOME AR
MEXRBRENEBATSARE 28K
BEXUR 2BEFCRARFRERAKSF
BETZHEBEIMRRE  SawT:

Type of trainings

BIEE
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RBEN EBR HHRE MERALEE
v/ v/ v/
v/ v/ v/
v/ v/ v/
v/ v/ v/
v/ v/ v/
v/ v/ v/
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ACCESS TO INFORMATION BY DIRECTORS

In relation to regular Board meetings, notice of at least 14 days
shall be given to Directors allowing them to have sufficient time
to participate. Meanwhile, Agendas and meeting documents
are sent to all Directors 3 days prior to the respective meeting
to ensure that Directors have sufficient time to familiarize
themselves with the matters to be discussed and to play their
roles of supervision. For meetings of committees under the
Board, notice shall also be given to Directors in accordance with
the requirement specified in terms of reference of respective
committee, and agendas and meeting documents are also sent
to all Directors 3 days prior to the respective meeting.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and financial information, and also entitled to make
enquiry to the management regarding operating data and
financial information of the Company. The management must
submit the information requested by the Directors within
reasonable time so that the Board can play its role effectively.

Further, the Company provides all Directors with monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, financial position and
prospects, so that Directors are well aware of the affairs of the
Group and can in turn perform their duties under the Listing
Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a fixed term of three years, which will
automatically be renewable for one successive year, and will
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party
giving the other prior notice in writing (not less than three
months’ notice for Mr. Yip Mow Lum and Mr. Hui Yik Bun; and
not less than twelve months’ notice for Mr. Chan Wing Shing,
Wilson). They are subject to retirement from office by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at annual general meetings in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”).

CG Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.
Each of the three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are appointed for a fixed term of one year, which will
automatically be renewable for one successive year, and will
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party
by giving the other party a three months’ prior notice in writing.
All three independent non-executive Directors are also subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at
the annual general meetings of the Company according to the
provisions of the Articles.

According to the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the current Directors, or if there are not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at least
once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for
re-election. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and shall be subject
to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries of each Director, all the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the Year.

COMPLIANCE MANUAL

The compliance manual of the Company has been prepared by
the Company with reference to relevant regulatory guidelines
and other industry best practices, setting out ethical standards,
values and specific obligations on topics such as dealing in
securities, anti-money laundering and personal benefits, thereby
ensuring that all Directors, management members and staff
members abide by the ethics and integrity in compliance with
standards of the Company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong,
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. None of them
are involved in the day-to-day management of the Company. Mr.
Yu Yun Kong is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
financial information (including the Company’s financial
statements, annual reports, interim reports and major comments
on financial reporting contained in the financial statements),
examining the Company’s financial reporting system and
procedures for internal supervision and control, and making
recommendations to the Board on matters regarding the
appointment of external auditors and the fixing of the audit fee,
etc. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.

HEXZGZBEETH

B

ARBCRM TR & Tz EWHET
ABFETESXZNEESTA(FEEFH])
EREFETESRZIZTIATH - BKARE
EELERETRR  2REFHEHER  KF
RAFEANEEEETRESR -

R FM

ARR2REANEEHRIREMRAE 2 &E
FRBMEARRZERTM - ZFMEABBNE
BElr RABERMLANGZSZ 2 BREEE -
BEBUALABEE tMERE2EBES T
BEERBTITHEANAARAREZEERH

= o
=]

EEERT2ZE8T
EREES
BREERM-AREBMAR  2HHRBULFE

WITES DR AROMEL REATELE
REBESE REABSEARARFZBAEE
B RAMMELERELZEGZER -

ERZEGRAARHARRIZUBKEHN (BEXR
RAEZHBRER  FERE THRELEH
MBBRFAEFAPBERRIERER)  BE
ARRZHMBHRBRRRETANEE R EE
ZREF UAERREIEZBREZERS
FENEFSRMER BERZBEGEREMR
RER UNEITHE -

96 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2021/22



Corporate Governance Report

ERERME

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during
the Year is set out as follows:

o reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2021;

° reviewed the interim financial statements of the Company
for the six months ended 30 September 2021;

o reviewed the effectiveness of the accounting and financial
reporting function of the Group; and

o reviewed and recommended the Board on the re-
appointment of external auditor.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:

Name of Director

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman)
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that

KPMG, Certified Public Accountants (“KPMG”), be nominated for

re-appointment as the external auditor of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises five members,
namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board and Mr. Hui
Yik Bun, an executive Director and the CEO, together with three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong,
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yu Yun
Kong is the chairman of the Risk Management Committee.

The major duties of the Risk Management Committee are to
review the risk management and internal control systems other
than the financial control and reporting system and to consider
major investigation findings on the risk management and
internal control matters of the Company. The Risk Management
Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the Risk Management
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system;
and

° reviewed the risk register to identify, mitigate and monitor
significant risks, including environmental, social and
governance risks.

A Risk Management Committee meeting was held during the

Year. Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as
follows:

Name of Director
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Attendance/
number of Risk
Management
Committee

meeting held
HERTRE R
EEZEEER
ZR¥

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) REM ST E(EE) 11
Mr. Yip Mow Lum BEXMEE 1/1
Mr. Hui Yik Bun AR R AL 1/1
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun IR i e 11
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph % B8 5 A 1/1
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four members, namely
Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, together with three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr.
Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yip Mow Lum
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among others,
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s strategy; reviewing
the Board’s diversity policy, as appropriate; and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
the Board’s diversity policy, and the progress on achieving
the objectives; identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on selection of individual
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the CEO; and determining the policy for
nomination of Directors. The Nomination Committee is provided
with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the structure, size, diversity of composition and
succession of the Board;

° reviewed the independence of the independent non-
executive Director; and

° made recommendation to the Board on the re-election of
Directors.

BARSETHMEEERIA | —T——/ ——FFH

REZEE

REZEEHUEKBEAN DA REFSE
FBEEMEER=ZZBIIFATESTRYME
£ BB EERZBESE c BERMEL
RIEREREEERE -

REZEGZBEERELIEFRTESFSL
RE - ANBRAR(BREEE ABNRERET
| YHEMRESARRKEMREESS
FHZEHRIER EEEBATRIES
EREEZTIEHR RIEFSE/AATZHR
MHEZAHEREMERER : WEAKS
BEBAEEERZIAL  UHERBBEHEA
THEEEIREMESTSRHER FTEB
VYHEPTEEZBIMN REETZERETE
EARERE(LEREERITRAE) #EE
MEFSRHEZ ARRTRABFIHR -
REZECERHAREER UETTHE -

REZBENAFEZTEHAMT :
e RIEFEZRE A AKZEMER
A AERTE

s IEBUIFNTEFZIBIMN R

e NEREFTNEFSRMHAEZ-

99



Corporate Governance Report

ERERME

A Nomination Committee meeting was held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:
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Attendance/

number of

Nomination

Committee

meeting held

HE BITRE

ZEE8R

Name of Director ZRE

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman) ERMNEE(FE) 11

Mr. Yu Yun Kong R ENM % & 11

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun A EMEFT A 1/1

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph & B8 e A 11
Nomination Policy RBEBEBX

The nomination policy aims to set out the nomination criteria
and procedures to nominate, select and appoint (including the
re-election thereof) suitable candidates to be a director of the
Company.

The selection criteria in assessing the suitability of potential
candidates includes, but not limited to, their character
and integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge,
experience, expertise and measurable objectives set out in the
board diversity policy.

The nomination procedures for each appointment and re-
election of Directors shall be evaluated using a substantially
similar process and shall be fair and transparent. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing this policy to
ensure its effectiveness.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises four members,
namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, and three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr.
Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yu Yun Kong
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for, among others,
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy; reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Director and
senior management; making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive Directors; considering
salaries or fees paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group; and ensuring that no Director or any of
his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the Directors’ fees and made recommendation to
the Board; and

° reviewed the current remuneration package of the
executive Directors and senior management and made
recommendation to the Board.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
Year are set out in note 9 to the financial statements in this
annual report. The Directors’ emoluments are determined
with reference to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and the prevailing market rates. The emolument
policy of the employees of the Group is set up on the basis
of their performance, qualifications and competence, as well
as market trends. The work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year included the review and approval of
remuneration scheme of the Group and the remuneration of all
Directors and submission of the same to the Board.
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A Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:
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Attendance/

number of

Remuneration

Committee

meeting held

HEBITEHMN

ZEEER

Name of Director ZIRE

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) REMELE(FERE) 1M

Mr. Yip Mow Lum HEERMEE 11

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun A EMEFT A 1/1

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph % B 48 55 A 11

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee R HERERZES

The Board set up the Environmental, Social and Governance BEE&€W_T - _F=AKVIERE HSLER
(“ESG”) Committee in March 2022. The ESG Committee (U& R oHERERNZES c RE - HE2kE

currently comprises five members, namely, Mr. Hui Yik Bun, an
executive Director and the CEO, together with three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto
Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph, and the Chief Financial
Officer, Ms. Li Wan Mei. Mr. Hui Yik Bun is the chairman of the
ESG Committee.

The major duties of the ESG Committee are to direct and review
the development of the Group’s ESG management policies and
strategies to ensure that they are up-to-date, relevant and meets
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, to monitor the
development and implementation of the Group’s ESG objectives
and to report and make recommendations to the Board.
The ESG Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for, inter alia, developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report. This corporate
governance report has been reviewed by the Board in discharge
of its corporate governance function.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management whose names appear in the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section of
this annual report for the Year:

20,000,001-25,000,000
15,000,001-20,000,000

A\ Ay NAQ: WA
m%%ﬁ:/n Be

EEe R (EPERAHEMEHNARRMN T
EERARRMESR RINEEEELSAE
BABMNBINHEEXRR BENEEQ
AEETEARMEERE T ENBRRMER
EHARBAETTRNERRNEEERRSE
RZWE - AEEERABRECHEETSERNMU
BITECEERBE -

EE SREBABHMH

TRINEAEREENSRERELHE] 4
CEERBREREABRAER 25 MAR

Number of

persons

AE

10,000,001-15,000,000 1
5,000,001-10,000,000 1
1-5,000,000 [5)
Total 42 8

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements for each financial period, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company, and
of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
financial statements for the Year, the Board has selected
suitable accounting policies and has applied them consistently,
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards which are pertinent to
its operations and relevant to the financial statements, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and
has prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kwan Pak, the Company Secretary, is an external
service provider and was appointed by the Board. He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered and Certified
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators). He
reports to the Chairman and CEO and assists the Board in
functioning effectively. All the Directors could have access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary at any time
in relation to their duties and operation of the Board. During
the Year, he undertook not less than 15 hours of professional
training to update his knowledge and skills.

The primary contact person with the Company Secretary during
the Year was Ms. Li Wan Mei, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

During the Year, KPMG, the external auditor of the Group,
provided the following services to the Group:

RAWE

NEAMERLEBALERINERBERE BE
FEZRME - BAREBHAREAMAEER
SENNBERANERGNEHRARIAELS
(ARFANMERITBRABRRAS®)ER - RAE
FRITHERER IHBESSABERE -
MEEEONBERAEBRENEEZSENREE
AABRIMESKERRRY - AFE - RE#
EC2ET DN ZEREI - NEHHE
A R BRE o

AERERRAMENTIEBRBARARRY A
EFHENE-

B A% BLED

AEE AEBZIIBZEMEFSHRAAEE
REHIAT IRTS -

HK$’000
Service rendered Fr 12 14t AR 7% T T
Audit services ERZRE
Annual audit FEEZ 1,486
Non-audit services FEZRB
Interim review R B 25 () 247
Taxation service %R 61
Tax advisory service W HBARE 75
Total @st 1,869
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has ultimate responsibility to establish and maintain
adequate risk management and internal control systems and to
review their effectiveness. Hence, such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risk

Pursuant to the Group’s framework, senior management is
primarily responsible for designing and implementing the
policies and procedures of internal controls, while the Board
and the Risk Management Committee oversee the actions of
senior management and review the effectiveness of the controls
established on an annual basis in respect of the financial year.

Risk management of the Group is a continuous process carried
out at all levels of the Group. Each management team is required
to identify the risks in their division faces and classify them into
appropriate categories. All risks identified are given a risk rating
which is evaluated based on the likelihood and consequence
of the risks. Mitigation measures and plans are then developed
based on the control gaps evaluated and the predetermined risk
appetite to manage the risks to an acceptable level.

All risks identified and the corresponding mitigation measures
are recorded in the relevant risk register to facilitate review of the
senior management, the Risk Management Committee and the
Board on an ongoing basis.

Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit function for the Year has been
performed by the Internal Audit Department which has
unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s
business activities and is responsible for quarterly monitoring
and reviews on internal and operational controls. They directly
report to the Chairman of the Board and the Risk Management
Committee.

The Risk Management Committee and the Board have
confirmed that there are no fundamental deficiencies with
material adverse consequences.
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Internal Control System

For the Year, the Board has, through management, the Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The review covered all material controls over financial,
operational and compliance issues, risk management,
information systems security, the effectiveness of financial
reporting and compliance with the Listing Rules.

In view of the improvements made to the systems and the
appropriate measures taken, the Board considered that the
systems are effective and adequate.

The Board has also reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Board has adopted the Disclosure of Inside Information
Manual to handle and disseminate inside information to comply
with the requisite inside information disclosure requirements as
specified under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
Listing Rules.

Dividend Policy

The dividend policy aims to set out key criteria on payment of
dividends of the Company.

Payment of dividends shall remain to be determined at the
sole discretion of the Board of the Company, except the final
dividend shall be subjected to shareholders’ approval at general
meeting.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take
into account, inter alia, the operating results, cash flow,
financial condition and capital requirements of the Group and
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
The Company’s distribution of dividends shall also be subject
to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles as well as all applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The dividend policy will be reviewed from time to time. The
dividend policy allows the Board to declare special dividends
from time to time in addition to the interim and/or annual
dividends. There is no guarantee that any particular amount of
dividends will be distributed for any specific periods.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS i% R A
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Procedures for convening an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles,
any one or more shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can deposit a written request to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary at Head Office
of the Company at 10/F, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also
put forward proposal(s) at general meetings in the same
manner.

The Company will verify the request with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Board will be asked to convene an EGM by serving
sufficient notice to all Shareholders in accordance with the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules and the Articles.

Such EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of the requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene an EGM,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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. Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders are welcome to send in any written enquiries
to the Board for the attention of the Company Secretary
by post to the head office of the Company at 10/F, Wing
On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong. The Company Secretary would direct the enquiries
received to appropriate Board Member(s) or the Chairman
of the Board Committee(s) who is in charge of the areas of
concern referred therein for further handling. The Board,
assisted by the Company Secretary, would make its best
efforts to ensure that all such enquiries are addressed in a
timely manner.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’
relationship with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has
compiled a Shareholders Communication Policy and established
various channels of communication with its shareholders, such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press releases
and announcements of the latest development of the Company
in a timely manner. The annual general meetings provide an
opportunity for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
Moreover, resolutions are proposed at annual general meetings
on each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Directors and details of the proposed resolutions are
set out in a circular.

The financial and other information relating to the
Group has been published on the websites of the
HKEXnews (https:/www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(https://www.bsgroup.com.hk).
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The Board of Directors is pleased to present their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding,
while the principal activity of the Group is the provision of
financial services, including securities broking, margin financing,
commodities & futures broking, bullion trading and leveraged
foreign exchange trading.

ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

Details of the analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit for the
Year contributed by operating segments are set out in note 12 to
the financial statements of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the Year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by
the Group, an analysis of the Group’s financial key performance,
particulars of important events affecting the Group during the
Year, and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 31 to 54 and the environmental
policies can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 62 to 88 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has
a significant impact on the businesses and operations of the
Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success depends on the support from key
stakeholders including employees and customers.

The Group provides a harmonious working environment to
employees and ensures all of them are reasonably remunerated.
The Company regularly reviews and updates its policies on
remuneration and benefits, training as well as occupational
health and safety.

The Group has the mission to provide excellent customer service
while maintaining long term profitability and business growth.
The Group pays close attention to various stakeholders and
maintains frequent communication with them, with a view to fully
understanding and listening to their appeals and making positive
responses based on the actual circumstances of the Group.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit and affairs of the Group for the Year are set out in the
financial statements on pages 137 to 231 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
10.00 HK cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2022,
subject to the approval of the final dividend by the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”)
to be held on Friday, 19 August 2022. If approved, the final
dividend will be paid to the Company’s shareholders on Friday,
9 September 2022. Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 26 August 2022
will be entitled to the proposed final dividend.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the AGM, from Monday, 15 August 2022 to Friday, 19
August 2022 (both days inclusive), during this period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to attend and vote at the
AGM, shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration, not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 12 August 2022. The AGM will be held on
Friday, 19 August 2022.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO THE PROPOSED FINAL
DIVIDEND

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for
the purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, from Thursday, 25 August 2022 to
Friday, 26 August 2022 (both days inclusive), during this period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, shareholders should ensure that
all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (and
with effect from 15 August 2022 onwards, at 17th Floor, Far
East Finance Centre, No. 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong) for
registration, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 24 August
2022.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 26(c) to the financial statements of this annual
report.
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DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVE

The reserves of the Company are distributable to the equity
shareholders subject to the provisions of the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution the Company is able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 March 2022, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$753,769,000 (2021: HK$746,407,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to HK$1,545,000 (2021: HK$395,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five years ended 31 March 2022 are set out in the “Five-
year Financial Summary” section on page 232 of this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the relevant laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Apart from those disclosed in the “Share Option Scheme” below,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into during the Year
or subsisted at end of the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally approved and adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 4 August 2010. The Scheme
was effective for 10 years from 25 August 2010 and hence it
expired on 24 August 2020. All share options under the Scheme
have lapsed. During the Year, the Company did not have any
share option scheme.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2022
are set out in note 19 to the financial statements of this annual
report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the percentage of the Group’s revenue
attributable to the Group’s largest client and the five largest
clients in aggregate were 1.5% and 5.0% (2021: 0.7% and
2.8% respectively) respectively. The Group’s principal activities
are providing securities, commodities and futures brokerage,
margin financing, bullion trading and leveraged foreign exchange
trading financial services. In the Board’s opinion, the Group has
no major suppliers due to the nature of the Group’s principal
activities.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, during the Year, none
of the Directors nor any of their close associates nor any
shareholders of the Company (which to the best knowledge of
the Directors, who owns more than 5% of the number of issued
shares of the Company) had any interest in any of the Group’s
five largest customers.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group has a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Particulars
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme is set out in note 24 to
the financial statements of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is
to ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they
receive appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of
performance.

Employees’ remuneration are determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experiences,
performance and market pay level.

Details of the Director’s emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the Year are set out in notes 9 and
10 to the financial statements of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman)
Mr. Hui Yik Bun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Yu Yun Kong
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph

In accordance with Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Hui Yik Bun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph
will, retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Company as at the date of this annual report are set out in
the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section
on pages 55 to 61 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every
Director shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done or about the execution of their duty or
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Group has arranged
appropriate insurance covers relevant legal actions against the
directors. The level of such insurance coverage is reviewed
annually.

INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions” and
“Material Related Party Transactions” as set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statement in this annual report, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or its holding companies or controlling shareholders
or any of its respective subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or an entity connected with a Director is or was
materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions” and
“Material Related Party Transactions” as set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statement in this annual report, no
contract of significance (i) between the Company (or any of
its subsidiaries) and its controlling shareholder (or any of its
subsidiaries); or (i) for the provision of services to the Company
(or any of its subsidiaries) by its controlling shareholder (or any of
its subsidiaries) subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING BEXRS BHEBERS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. Tenancy Agreements 1. HEH=R
The Group had entered into several tenancy agreements AEBWERMERP)BETHREATII S
(as the tenant) with some connected persons, which THEWS  LEHEWEERK LETREY

constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Group under the Listing Rules:

BATAKBEZHERERS:

Name of Amount for

Transaction counterparty the Year
(Note 1) (Note 2) HK$°000
x5 REUAEE Term of agreement Address of premises rEEGHE
i3, (frit2) EES ISR TER
Tenancy made on 3 January 2019 Victory Beauty Limited as 1 April 2019 to 10/F, Wing On House, 13,704

(monthly rental: HK$1,142,000) the landlord 31 March 2022 71 Des Voeux Road Central,

(Note 3) Central, Hong Kong
RIZE-NE-AZRTUZHA LBERRAREET —EZ-N4WA-AEZ FALREHET

(AT :1,142,0008 T)(#1 i23) ZEIZECAET-A MBAREEREI0E
Tenancy made on 3 January 2019 Well Point Limited as the 1 April 2019 to Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 5,160

(monthly rental: HK$430,000) landlord 31 March 2022 58-60 Queen’s Road Central,

(Note 4) 13-17 Stanley Street, Central,

R-ZF-NF-AZATUZEN ARARRAEARE —F-NFOA-RE
(A7 : 430,000 7)(#7i14) ZECCEZA=T-H

Tenancy made on 3 January 2019 Sea Magic Limited as the 1 April 2019 to

Hong Kong
BERRERAEPES-60% R LF
MEBITREAXRERR

G/F. & Cockloft, Nos. 2,880

(monthly rental: HK$240,000) landlord 31 March 2022 141-145 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai

(Note &) Po, New Territories, Hong Kong
RIZB-NE-AZRTUZEA URERAAEREE —Z-N4MA-AZ FANAAHERE

(A7 :240,0007% 7T )7 225) ZECCFZACT-B 0 145 T REE
Tenancy made on 3 January 2019 Top Sunshine 1 April 2019 to 1/F, Golden Hill Commercial 2,160

(monthly rental: HK$180,000) Development Limited as 31 March 2022 Building, Nos. 39-41 Argyle

(Note 6) the landlord Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong
RIZB-NE-AZRTUZEN BRERFRAT E-NEWA-RE  BANEDEEY

(A7 - 180,000 7o) i26) fER%E ZEIZEZREt-B 0 J-4NSWEEAE

1B2E

BABLZEREBERAR | —FT——/ ——FFR

117



Directors’ Report
EEERE

Name of Amount for

Transaction counterparty the Year

(Note 1) (Note 2) HK$°000

X% x%i‘lﬁ%ﬁ Term of agreement Address of premises rEEGHE

{ (2 I B LES RS TAT

Tenancy made on 3 January 2019 Fortunate State Limited as 1 April 2019 to The Entrance (at Left Frontage) of 10,332
(monthly rental: HK$861,000) the landlord 31 March 2022 Portion A1 of Shops Nos. 6, 7
(Note 7) and 8 on G/F, M/F and 1/F of

Honour House, Nos. 375-381
& 375A-379A Nathan Road, No.
24 Kansu Street and Nos. 2-10
Woosung Street, Kowloon

RIZ-NE-A=RiuzBE BABERARAEAEE Z—Z-AFNA-BE  NEBHEL75-381R375A-379A
(A7 : 861,000/ TT)(#/#7) :T:ﬁ A=t-B & HEHUERINE2-10%

2HXE6 mssﬁtﬁﬁmiﬁ v
FEEZAOSS  BHE2ER

—B2E
Tenancy made on 3 January 2019 Peaceful Smart Limited 1 April 2019 to Rooms 2301 & 2302 on 23/F., Wing 9,420
(monthly rental: HK$785,000) as the landlord 31 March 2022 On House, 71 Des Voeux Road
(Note 8) Central, Central, Hong Kong
RZB-NE-RZATUZAE BREIERAA ZE-NENA-RE  BERREHEMTR
(A7 785,000 )41 328) fER%T ZECZEZAET-R KREERE2E
2301]%2302F
Tenancy made on 3 January 2019 Realmate Limited as the 1 April 2019 to 5th to 9th floor and Roof, 79 Pok Fu 6,600
(monthly rental: HK$550,000) landlord 31 March 2022 Lam Road, Hong Kong
(Note 9)
RIB-NE-RZATUZAY #EERATMEREE ZF-NEMA-BE  BEERMETIRSZOEREERS
(A7 : 550,000 )4/ #9) ZZ-E=R=t+-H
Tenancy made on 3 January 2019 Great Challenge Limited as 1 April 2019 to Car Parking Space Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 238
(monthly rental: HK$19,800) the landlord 31 March 2022 5, & 5S on Lower Ground Floor
(Note 10) of Floral Tower, Nos. 1-9 Mosque

Street, Hong Kong
RIZ-NE-RZRiTuzBS SHERAAMGAEE —T-NFNA-BE BAEEBMZONERUMTEE

(A :19,800% 7T)(A1it10) ZEZZFZA=F-B  1-2-34 - -5RESHBEN
TOTAL 50,494
@zt
Notes: Hiat -
1. Monthly rental was exclusive of management fees, 1, AHRTBEEEESE - WHLEM -

government rent and rates.
2. Each an associate of Mr. Yip Mow Lum (“Mr. Yip”), 2. ZEBARAERE  RITEERILERK

Chairman, executive Director and controlling shareholder of HEXMEE((ELEEDZBHEA-
the Company.
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BAESETHEERRAF | —F——/

Tenancy was renewed on 28 January 2022
agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31 March
rental: HK$1,050,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 28 January 2022
agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31 March
rental: HK$400,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 28 January 2022
agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31 March
rental: HK$230,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 28 January 2022
agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31 March
rental: HK$170,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 28 January 2022
agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31 March
rental: HK$806,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 28 January 2022
agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31 March
rental: HK$720,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 28 January 2022
agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31 March
rental: HK$520,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 28 January 2022
agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31 March
rental: HK$19,800).

with a term of
2024 (monthly

with a term of
2024 (monthly

with a term of
2024 (monthly

with a term of
2024 (monthly

with a term of
2024 (monthly

with a term of
2024 (monthly

with a term of
2024 (monthly

with a term of
2024 (monthly

The annual cap for the Year was HK$53,110,000.

FFEH

10.

11.

RZZTZZF—H= +A5Fﬂﬂﬁ i3
EEPA_E-_—_FNA-HE-ZE_M
F=A=+—H(AM: 1,050,000/%713)

MR-ZT-—F—F-+N\BETHDY %
BT A - -_—_FNA—HE-Z_IY
F=A=+—H(AM:400,000%T) °

R-IZE-—F—A-+NBETHLY %
BFHAZS-_—_FNUA—HE-ZT-MNO
F=A=+—H(HAM: 230,000 T) °

BB —F—A-+NBETHLY %
EEPA_E-__HFNA-HE-ZE_M
F=ZA=+—B(AM:170,000& 7T) °

RZEBE-—F—AF -+ N\BETHLY %
ETPA—E-_—_HFNA—HE-Z -
F=A=+—H(AM:806,000T) °

R-ZE-—F—A-+NBEFTHLY %
BFHAZES-_—_FNONA—HEZ-ZT-MNO
F=A=+—H(AM 720,000 T) °
KRB —F—A-+NBEFTHLY %
EEPAE T - _—_H#NA—HE-ZT /N
F=HA=+—H(AM:520,0008 L) °

ng::E*H—Jr/\EI%éﬁEiO %
EFEHA_T-__FNA—HE-ZT_-MNM
F=A=+—H(AM: 19,8008 T) °

REFE 2 FE LR /53,110,000 7T
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2. Financial Services Agreements

The aggregate amounts of interests charged to the
relevant connected persons for the financial services and
the maximum outstanding amounts of financial services
in respect of margin financing and IPO financing to be
provided to the relevant connected persons for the year are

& B AR A% 5 R

REE  HABEATRASERHEH
FEREREAAFAZERE 22 mRS
KRz FERKREERESERBEHI N
T

set out as below:

Maximum
amount for
Amount for the Year  Amount for
the annual cap Payment from/ HK$'000 the Year
HK$'000 to the Group KEE HK$'000
Name of connected person Annual cap EELREE RAEEAXM/ ERdE AEELE
BEALESR EELR THT fFrEE2EE TET THT
Mr. Yip and his associates, together as  IPO Annual Cap 4,000,000 Advance from the Group 2,059,977
“Mr. Yip’s Group” (Note 2) BERRAREFE LR REEZBHT
EXEREBEA Margin Annual Cap 1,000,000 Advance from the Group 532,883
GRIELEEEIHE2) RFREE LR REEZBF
Interest paid to the Group 6,466
SRFAREZH A
Mr. Hui Yik Bun (“Mr. Hui") and his IPO Annual Cap 100,000 Advance from the Group 4,544
associates (Note 3) BRRAREFE LR KEEZBT
TEWAE(FEEDREBEA Margin Annual Cap 10,000 Advance from the Group 9,169
(Hit3) RFREE LR REEZBF
Interest paid to the Group 149
SRFAEEZH A
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson IPO Annual Cap 20,000 Advance from the Group 4,099
(“Mr. Chan’) and his associates, BERAAZEFE LR REEZBH
together as “Mr. Chan’s Group” Margin Annual Cap 10,000 Advance from the Group 19
(Note 4) RFREE LR REEZBR
BAHEE(BEEDREBEA Interest paid to the Group 5
GRIREEEEIHit4) XRFAEEZHE
Mr. Yu Yun Kong (“Mr. Yu") and his IPO Annual Cap 20,000 Advance from the Group -
associates (Note 5) BERRAREFE LR REEZBHT
FAREEREEDREBREA Margin Annual Cap 10,000 Advance from the Group 50
(Hits) RFRFE LR REEZBR
Interest paid to the Group -

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun (“Mr. Szeto”) and his

IPO Annual Cap

XN FAREZHE

20,000 Advance from the Group -

associates (Note 6) BERAAREFE LR REEZBHT
AEEMEETAREEDRABEA Margin Annual Cap 10,000 Advance from the Group =
(hiit6) ARFELR REEZBH
Interest paid to the Group -

120
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Maximum
amount for
Amount for the Year  Amount for
the annual cap Payment from/ HK$'000 the Year
HK$'000 to the Group REE HK$'000
Name of connected person Annual cap EELRSE RAEAXA/ BRtE LEELE
BEALHZ EELR THL fFrEEzEHE THT TET
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph IPO Annual Cap 20,000 Advance from the Group -
(*Mr. Ling’) and his associates (Note 7) BXARBEFE LR AEE B
REBEE(ZEENREBEA Margin Annual Cap 10,000 Advance from the Group =
(Hit7) FRER LR ARBZBR
Interest paid to the Group =
IHFAEEZHE
Notes: Bt

Mr. Yip, Mr. Hui and Mr. Chan are executive Directors of the
Company. Mr. Yu, Mr. Szeto and Mr. Ling are independent
non-executive Directors of the Company. Mr. Chan is a
nephew of Mr. Yip.

Financial services agreement was renewed on 28 January
2022 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31
March 2025 (IPO Annual Cap: HK$4,000,000,000; Margin
Annual Cap: HK$1,000,000,000).

Financial services agreement was renewed on 28 January
2022 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31
March 2025 (IPO Annual Cap: HK$100,000,000; Margin
Annual Cap: HK$10,000,000).

Financial services agreement was renewed on 28 January
2022 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31
March 2025 (IPO Annual Cap: HK$20,000,000; Margin
Annual Cap: HK$10,000,000).

Financial services agreement was renewed on 28 January
2022 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31
March 2025 (IPO Annual Cap: HK$20,000,000; Margin
Annual Cap: HK$10,000,000).

Financial services agreement was renewed on 28 January
2022 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31
March 2025 (IPO Annual Cap: HK$20,000,000; Margin
Annual Cap: HK$10,000,000).

Financial services agreement was renewed on 28 January
2022 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31
March 2025 (IPO Annual Cap: HK$20,000,000; Margin
Annual Cap: HK$10,000,000).

BABLZEREBERAR | —FT——/ ——FFR
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3. Brokerage Services Agreements

The aggregate amount of brokerage commission income
by the relevant connected persons for the brokerage
services provided by the Group for the Year are set out as
below:

Name of connected person

BMEALTHS

Mr. Yip’s Group (Note 1)
BEEEBE M 1)

Mr. Chan’s Group (Note 2)
PREESE (M it2)

Notes:

1. Brokerage services agreement was renewed on 28 January
2022 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31
March 2025 (Annual Cap: HK$10,000,000).

2. Brokerage services agreement was renewed on 28 January
2022 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2022 to 31
March 2025 (Annual Cap: HK$2,900,000).

3. RERBHR

REE  HEAREALRAEERHE 2K
KRR LCMERABLEHINT

Amount for

Annual Cap the Year
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE LR rEETHE

T TT FHETT
10,000 1,127
2,900 1

B

1. RZBEZZF—AZ+N\BETELRY
B MEEPRAE-__FWA—H
E_ZE-_RAF=A=+—BHEFEE LR:
10,000,000/ 7T) °

2. RIZE-—F—A-+N\BEIKLKRE
WE MEERA-_ZE-_—_FHNA—H
E-E-_RF=ZA=+—HEE LE:
2,900,000 Jt) °
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Annual review of the continuing connected
transactions

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions were:

(@) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

(b) conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favorable to the Group than terms available to
or from independent third parties; and

(c) entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report. Those related party transactions which constituted
connected transactions/continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, which are set out in the section headed
“Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
on pages 117 to 123 of this annual report, have complied with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, certain transactions
are exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules as they are (i) below the de minimis threshold
under Rule 14A.76(1) or (ii) financial assistances received on
normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and
were for the benefit of the Group and no security over the assets
of the Group was granted in respect of those transactions under
Rule 14A.90.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) were as follows:
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K EHFI4ANEBE T ZZERHERAEH
MEE °
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NEFAEEEE 2R - HERROR
BEHRcEERXR

RZEZ—F=ZA=1+—H ARAIEBEERES
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Interests in shares of the Company (the “Shares”)

Name of Director

EEns

Nature of interest

EEiHE

RAQXTF R (TRG) 2 #E®

Long/short
positions

Number of
Shares

B & E

Approximate
percentage of
the issued
voting Shares
EERT
RERG
ZHHNBEI
(%)

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Note 1) Interest in a controlled  Long position 900,000,000 53.02%
BRI E R 21) corporation Te
REEERER
Mr. Yip Mow Lum Beneficial owner Long position 188,776,280 10.83%
BRMEE EREAA A
Mr. Hui Yik Bun Beneficial owner Long position 600,000 0.03%
FEWEE ERBEEA Sy
Mr. Yu Yun Kong Beneficial owner Long position 608,829 0.03%
RAMEE EREAA e
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun (Note 2) Beneficiary of trust Long position 631,666 0.03%
A1 4 % 55 & (f7 it 2) FRXaEA e
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph Beneficial owner Long position 210,700 0.01%

EEELE

Notes:

EDBEAA

iR

900,000,000 & 5 AT RAZERBR A (E
EEEIFBERMEERERBZAREER - B
It EERMEERIB(GEFRBEEN) WA B
RZERGOFPHEFER -

1. 900,000,000 Shares were held by New Charming Holdings 1.
Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the
Chairman of the Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip Mow Lum is deemed to
be interested in these Shares by virtue of the SFO.

BE(GEERBEEGN (FAEEZHEA
BY R TESATETLEREAERNZS
631,666 0% A% 1 4 B & %5 -

2. As a beneficiary of a trust, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun, an independent 2.
non-executive Director, is deemed to be interested in those
631,666 Shares by virtue of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interest or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
PARTIES OTHER THAN DIRECTORS OR
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2022, the parties (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange are as follows:

Nature of interest

BHEME

Name of Shareholder

BRRER

New Charming Holdings Limited (Note) ~ Beneficial owner
HRAERERDR (M iT) ESHBA S
Note:

900,000,000 Shares were held by New Charming Holdings Limited,
a company wholly owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the chairman of the
Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip Mow Lum is deemed to have an interest in
these Shares.

Long/short positions

B/ %R

Long position

BREXFIERZREN RZBEZ_F=A=+—
ShE z:mi%i%iﬁmﬁﬁ/\é\*ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂmﬂ
sk EAF AR B A B (JRCE H R B E K BI) FEXV
*BFﬁth%)ZEHHxTﬁ ifﬁ%@ﬂﬂ’ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂtﬂ
BEAMEILAR MZSEIIARER
RRABIRECEF R BAEKRH)FEI2HEHEE A
BEzELRMARE  KRBEZEFANENS
RARRBZFTZERI KRR -

RRBRESFHBRSTHRAEBUML
RADBR G KR D <& & &K

B

RCE-—_F=A=1+—B  ARAEFEAES
TTERABUINA T AR RIERE R D %A
THEDFIAE  MZEEDZIABERRARF]

BBEC(EF LB EGRDI)EIB6IRRTERE T
%naﬂﬁmnaﬁ jEﬁTT%ﬂgZ’Ki\\j&%FQFﬁ—
ZHEmPKE

Number of
Shares and

Approximate
percentage of
underlying the issued
Shares  voting Shares
ROBER HERTRERD
HERGHA ZHAEI

900,000,000 53.02%

Hyat

900,000,000 B BHFTRBIZEBRERAR (EESE
FBEEMEEZEREZRARNEE - AL - EEM
EEWEARZERDTHEE#EZ -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the
parties (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had any interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this annual report, at no time during the Year was
the Company, its holding company or any of their subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board of Directors,
as at the date of this annual report, there has been sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
as required under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
section on pages 89 to 108 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to discharging its corporate social
responsibility as well as protecting the environment by
minimizing the negative impact of the Group’s existing business
activities on the environment. Details of which are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 62 to
88 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
have been audited by Messrs. KPMG, who will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting. Messrs.
KPMG, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. KPMG Certified
Public Accountants, as the independent auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the
taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of,
dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to the shares
of the Company, they are advised to consult an expert.

BREXRRHE

AEBRNRBETELEHLEEE ABEE
BREASERAXGEHHRENAEZEN
RERE - BRAFRARNAFRF62E88HH
RE -HEhEBRS -
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of
accounts for each financial period, which gives a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that period. In preparing the accounts for the
year ended 31 March 2022, the Board of Directors has selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and has prepared the accounts on a going concern
basis. The Board of Directors is responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at
any time, the financial position of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Hui Yik Bun
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
24 June 2022
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epnac

To the shareholders of
Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bright
Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 137 to
231, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2022, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2022 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that,

in our professional

judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Revenue recognition: Brokerage commission income

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on page 174.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Brokerage commission income represented Our audit procedures to assess the recognition
65% of the total revenue of the Group for the of brokerage commission income included the
following:

year ended 31 March 2022.

Brokerage commission income arising from
brokerage trading of securities, commodities
and futures is recognised on a trade date
basis when the relevant transactions are
executed.

Where the customer is given rights to
additional discounted or free services in
the future as a result of paying brokerage
commission, an appropriate amount of the
brokerage commission income is deferred
and recognised when those material rights
are utilised by the customers or expire.
Management judgement is involved in
determining the appropriate amount of the
deferred brokerage commission income
mainly based on historical deferred rebate
utilisation rate.

The commission income subject to volume
rebate arrangements is recognised once
it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when
the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

We identified the recognition of brokerage
commission income as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and
therefore there is an inherent risk that the
timing of recognition of revenue and the
amount recognised could be manipulated to
meet specific targets or expectations.

BAESETHEERRAF | —F——/

assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to revenue recognition.
For the key underlying systems used for
the processing of transactions in relation to
the brokerage commission income, trading
volumes, commission rates and volume
rebates, this included involving our information
technology specialists to assess the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of a selection of relevant key internal controls
over access to these systems and controls
over data and change management;

developing an expectation of brokerage
commission income and deferred revenue for
the current year based on our consideration
of trading volumes, commission rates and
historical data, comparing our expectation
with the actual brokerage commission income
recorded by the Group and investigating
any significant differences between our
expectation and the amounts recorded by the
Group;

performing retrospective review on the material
rights estimated to be utilised by customers
by comparing the estimated deferred rebate
utilisation rate in the prior year against the actual
utilisation rate in the current year,

assessing the appropriateness of the estimated
deferred rebate utilisation rate by comparing with
the historical deferred rebate utilisation and our
understanding of the business; and

comparing detalls of journal entries raised during
the current year which affected revenue with
underlying documentation on a sample basis.
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Valuation of accounts receivable from margin clients

Refer to notes 16 and 28 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on pages 189 to 191

and pages 208 to 223.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

At 31 March 2022 accounts receivable from Qur audit procedures to assess the valuation of
margin clients totalled HK$7,062 million, accounts receivable from margin clients included
representing 72% of the Group’s total the following:

assets.

Margin clients are required to pledge
securities as collateral in order to obtain
margin loans. When determining the fair
value of the accounts receivable at the
reporting date, management evaluate
the margin loan portfolios on a fair value
basis by primarily considering the value of
collateral, which principally comprised listed
securities, with reference to the quoted
prices, to the extent of the outstanding loan
amounts. The Group classified accounts
receivable from margin clients as financial
assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss (‘FVPL).

In cases of collateral shortfalls, management
exercises judgement by taking into account
other factors such as available remedies for
recovery and the financial situation of the
borrower.

We identified assessing valuation of
accounts receivable from margin clients
as a key audit matter because of its
significance in the context of the Group's
financial statements and also because of the
judgement exercised by the management in
determining the inputs used in the valuation.

132

understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of the key internal controls over the approval,
recording and monitoring of accounts
receivable from margin clients and collateral
shortfalls and valuation procedures;

understanding the business model of
margin financing business and assessing
the classification of accounts receivable
with reference to the prevailing accounting
standard;

assessing the existence of collateral by
comparing the underlying securities held
as collateral as extracted from the Group’s
records with custodian statements from
brokers or clearing houses on a sample basis;

identifying collateral shortfalls, which affect the
valuation of accounts receivable from margin
clients, by comparing the carrying value of
individual accounts receivable to the value
of underlying securities with reference to the
publicly available market prices on a sample
basis;

in cases of material collateral shortfalls,
assessing the available remedies for recovery
such as the fair value of the assets placed
with the Group and other possible sources of
repayment from the borrower; and

assessing the reasonableness of the
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B R BENRE

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wong Po Shan.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e HEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_ZT-__F=ZA=+—BLEFECAETIR)

Revenue KA 4 1,068,012 1,285,201
Other income H =
— Interest income calculated using — REBRAEREFEDY
effective interest rate method F B U A 5 26,816 54,616
— Interest income calculated using — RHEMFETEN
other method F B WA 5 51,906 38,561
— Others — HAfty 5 111,558 150,218
Other net (loss)/gain Hib (BB, RS FHE 6 (8,521) 32,904
1,249,771 1,561,500
Staff costs BT A 7(b) (160,616) (152,895)
Amortisation and depreciation BRI E (77,541) (79,519)
Net charges for expected credit losses T8 Hi{z & &5 18 %58 (7,429) (851)
Other operating expenses EmgEx 7(c) (223,459) (271,824)
Profit from operations BEERF 780,726 1,056,411
Finance costs 51 %% X X 7(a) (124,512) (239,223)
Profit before taxation RR B AR R 7 656,214 817,188
Income tax FT18 %% 8 (94,712) (113,283)
Profit for the year FRER 561,502 703,905

Other comprehensive income for FREMEEWE :

the year:
ltems that may be reclassified Higrge a8 E

subsequently to profit or loss BmrIEE

— Exchange reserve — ERREE (157) (293)
Total comprehensive income EERRELCFAZE

attributable to equity Wi EE

shareholders for the year 561,345 703,612
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (cents) A ML) 11 33.08 41.47
Diluted (cents) e () 11 33.08 41.47

The notes on pages 143 to 231 form part of these financial SE143F 2318 2 M s BRI F R K E P &6
statements. Details of dividends declared for the year are set out % ° FR T IR I B 2 515 & 1 W 5£26(b) °
in note 26(b).

BABLZEREBERAR | —FT——/ ——FFR 137



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZTZ=—F=F=+—B(ABTIR)

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BEREE 13 136,198 106,516
Intangible assets ELEE 14 5,783 5,783
Deferred tax assets BELEHIREE 25(b) 1,820 268
Financial assets at amortised cost HHEK AT ECEREE 1,443 =
Other receivables, deposits and HthrsE ek

prepayments T8+ 7 18 17 1,981 3,822
Other non-current assets HibIEREBEE 15 79,978 78,429
Total non-current assets  : #RBEERE 227,203 194818
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable JE L BR 3K 16 8,915,867 15,139,668
Other receivables, deposits and HEMEWRE Zek

prepayments TE T OB 17 29,446 26,063
Amount due from a related company i Ug — RS B8 Bt A &) 7R 18 - 3
Financial assets at fair value through & QA FEFHAEZRE Z

profit or loss THEE 49,575 70,593
Financial assets at amortised cost HEBEK AT ECERMEE - 7,787
Tax recoverable Al 3R [B] B 18 25(a) 21,707 972
Cash and cash equivalents ReERkBeEEY 18(a) 524,716 418,483
Total currentassets = A®EE®RE 9,541,311 15,663,569
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable JE 5 BR 3K 20 1,939,351 2,061,356
Accrued expenses and other payables & 51 B 52 & £ fth g (- 7 18 21 85,881 103,417
Bank loans RITER 22 5,162,165 11,436,038
Lease liabilities HEBE 23 54,186 61,141
Current taxation BN HA R 18 25(a) 3,462 57,764
Total current liabilites ~ ##&Kf#® 7,245,045 13,719,716
Netcurrentassets = *"&8&EEFE 2,206,266 1,943,853
Total assets less current liabilites ¥EZREBRABAS/ 2,523,469 2,188,671
Non-current liabilities knBEE
Accrued expenses and other payables J& 5t 5 5z K& H b & (- 2B 21 794 1,431
Lease liabilities HEAR 23 51,304 6,565
Total non-current liabilities RSB EEREE 52,098 7,996
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,471,371 2,130,675
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI

At 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZBZ=Z&#=Z/F=+—B(ABTIR)

EQUITY &

Share capital fig A& 26 509,189 509,189
Share premium % 7 & (& 26 738,020 738,020
Exchange reserve E H 26(d) 48 205
Merger reserve A HREE 26(d) (20,000) (20,000)
Retained profits RE 26 1,244,114 903,261

TOTAL EQUITY EEAE 2,471,371 2,130,675

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

24 June 2022.

Yip Mow Lum

Directors

B=%

The notes on pages 143 to 231 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE-ZT-_—F=ZA=1+t—HBLEFEUGABTIR)

Share Share  Exchange Merger Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits  Total equity

ks  RuEE  EXEK  AHEE  REEN  BE4E

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T T

At 1 April 2020 R=B-2%WA-A 500,189 738,020 498 (20,000) 674,599 1,902,306

Changes in equity for the year ended HZ-F=—%

31 March 2021: ZAZt+-HL
FEVERED:
Profit for the year ERiEH - - - - 703,905 703,905
Other comprehensive income Htp2mME - - (293) - - (293)
Total comprehensive income FRE2EMREE
for the year - - (293) - 708,905 708,612
Dividend paid during the year FRERHES 26(0) = = = = (475,243) (475,243)
At 31 March 2021 R-ZE=-%
ZA=t-H 509,189 738,020 205 (20,000) 903,261 2,130,675
At 1 April 2021 W=-E--%MmB-A 509,189 738,020 205 (20,000) 903,261 2,130,675

Changes in equity for the year ended HEZ-E__§

31 March 2022 ZR=+t-AL
FEVERED:
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - 561,502 561,502
Other comprehensive income Htzmb & - - (157) - - (157)
Total comprehensive income FRE2ENREE
for the year - - (157) - 561,502 561,345
Dividend paid during the year EREAHRE 26(0) - - - - (220,649) (220,649)
At 31 March 2022 RZBzZZf
ZA=+-H 509,189 738,020 48 (20,000) 1,244,114 2,471,371

The notes on pages 143 to 231 form part of these financial #1432 231B 2 Wi B ST KRR EFP I
statements. S C
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
LERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_ZT-__F=ZA=+—BLEFECAETIR)

Operating activities R SEE

Cash generated from/(used in) operations & & %15, (FTA)IRE 18(b) 6,874,889 (7,680,611)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEAENER (171,301) (60,694)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BESEEE(FFRERES

__operating activites  ®& 6,703,588  (7,741,305)
Investing activities RETE

Purchase of financial assets at amortised BEEIR#BHEK AT E 2 S

cost BhE E (8,113) (7,789)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEZAFEFABRZZE

through profit or loss BB E (39,139) (333,101)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets &R AFEFAEBR 2 S

at fair value through profit or loss Bh & E TS BB 33,371 321,150
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEREHER A EZ &

at amortised cost BB EFTSFRIE 7,758 =
Payment for purchase of property, BEYWE BEX

plant and equipment BLENEN (7,966) (16,721)
Dividend received 2R B 1,607 21
Interest received B U7 & 78,930 93,195
Net cash generated from investing RETBHMBREFE

activities 66,448 56,755
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-Z-_—"F=A=+—-BLEFEUETIT)

Financing activities

BMEEH

ENEERE 2EARED

Capital element of lease rentals paid (61,258) (60,456)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEES 2 EHD (1,122) (2,491)
Net (repayment of)/proceeds from RITER(ERFR)

bank loans Fri8 I8 558 (6,275,874) 8,571,666
Repayment of from amount due to FEA— R R B A BB SR ERIR

a related company — (200,136)
Dividend paid BB (220,649) (475,243)
Interest paid EF B (123,390) (236,732)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMETES (A FERE

financing activities FE (6,682,293) 7,596,608
Net increase/(decrease)incashand RERKRELZEY

cash equivalents #in, OR ) F 87,743 (87,942)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April REBE—BzZRER

ReZEY 418,483 477,657

Effect of foreign exchange rates EREE

changes 18,490 28,768
Cash and cash equivalents at R=ZA=+—H=ZzRE&E

31 March ReZEY 18(a) 524,716 418,483

The notes on pages 143 to 231 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEBI - LBITIHIR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited
(“the Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 4 August 2009 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman lIslands. The consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(Br = BHEHA - AETIIR)

2

144

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current accounting
period reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis,
except that certain financial instruments are stated
at their fair value in accordance with the accounting
policy set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs require management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the year in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that year, or in the year of the revision and future
years if the revision affects both current and future
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA IS MR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEBI - LBITIHIR)

2

BAESETHEERRAF | —F——/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(©)

Basis of consolidation

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(h)(ii)
unless the investment is classified as held for
sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS SRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5B #EHI

2
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CAETTEIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(©

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(ii)

Business combinations involving entities
under common control

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities or businesses as if they
had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or business first came under
the control of the controlling parties.

The net assets of the combining entities or
business are recognised at the carrying values
prior to the common control combination.

The consolidated financial statements include
the results of each of the combining entities
or business from the earliest date presented
or since the date when combining entities or
business first came under the control of the
controlling parties, where this is a shorter
period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
entities or businesses had been combined at
the previous reporting date or when they first
came under control of the controlling parties,
whichever is shorter.

2

FESTTHES)
(¢ HAEBEEES)
(i) PREFEHIEES 2520

BRAVMBREBESEHESL
%%Z%%ﬁ% i
?&%ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁék?
HERIEFEBRLEEA G

ﬁ?%i%%Zﬁé%ﬁ
7] 122 i & OF A LA BR T 1B 7

E

AN

X o

o

HAMBHRREESEAHER
KEBEEINHEABE =K
BT BRSSO B RS
%%*EiﬂTmAﬂHﬁéﬁ
ZEM)ZBEME XA

BARBRR2IZLBSE
B ME R E R L — B
oS BRI S
(ABSEE B EES B2 &
%25 -

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2021/22



Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEBI - LBITIHIR)

2

BAESETHEERRAF | —F——/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2(h)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Over the
Lease term

—  Properties leased for own use

Shorter of the
unexpired term of
lease and 3 years

—  Leasehold improvements

—  Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years
—  Office equipment 5 years
—  Furniture and fixtures 5 years
—  Computers and software 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS SRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(Br = BHEHA - AETIIR)

2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e

®

Intangible assets
Intangible assets include club and school debentures.

The intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 2(h)(ii)). Amortisation
begins when the asset is available for use, i.e. when
it is in the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended.
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives as
follows:

— Debentures are amortised over the unexpired
term

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do
not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy
for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as
set out above.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA IS MR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEBI - LBITIHIR)

2

BAESETHEERRAF | —F——/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Leased assets (Continued)
As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group are primarily office furniture.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Financial assets and financial liabilities

Investments

Investments held by the Group are classified into one
of the following measurement categories:

amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method
(see note 2(p)(iii)).

fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) — recycling, if the contractual
cash flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected credit
losses, interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity
to profit or loss.

FVPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair
value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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CAETTEIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit loss from financial instruments

The Group recognises expected credit losses
allowance (“ECL”) on the following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
accounts and other receivables, deposits
and prepayments);

— debt securities measured at FVOCI
(recycling); and

— loan commitments issued, which are not
measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including units in equity securities measured at
FVPL, equity securities designated at FVOCI
(non — recycling) and derivative financial
assets, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

U]

BAESETHEERRAF | —F——/

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continueqd)

For undrawn loan commitments, expected
cash shortfalls are measured as the difference
between (i) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Group if the holder of the
loan commitment draws down on the loan and
(i) the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive if the loan is drawn down.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, accounts
receivable and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate; and

— loan commitments: current risk-free rate
adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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CAETTEIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

U]

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

For accounts receivable, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments, financial assets at
amortised cost, and cash and cash equivalents,
the Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

U]

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment) has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past
due. The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments

(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial

recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if

available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the

debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to

meet its obligation to the Group.
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F A TTEIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)
For loan commitments, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing ECLs
is considered to be the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment.
In assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a
loan commitment, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default occurring on the loan to
which the loan commitment relates.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change
in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for
all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account, except for investments
in debt securities that are measured at FVOCI
(recycling), for which the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

U]

158

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-
impaired financial assets

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2(p)(iii) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

2 TEETHR#E)

(h FEERREEREE)

EMTANGFEEFRE)

HEEEREL#EENENK
AZ%E

AR BE BT 3 2(p) (i) 7 3R &0 F1 B Uk
AEREREEZ BREER
 RIZEMEELREE
BAE - LB T - BB WA
ERNESRMEEZBHKA (AN
REEREBBRREEE -

RERSEH AEBSFH
EREEETLREERE-
ERL-HAZHEYIREE
M RKBRERBER TN E
ZEMHE eRMEENLRE
BRE -

TRMEELREEREZE
BRERATABREMN:

- EBALBEAVBERE
E

— EHTAE - WK KL
BEMBHAS:

— BRABARERESET
H A B 5 & 4

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2021/22



Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEBI - LBITIHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

U]

BAESETHEERRAF | —F——/

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-

impaired financial assets (Continued)

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
or

— the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of loss allowance in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

FFEH

2

FESTTHE®)

(h FEEBEREERE®R)

(i)

EMTANGEEBRE)

FEEERESHEENSNK

AZEE(E)

— HBER M5 8EIORE
RELAEXEPMmHE
BAEBRTNEE %

— BHFRBTALERBR
Bk EERMIS

M 35 B

TRMEE AKRmENEER
FIRENR @ - RIERD Bk 2 BOMEH
—REABEAEBEEEHA
TEAELERAREREER
MEERZEELRAKIRZ

B o

HREODBECSHMEEEZS
BMRBAEWD 7 MRS
RREEREHERD -

159



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = BHEHA - AETIIR)

2

160

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each reporting date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

intangible assets; and

investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the period
in which the reversals are recognised.

(i) Accounts receivable and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

)

(k)

@)

Accounts receivable and other receivables
(Continued)

Except for accounts receivable arising from cash
clients, margin clients and subscriptions of new
shares in IPO which are stated at financial assets
measured at FVPL; receivables are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
less allowance for credit losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, and demand deposits with banks. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(h)(i).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits

(i)

(if)

(i)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a share
option reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at the grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

Where the Company enters into equity-
settled share-based payment arrangements
involving employees of subsidiaries, the cost is
recognised in “Investment in subsidiaries” and
credited to the “Share option reserve” over the
vesting period. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the vested option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

BARSETHMEEERIA | —T——/ ——FFH

2

FESTTHE®)

m) FAE#H(E)

BRETAERGISMERIN - FAEEER
HEEMNERERBAEE(ERNAR
BE FA LA 35 85 B 18 FE SR B A 2 B )
B THER - AR ERIRAATNRY
HERIBETERBAEE 2R KER
BgA BERCREERRRERERE
EEZHR  HERFERALER M
HHELFA-—ERNEECAR L&
HeRBERRERANREREE R
—HHREERBAEEMEENA
BRAERDSAE L HIFRED -
ZBEATERARETRBERN
ERZRAOXFEIAKRGAB IR
BREENERRMEELRELEHREE
E - AEERMER -2 HER
Al — R EBARE & TARA
YWEMRRBEBBRARBERA T
ERAZ-BRYUAXZRABEM -

HRELEHRBEERBEZBRA
SMERBE ARV EERELE Y
FER RERITTESHHE
waNZEERRETBER S
HZBIIARERERHERRA
AERZE NBERTEZR - A
7K 5 [ AT 422 o) 48 1m0 By ] R KR B

AERRKERMER/AR  KMBA
I ER - RIPARREE R KB B E 5
R e

165



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = BHEHA - AETIIR)

2

166

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each reporting date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets
are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

(0)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Brokerage commission income

Brokerage commission income is recognised
on a trade date basis when the relevant
transactions are executed. Volume rebate to
customers is recognised to the extent that it
is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. Where the customer is given rights
to additional discounted or free services in
the future as a result of paying brokerage
commission, an appropriate amount of the
brokerage commission income is deferred
and recognised when those material rights are
utilised by the customers or expire.

Income from bullion trading
Income from bullion trading is recognised when
the related services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Handling and settlement fee income
Handling and settlement fee income are
recognised when the related services are
rendered.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v) Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(vi) Investment trading
Income from investment including realised fair
value gains or losses on trading investment is
recognised on a trade date basis.

(vii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

(q) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

()

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in
other fiduciary capacities that result in the holding
or placing of assets on behalf of its customers.
These assets arising thereon are excluded from the
consolidated financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(3) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parents.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(4)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third party.

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(8) The entity, or any member of the Group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.
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LA TTIR )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group.

— Amendments to HKFRS 16, “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021”

— Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 16, “/Interest rate benchmark
reform — phase 2”7

The Group has elected not to adopt and apply the
practical expedient to all qualifying Covid-19-related rent
concessions granted to the Group during the reporting
period. Consequently, rent concessions received have
been accounted for as lease re-measurement. There is no
impact on the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2021.

The amendments on Interest rate benchmark reform —
phase 2 provide targeted reliefs from (i) accounting for
changes in the basis for determining contractual cash
flows of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease
liabilities as modifications, and (i) discontinuing hedge
accounting when an interest rate benchmark is replaced by
an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the reform of
interbank offered rates (“IBOR reform”). The amendments
do not have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

None of these developments has had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or presented
in this annual report.

The Group has not applied any new standard or

interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are securities broking,
margin and IPO financings, commodities and futures
broking, bullion trading and leveraged foreign exchange
trading.

The amount of each significant category of revenue is as
follows:

LN
AEBXBEBABLER  FRRER

NFARERE AnkYELEL BB
RZARBERAINERS -

BEEZHEMNBASENT

Revenue from contracts with EBUBEHREERF155
customers within HERAZEFEHWKWA
the scope of HKFRS 15
Brokerage commission  &mk@® 690,801 793,820
Revenue from other sources Hfth 3ROR W A
Dealing income from bullion trading EeBRIHBA 10,791 15,177
Dealing income from leveraged foreign ERRAINERZ F WA
exchange trading 2,548 3,305
Interest income from margin financing FREEMNBWA 326,135 271,238
Interest income from IPO financing BAARABEEHEFSKA 37,737 201,661
377,211 491,381
1,068,012 1,285,201

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no customer
had transactions which exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 and does not disclose
information about the remaining performance obligation
that have original expected durations of one year or less.

AEEEFEREER HERE-XPHE
TZXHBBAREERAI0% -

A B E A FI B BT AR R 155
218 2 AFRET O, L m BB AR
EEEEA— FRU T2 HBBOEE Y
&R -
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5 OTHER INCOME 5 Hiwzx

Interest income from B A KB
Financial assets carried at BRBEAXIIE2EREE
amortised cost
— Authorised institutions — R 25,586 53,438
— Others — Hfth 1,230 1,178
26,816 54,616
Financial assets carried at FVPL DEAFEFABEZZAFR
JIRCERMEE
— Cash clients —RERP 51,906 38,561
78,722 938,177
Handling and settlement fees FEBREEER 96,572 125,022
Dividend income g B A 1,607 21
Government grants BT 78 B 1,131 14,923
Sundry income HMIA WA 12,248 10,252
190,280 243,395
6 OTHER NET (LOSS)/GAIN 6 Hih(EE) WEBE

Realised (loss)/gain from EER(ER)REKE
— Financial assets at fair value through — BAVFEFAERZ
profit or loss TREE (3,373) 14,714
Unrealised loss from REBEENRE
— Financial assets at fair value through — BAVFEFABRZ
profit or loss TREE (23,386) (4,611)
(26,759) 10,103
Net foreign exchange gain HNIE UK 25 05 R 19,600 24,666
Loss on disposals of property, HEME  BEK
plant and equipment BEEE (36) (503)
Error trades arising from dealings RS (180) (112)
Others H Aty (1,146) (1,250)
(8,521) 32,904
BARHSREEAERAT | ==/ —_FFK 175



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B BB - ABTIIR)

7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7 BRFBAIEF

B B A A 2 H0BR T 51 &R

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

176

(a) Finance costs (a) BBRAK
Interest expenses on AT & IEF B X
— Bank loans for IPO financing —BARAABEERE
|ITER 26,514 144,156
— Other bank loans — HEMIR1TER 93,561 84,836
— Lease liabilities (note 13) — HEBBEWHZL13) 1,122 2,491
— Loans from related companies — REBEB AR ER - 6,029
— Others — Hfb 3,315 1,711
124,512 239,223
(b) Staff costs (b) BEIK
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e RZUAREVREF
kind 111,430 103,490
Discretionary bonuses B IS IE AL 45,402 45,822
Contributions to Mandatory Provident EHIMEATESHK
Fund 3,784 3,583
160,616 152,895
(c) Other operating expenses (c) Ht&&mxX
Advertising and promotion expenses BEEREERY 19,488 34,979
Auditors’ remuneration = &R B & 1,733 1,703
Commission, handling and K Be  FEER
settlement expenses HEHEER 114,566 143,997
Information and communication B kBMAX
expenses 44,435 47,512
Legal and professional fees FERERBEEER 1,891 2,133
Operating lease payments — KEB DR
property rentals —WEHRS 278 146
Rates and building management fees EMREFEERER 4,340 4,626
Miscellaneous expenses MIERX 34,728 36,728
223,459 071,824
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8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 HSMEZTEKREXRZFIBH
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

(@)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of (@ #EeEzEWER2ZHIERE:

comprehensive income represents:

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

BHRE - BEEBREHR

Provision for the year F N 96,153 114,157
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BAEFE
prior years TR/ () #E 111 (728)
96,264 113,429
Deferred tax IE B 1R
Origination and reversal of temporary TFER 2 EL RER
differences (note 25(b)(i)) (B i 25(b)0)) (1,552) (146)
Total tax charge for the year FAMEBEL DR 94,712 113,283
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2022 is CECCFERBNGREETIAE
calculated at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the estimated NG ET SRR F1216.5% (22 =—
assessable profits for the year, except for one F16.5%)FTE @ EAEE—HHE
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying REFT A ARSI RS T 2 AR EBRIN ©
corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate
regime.
HZMBARIME - 2,000,000 &
For this subsidiary, the first $2 million of assessable FRR N 1R28.26% AL - BR T FE AR
profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining i A B2 16.5% BB - ZMB AR 2
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision BEANGHBRERE T -_—FHERA
for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was ZEAEGE o

calculated at the same basis in 2021.
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 MEZTEKERZFBHR &)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of

(b)

(@ FEZTEWRBERHRERE: (8)

comprehensive income represents: (Continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2022 is ZECCEBEANEGHBEE R

taken into account a reduction granted by the Hong
Kong SAR Government of 100% of the tax payable
for the year of assessment 2021-22 subject to a

ERRAINTHEBRAR T -_—=F
RREEETE—XH%100%
(J:BE #310,0007T) 2 FE 5 7 18 =Rl

maximum reduction of $10,000 for each business _;: ¢ R -FRBEDR
(2021: a maximum reduction of $10,000 was granted R —E-TE-—FRUFEET
for the year of assessment 2020-21 and was taken Zﬁimw,OOOE%ﬁ) g

into account in calculating the provision for 2021).

Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REAMEFEBEEXHSE
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: Hm A E AR -

Profit before taxation B %54 Bl & A 656,214 817,188
Notional tax on profit before taxation REBRBEBBRR RN

calculated at the rates applicable to MEFE ZBRBA

profits in the countries concerned A B E IR 108,110 134,670
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR A 2 MG & 3,656 3,716
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERBNE o MBEE (13,498) (20,851)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RIER K @J AHIEEE 2

recognised MG e 3 1
Utilisation of tax loss previously not B S AT R R

recognised HIEEE (41) (192)
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BEFETR,/

prior years (HBEE) BB 111 (728)
Others E i (3,629) (3,333)
Total tax charge for the year FAMIBEL H BT 94,712 113,283
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9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9 EEMSE
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 2 B EBCR AHE B E383(1) 1§ XA 7
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 (BEESMZERD RN FE2FFAHEE
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits EEMewT:

of Directors) Regulations are as follows:

Salaries, Contributions

allowances to Mandatory

Directors’ and benefits Discretionary Provident

fees in kind bonuses Fund

5% 2ER

Exfe BENEF METAL WBREUR

$000 $000 $000 $000

Tr T Tr Tr
Yip Mow Lum ERM - 14,472 9,136 - 23,608
Hui Yik Bun STEW - 2,444 3,806 18 6,358
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson Bk - 1,010 261 18 1,289
Yu Yun Kong £E0 264 - - - 264
Szeto Wai Sun e 3 229 - - - 229
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph REE 194 - - - 194
Total @ 687 17,926 13,293 36 31,942

Salaries, Contributions

allowances to Mandatory

Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary Provident

fees in kind bonuses Fund

EEROE ) MEEL  wERER

$'000 $'000 $'000

T ‘ T T
Yip Mow Lum ERM - 8,942 7,104 - 16,046
Hui Yik Bun STEW - 2,293 5,456 18 7,767
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson Bk - 968 323 18 1,309
Yu Yun Kong FER 252 - - - 252
Szeto Wai Sun Bl % 219 - - - 219
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph REE 185 - - - 185
Total @ 656 12,208 12,883 36 25,778
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9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No director received any emoluments from the Group as
an inducement to join or leave the Group or compensation
for loss of office and, no director waived or has agreed to
waive any emoluments.

10 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Included in the emoluments of the five individuals with
the highest emoluments were the emoluments of 2
(2021: 2) Directors. The emoluments of Directors have
been disclosed in note 9 above. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other 3 (2021: 3) individuals
are as follows:

10

EEME #)

BMEBEEEEAKEWRETAMES - FRN
BAMFAARE RS NBERWEE  TE
EEREXRAERELAME -

Re WAL

IEZFHEemNEETRIERSG (ZT_—
FRREFT -BEEWEE R X9
BT B T==R(CFE—F:=F)ALZ
P& mzEmT:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e E2UHREWEF 5,230 4,929
Discretionary bonuses B 15 TE 4L 7,044 8,152
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund 38 7& & fft & 54 54

12,328 13,135

The emoluments of the 3 (2021: 3) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

FZEZBR(CE—F ZR)RSFMALZ
BN FIATEHE:

Nil to $2,000,000
$2,000,001 to $4,000,000
$4,000,001 to $6.000,000
$6,000,001 to $8,000,000
$8,000,001 to $10,000,000

Z £2,000,0007T 2 2
2,000,0017T £4,000,0007¢ = —
4,000,0017T £6,000,0007T = —
6,000,0017T £8,000,0007T = —
8,000,0017T £10,000,0007T 1 1

1A B BRF FE O B A 1) 5% S A S ] B

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the financial year
(2021: Nil).

SERMBARERRNINARZ BEHIE
REBRHEECT_—F:8)-

—_—
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

BRE2F
BREFXRF

BREXRBMNEZARFEARARREA AR
EENBEAFRERTERR 2 MEFH

Earnings &%

Profit for the year attributable to owners of A& E AR R HEHF A

the Company ($°000) FEAE & F (For) 561,502 703,905
Number of shares & 0 2B
Weighted average number of ordinary EETERR

shares in issue (in thousands) hnHE S & (FAR) 1,697,296 1,697,296
Basic earnings per share (cents) BREXNAEF (L) 33.08 41.47
Diluted earnings per share iz #58 2 R

There was no dilutive potential ordinary share during the
year (2021: Nil) and diluted earnings per share is therefore
equal to basic earnings per share.
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12

182

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following three
reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

—  Securities broking — provision of broking services
in securities traded in Hong Kong and overseas
markets, margin and IPO financing services to those
broking clients.

— Commodities and futures broking — provision
of broking services in commodities and futures
contracts traded in Hong Kong and overseas
markets.

— Bullion trading — provision of trading services in
bullion contracts traded in overseas markets.

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and
current assets with the exception of unallocated
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include liabilities
and accruals attributable to the activities of the
individual segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
earnings before finance costs and taxes (“EBIT”).
To arrive at EBIT, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as corporate administration
costs.

12

&P

ok

&
% o
ZS S

B &

EERSMREBSBEM ERLE
A EEIR R E RSB RRBAT A
ERSTHRERABNB2MER —

Bz2ARAEVNUAT=ZEr]HE S0 - #E
BHEEDAMARK T I AT B®RE DL -

(a)

BHRER - BRURBERBINTS
BEZRBFZBERYE  MBRLEP
REFREERAFESHERS -

$7|\rh E'i"f,tZFﬁuu&HHE’m\ UZ?&%E
ARES -

BBy - RENEBIMEESR
BEEBANNR IR -

DHEE -EERAER

ABAEIERRERE,HEDE
BR ALEEESTTHREREABRNU
TEEERZARED ILEIGEE -
BENAME:

NHEEREMBEREERRD

BE  WRPE2ZRBIBERN - 5

HaBEaEERN S EEEEE2AaE
N ERTEaE -

RMEDHBEFNEABZEERERR
B %5 B AS K B 3B BT 2 B R (TEBITY) ©
RS HEBITH » AEEBEZF B &5
EHBENSB2ERE (MARITH
RA)VEH#E— AR -
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12 fJ\ %B ﬁ t|:|t (&)
(b) Segment information (b)) DHER
2022
—g-=
Commodities
Securities  and futures Bullion
broking broking trading
BmRk
EHERQ HERR E£BRZ
$000 $000 $/000
Fr Fr T
Revenue from customers: REEPZHA:
— Brokerage commission - BERBEe 465,974 225,369 - 691,343
— Dealing income LN - - 10,791 10,791
— Interest income from margin financing — & & & Fl B A 326,135 - - 326,135
— Interest income from IPO financing ~ — BAAREERE
MEKA 37,737 - - 37,737
Reportable segment revenue LD HWA 829,846 225,369 10,791 1,066,006
Interest income from cash clients BeXPHEKRA 51,906 - - 51,906
Other interest income Hip 7 S A 24,420 2,395 - 26,815
Handling and settlement fees FEBREEER 96,560 12 = 96,572
Reportable segment profit (EBIT) % 5 8% 5 (EBIT) 672,580 93,184 7,860 773,624
Amortisation and depreciation FRBERNE
for the year (17,089) (8) - (17,097)
Finance costs B IR (132,865) 3) - (132,868)
Additions to non-current segment assets FRRE Z ¥ KB HEE
during the year 7,958 - - 7,958
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 8,703,165 1,085,483 29,304 9,817,952
Reportable segment liabilities AREsHaRE (6,562,238) (636,323) (12,615)  (7,211,176)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12 DE|E @)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b)) oHER (&)
2021
—E-—fF
Commodities
Securities  and futures Bullion
broking broking trading
IS
FHEL HERRE E&BRSH
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Revenue from customers: REZEFZHWA:
— Brokerage commission -BERE 580,667 214,816 - 795,483
— Dealing income UL - - 15,177 15,177
— Interest income from margin financing — FE & &5 B A 271,238 - - 271,238
— Interest income from IPO financing ~ — BAAREERE
EL N 201,661 - - 201,661
Reportable segment revenue ARESHHA 1,053,566 214,816 15,177 1,283,559
Interest income from cash clients ReRPHEKMA 38,561 = = 38,561
Other interest income i ¥ S A 47,481 7,095 39 54,615
Handling and settlement fees FEERLEER 125,010 9 3 125,022
Reportable segment profit (EBIT) % 5 s 5 (EBIT) 964,392 72,338 11,014 1,047,744
Amortisation and depreciation FRERRNE
for the year (17,511) 8) - (17,519)
Finance costs BB AR (243,975) - - (243,975)
Additions to non-current segment assets FRRE 2k RB D HEE
during the year 16,685 - - 16,685
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 14,994,772 922,895 26,329 15,943,996
Reportable segment liabilities HREHPEaE (13,095,598) (557,230) (16,211)  (13,669,039)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(¢) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit, assets and liabilities

12 DERE (&)

© THREDTHBEA-BFN BER
BEZHEK

Revenue PN

Reportable segment revenue CIE == N 1,066,006 1,283,559
Elimination Eagis (542) (1,669)
Unallocated corporate revenue AOBE AR A 2,548 3,305
Consolidated revenue REWA 1,068,012 1,285,201
Profit Y

Reportable segment profit (EBIT) AR & 9 B & A (EBIT) 773,624 1,047,744
Finance costs B 75 B AR (124,512) (239,223)
Unallocated corporate income FoEAFHA 115,812 117,345
Unallocated corporate expenses KA RAFAL (108,710) (108,678)
Consolidated profit before taxation R & B B AT A 656,214 817,188
Assets EE

Reportable segment assets AHkE D BEE 9,817,952 15,943,996
Elimination 35 (223,715) (213,541)
Unallocated corporate assets AOBEAREE 174,277 127,932
Consolidated total assets HeEAEME 9,768,514 15,858,387
Liabilities a8E

Reportable segment liabilities AmEHHBaE (7,211,176)  (13,669,039)
Elimination Fagis 1,151,688 1,735,642
Unallocated corporate liabilities RKOMARARE (1,237,655) (1,794,315)

Consolidated total liabilities

ReEREAE

(7,297,143)

(18,727,712)
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ¥ -BERRHE
Properties Motor
leased for Leasehold  vehicles and Office  Furnitureand ~ Computers
ownuse improvements yacht  equipment fixtures  and software
BREENE HERE REREE KOERE  GARKE  ZEREA
$000 $'000 $1000 $000 $000 $000
T T T I Tr T
Cost: A&
At 1 April 2020 RZE-ZEMA-A 188,985 46,980 32,316 18,843 13,066 35,208 335,398
Additions HE 19,292 15,323 213 469 339 3 36,013
Disposals ih & S (6,430) - (1,006) 2,260) {121) (8,829
Derecognition of right-of-use assets X I E BEAE (25,562) = = = = = (25,562)
Fxchange adjusiments EXH% - 14 - 17 - 28 5
L \REEAEE ) R i g
At 1 April 2021 R-F--EWmA-A 182,715 56,881 32,629 18,323 11,145 35,486 337,079
Additions HE 27 1,448 3,507 356 178 2411 7,993
Disposals e - (6,084) - (224) (310) (219) (7,736)
Lease modification REBH 99,266 - - - - - 99,266
Fxchange adjustments ExgE - 7 - 9 - 15 3
At 31 March 2022 RZE-ZE=f=1-H 262,008 51,352 36,036 18,464 11,013 31,760 436,633

Accumulated depreciation: BRI E:

At 1 April 2020 NZE2-EEMA-A 66,693 44,645 8,507 16,371 11,800 27,556 175,572

Charge for the year ERRES 63,906 4982 6,490 982 631 2,528 79,519

Written back on disposals MEERER - (5,160) = 914 (2,125) (127) 8,326)

Derecognition of right-of-use assets & I-EZ2(F BEEE (16,261) = = = = = (16.261)

Exchange adjustments EZRZ - 14 = 17 = 28 59

ASI March 2021 P ety L O 1438 M8 Mo J646 1036 2% 230563 _
At 1 April 2021 R-B_-EmA-A 114,338 44,481 14,997 16,456 10,306 29,985 230,563

Charge for the year ERER 62,006 5,945 5,508 900 537 2,645 11,541

Written back on disposals NEEREE - (6,984) - (188) (310) (219) (7,700)

Exchange adjustments EZRZ - 7 - 9 - 15 3

AtdtMarch2022 i et SO 634 WM ANS i 1058 % 300435 _
Net ook value: RERE:

At 31 March 2022 RZE-ZEZR=1-H 105,664 7,908 15,531 1,287 480 5,333 136,198

At 31 March 2021 R-E--F=f=1-H 68,377 12,400 17,532 1,867 839 5,501 106,516
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

Properties leased for own use, carried at

depreciated cost I BR

EREEYE -

13 M¥ BEERRXRE®

ERERE

REEEERRE S ZERELEERAF
EBEotfamT:

31 March
2021

B —F
=HA=+—H
$°000

T+t

31 March
2022

—EFE=-=

=A=t—8
$’000
T

BT EK A

105,664 68,377

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

HERNERERCEEAR ZHAXEBE DN

Depreciation charge on properties leased BRHAEWETER S

for own use 62,006 63,906
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7(a)) HEBEF B (WFE7E) 1,122 2,491
Expense relating to short-term leases and B2 52 HAFA & & Hi 1218 A

other leases with lease terms end within &R EMTEE BB 2 H X

12 months 278 146

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
$27,000 (2021: $19,292,000), which primarily related to the
capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy
agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities as of 31 March 2022 are set out

in notes 18(d) and 23, respectively.

As of 31 March 2022, there are no leases subject to
variable lease payment arrangement.
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost:

At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021,
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

14 BREEE

BRA

R-E-_ZFWMA—AH -
—E-_—f=HA=+-—-8 "
—E--FfMA-HERK

Debentures

&%

$°000
Fr

—E-=—f=HA=+—8 6,600
Accumulated amortisation: 2REE
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, R-E-_ZTHFWXA—A -

1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 —g2-—-%=H=+-—-H8"

—E_-FfWA-HR

—E--F=HA=1+—8H 817
Net book value: RHEEE:
At 31 March 2022 R-ZE-_-F#=H=+—H 5,783
At 31 March 2021 R-ZE-_—F=H=+—H 5,783

15 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

15 HiERBEE

Statutory deposits with exchanges and
clearing houses

REREEMZIEERE

79,978

78,429

188
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16 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 16 FEUYEBRFX

Accounts receivable from: FEUWER SRR -
— Clearing houses — BEAT 1,043,642 873,022
— Brokers and dealers — RBREERZE 402,179 461,807
Less: Loss allowance (note 28(a)) B BB (K i 28(a) (2,539) (1,248)
Financial assets measured at amortised  H# K AT EZ 2 MEE
cost 1,443,282 1,333,581
Accounts receivable from: FEURBR PR A -
— Cash clients —BeEP 410,185 634,721
— Margin clients —FREP 7,062,400 10,804,648
— Subscription of new shares in IPO — REEALAAZETR - 2,366,718
Financial assets measured at FVPL WEAFEFABRZ
FRFIAECEHEE 7,472,585 13,806,087
8,915,867 15,139,668
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRI DM
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable from cash REBERRZEWR TP RNIE
clients based on the settlement date as of the end of HEEBZHRRSTOT

the reporting period is as follows:

Current A T3861 109,573
Less than 1 month L1{E B 166,477 361,767
1 to 3 months 12318 A 79,541 137,648
More than 3 months % K31 A 90,306 25,727
336,324 525,142
410,185 634,721

BABLZEREBERAR | —FT——/ ——FFR

189



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS SRR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(Br = BHEHA - AETIIR)

16 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(a) Ageing analysis (Continued)

Accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default. These receivables are secured by
their portfolios of securities. Cash clients are required
to place deposits as prescribed in the Group’s credit
policy before execution of any purchase transactions.
At 31 March 2022, the total market value of their
portfolios of securities was $2,430,129,000 (2021:

$2,864,960,000).

Margin clients are required to pledge securities
as collateral to the Group in order to obtain
margin loans. When determining the fair value
of the accounts receivable at the reporting date,
management evaluate the margin loan portfolios
on a fair value basis by primarily considering the
value of collateral, which principally comprised listed
securities, with reference to the quoted prices, to
the extent of the outstanding loan amounts. At 31
March 2022, margin loans due from margin clients
were current and repayable on demand except
for $146,000 (2021: $195,000) where the margin
loans were past due. $14,000 (2021: $122,000)
were past due for less than 1 month. $3,000 (2021:
$1,000) were past due for 1 to 3 months. $11,000
(2021: $1,000) were past due for 3 months to 1
year. $118,000 (2021: $71,000) were past due for
over 1 year following the trading suspension of the
pledged securities. At 31 March 2022, the total
market value of securities pledged as collateral in
respect of the loans to borrowing margin clients
and all margin clients were $16,880,241,000 and
$25,630,574,000 respectively (2021: $24,420,252,000
and $32,897,670,000 respectively). Margin loans
that were past due were considered immaterial by

management.

For accounts receivable relating to subscriptions
of new shares in IPO, no ageing analysis of
subscriptions of new shares in IPO is disclosed as the
ageing analysis does not give additional value in view

of the nature of this business.

16

FE W BR FR ()
(a) B®IW(E)

JEWBRSREFERSIRZHAHT
BRRLB2EP - 2S5 EWHRE
MEBHFEAAERT - RHTH
MEBERZH  BeFFAERASE
B2EEBRRGER RZE=-_=
A=+ B HEBHMAEAZHEM
B %&2,430,129,0007C (= & — — 4 :
2,864,960,0007T) °

FREFARANSEIKITESHKIHE
mUABRSFRER - BEKRiksH
HEWEREZRNATER  TEENR
FTEAERFHTREREEST =
EMNTZER=ZEERREFERRFE L
MEFNEE AELXERE - B
RN KEENERSB RZT—
F=ZA=+—H " KB146,0007T (=
T — 4 :1950007T) 2 FE E &
BmHEN BRABREFPZHFRE
AN RBRZEREE ° 14000
7T (ZZ =~ —4 : 122,0007T) B H
R—{@A 3000 (ZFE=—F:
1,0007T) @ E —Z= =@ A -+ 11,000
T (ZZF = — 4 :1,00000) @ H =
@A Z—%  118000T (Z & = —
F:71,00000) REEBEFLFL =
BEE®RBEBR—F RZT==
F-A=+—H  RBEBEIRFE
EFRZHHAREFERERD K
BIEARBER 2 EBHFETED A
16,880,241,0007T % 25,630,574,0007C
ZTZ—%F : 5 51/A24,420,252,000
7t }.32,897,670,0007T) ° # H &
EXEERERABTEKN -

RBERARE SN 2 EKE
RME - ERLEREEE - R
DA EHRBEINEE WERE
EARBERAMEBEEHRZREK
DT
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16 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)
(a) Ageing analysis (Continued)

Accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers
and dealers are current. These represent (1) pending
trades arising from the business of dealing in
securities, which are normally due within a few days
after the trade date and (2) margin deposits arising
from the business of dealing in futures and options
contracts.

(b) Loss allowance of accounts receivable

Loss allowance in respect of accounts receivable
measured at amortised cost are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
loss is written off against the accounts receivable
directly.

17 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

16

17

FE W BR X (&)
(a KREDWT(E)

(b)

H fth f& W R E -

RUEER BERRSE RN
REH - ARABRFRENEEESF
BrHaEEERS  —RRRXHH
BREERIHPEQESTHE R HE
BHEBZARRESR -

WA ERERE

NEHR AT EZRRERZER
BBABERLE  EAKEEAK
B 5K IB 2 AT RE MR SEH RSN - IR
T B R R R o

BERAENRE

Rental and utility deposits MERKEEZS 18,851 19,421
Prepayments AN 5,010 2,434
Other receivables E b fE W 5k I8 7,595 8,061
31,456 29,916
Less: Loss allowance (note 28(a)) W BT IE B (B i 28(a) (29) (31)
31,427 29,885

Included in the above balances are amounts of $1,981,000
as at 31 March 2022 (2021: $3,822,000) which are
expected to be recovered in more than one year.
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RZE-—F=A=+—8 5 A Ltit
48 7 ITE A1,981,000c(ZE Z— -

3,822,0007T) * MHAM K —F & Uk E -
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18 WERBEEEY

192

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a RERFASEEYWERE:

Deposits with banks RITEX 37,566 53,811
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 487,185 365,109
524,751 418,920
Less: Loss allowance (note 28(a)) B BE B E (K E28@) (35) (437)
524,716 418,483
The Group maintains segregated accounts with AEERRUKEREBLES  REE
authorised institutions to hold client money in the XBREBEFRFEEFES -

normal course of business.

At 31 March 2022, client money maintained in RZE_—_F=A=+—HB TFEREL
segregated accounts not otherwise dealt with in the EPEVTENMBEREREMTIRE LR
financial statements amounted to $10,374,018,000 F &% A10,374,018,000 L (ZE - —4F ¢
(2021: $12,315,788,000). 12,315,788,0007T) °
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continuea) 18 BHERBEEEBYW (&)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBIADEFERLEEKRSE (Fr
generated from/(used in) operating activities: AR 2YHER:

Profit before taxation b B A A 656,214 817,188
Adjustments for: FUAT S EELFAE:
Amortisation and depreciation BERTE 77,541 79,519
Finance costs B 75 B AR 124,512 239,223
Dividend income % B A (1,607) 21)
Interest income FERATBEFR R
(excluding interest income from ERNANGE: &5
margin and IPO financings) BE 2 F BB A) (78,722) (93,177)
Net foreign exchange gain SME W & F R (19,600) (24,666)
Loss on disposals of property, LEME BMEK
plant and equipment HEZEE 36 503
Net loss/(gain) arising from disposal of HERAFEFABRZZ
financial assets at fair value TREEMEELZ
through profit or loss FEE () 3,373 (14,714)
Net unrealised loss on financial assets at EAFEFAEZH 2
fair value through profit or loss TRMEEZARER
FE R 23,386 4,611
Others H At 7,832 (204)
Changes in working capital: EEESEE:
Increase in other non-current assets HMFERDEE
Bl (1,549) (714)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts JE U AR KO A (38 hn)
receivable 6,230,913 (9,472,735)
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables, H B HIE - £ S K&
deposits and prepayments TE A R IE (5 ) R (1,519) 18,505
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from a [ U — 5 B8 Bt 2 &)
related company FIER D (35 0) 3 (©)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable  J& B 3k Gl 4*) /3L N (127,493) 738,377
(Decrease)/increase in accrued expenses & &5 s & E 4th f&
and other payables RIECR ),/ # 0 (18,431) 32,697
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &% ¥ 15,
(FFA)#A = 6,874,889 (7,680,611)
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LA TTIR )

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

194

(¢)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities:

18

(©

ReRkBAEEEBY®

RETHELENEBEIHEK:

Amount due
Lease to arelated Accounts
Bank loans liabilities company [EVELI
Ef—E
) NG|
BRITER HESE NE EfRR
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T T T T
At 1 April 2020 R-Z-TF
MA—H 2,858,789 118,949 200,136 1,301,268 4,479,142
Changes from financing cash RERS T EE:
flows:
Net proceeds from bank loans  $R{TERFTEIE
HE 8,571,666 - - - 8,571,666
Repayment of amount due to a  JE — 7
related company NAER - - (200,136) - (200,136)
Other borrowing cost paid BEREMEE
BAR (228,992) - (6,029) (1,711) (236,732)
Capital element of lease NGRS E
rentals paid 5 - (60,456) — - (60,456)
Interest element of lease BRNHERESZ
rentals paid Flegds - (2,491) S = (2,491)
Changes from operating cash ~ &&HE&HZ

flows: 2):

Change in accounts payable IR - - - 738,377 738,377
Exchange adjustments ER AR 5,583 = = 21,711 27,294
Increase in lease liabilities from  FET I EM

entering into new leases ENEEEE - 9,213 - - 9,213
Interest expenses FERx 208,992 2,491 6,029 1,711 239,223
At 31 March 2021 R-B=-F

=HA=+-H 11,436,038 67,706 - 2,061,356 13,565,100
At 1 April 2021 RZT——4

MA—H 11,436,038 67,706 - 2,061,356 13,565,100
Changes from financing cash RERS M EE:

flows:

Net repayment of bank loans EERBRTERFE (6,275,874) - - - (6,275,874)

Other borrowing cost paid BEREMEE

BAR (120,075) - - (3,315) (123,390)

Capital element of lease BENHEREE

rentals paid 5 - (61,258) - - (61,258)
Interest element of lease BRHERESZ
rentals paid FEEH - (1,122) - - (1,122)
Changes from operating cash ~ &&HE&HZ

flows: 28):

Change in accounts payable e R - - - (127,493) (127,493)

Changes in accounted JEEtR X R H A

expenses and other payable B ZEEE - (251) - - (251)
Exchange adjustments ERAR 2,001 - - 5,488 7,489
Increase in lease liabilities from  EFI M HHAEM

entering into new leases EMEEERE - 27 - - 27
Increase in lease liabilities from & 1& 2k 1 & 18 A1

lease modification HEGE - 99,266 - - 99,266
Interest expenses FERZ 120,075 1,122 - 3,315 124,512
At 31 March 2022 R-ZB-Zf

=ZR=+-H 5,162,165 105,490 - 1,939,351 7,207,006
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 18

(d) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for
leases comprise the following:

BERBESEEY &)
d HERSREAEE

RenEXRMIEEFRBHE:

Within operating cash flows RELEHREMEN 278 146
Within financing cash flows REBEFRHEREESREAN 62,380 62,947
62,658 63,093
19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 RMBARIZRE
At 31 March 2022, the Company had direct or indirect RZZBZZF=HA=+—H8 XAFRIA
interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are THEBAREEEEEEER  ZEW

private companies, particulars of which are set out below:

Name of company

NEER

Bright Smart Investment Holdings Limited

BT RERRERLA

Choice Max Limited
MEBR AT

Fine Profit Investments Limited

ARREARAH

Marick Investments Limited

Bright Smart Advertising Company Limited

BABLZEREBERAR | —FT——/ ——FFR

Place and date of
incorporation

Issued and fully
paid-up capital

HME LR AS BETRAZRAE
British Virgin Islands (BVI)/ US$100
22 Qctober 2009 100% 7T
ERRNES/
ZEENFTAZTZH
British Virgin Islands (BVI)/ USS$1
2 April 2014 =y
EBRAES/
—E-MEMAZA
British Virgin Islands (BVI)/ US$1
21 August 2018 IE
EERTES/
“E-A\§\A=t-H
British Virgin Islands (BVI)/ US$1
15 April 2014 E3
ERRRES/
“E-EEMA+EA
Hong Kong/ HK$1
2 March 2020 B
& f%/
—T_TE-AZH

Attributable
equity interest

EiERFER

Direct

=43
100%

100%

100%

100%

Indirect

3

100%

BARMAAAT  HERFIDT:

Principal activities

ITERE

Investment holding

REERK

[nactive

gEEx

Inactive
ﬁﬂ)&%

Investment holding

REERK

Inactive

grex

195



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B BB - ABTIIR)

19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continuedy 19 RHBATZRE (&)

Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company incorporation paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities

INGIES SMAIBER ALY ERARBRERE EERARER FTEER
Direct Indirect
E# G

Bright Smart Asset Management Limited Hong Kong/ HK$5,000,000 S 100%  Asset management
BTEEERERAT 18 August 2011 5,000,000% 7. services
B/ BEERRY
“E-—%\AT+/R
Bright Smart Leasing Management Limited ~ Hong Kong/ HK$10 = 100%  Inactive
(formerly known as Bright Smart 21 September 2020 10871 Tmex
Communication Limited) BE/
BIHEERERAA ZEZEFNAZT-H
(MRS ARERAT)
Bright Smart Facilities Management Limited ~ Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
BIREERERAT 6 March 2014 BT THR%
EE/
—Z-mE=AKA
Bright Smart Facilities Service Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
BT RERBBEERLA 7 September 2018 % TR R
Ek/
“E-A\EAAtH
Bright Smart Finance Channel Management ~ Hong Kong/ HK$1 S 100%  Administrative services
Limited 22 May 2014 1T B R
BTHERERERAR &/
ZZ-MERAZTZA
Bright Smart Finance Online Channel Limited  Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Production and broadcast
BIMEREEERBRAA 22 May 2014 BT finance programs
B/ RIEREHMEHE
“E-MERAZTZA
Bright Smart Forex Limited Hong Kong/ HK$30,000,000 - 100%  Forex trading service
BTRIFNEERAF 23 April 2012 30,000,0007% 7 MNER 5 R
58/
—Z--EMA=-t+=A
Bright Smart Futures & Commodities Company Hong Kong/ HK$214,000,000 S 100%  Futures and commodities
Limited 14 November 1995 214,000,000/ T broking
BTHRERBRARAA &/ HEREmELR
—hWNAEET-ATER
Bright Smart Global Bullion Limited Hong Kong/ HK$10,000 = 100%  Bullion dealing and
BIRREZERAA 10 October 2012 10,000 1T provision of bullion
2%/ trading service to
ZE-Z4£1ATH customer
BELSBEERMEFPRH
EERRSRH
Bright Smart Investment Consultancy (China) ~ Hong Kong/ HK$1 S 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited 9 November 2010 BT RERR
BT REAABR(PE)BERAF &R

/
“2-35t-ANE
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19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continuedy 19 RMBATZRE (&)

Name of company

NEER

Place and date of
incorporation

o AR 3 40 B % 5

Issued and fully
paid-up capital
BRARBRERE

Attributable
equity interest
JE A5 R A 4 &
Direct Indirect
HE B#

Principal activities

ITERE

Bright Smart Promotion Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
BTHEARAH 25 August 2015 BT 118 AR %
8/
“E-nENAZTHA
Bright Smart Property & Facility Management  Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
Limited 3 June 2020 BT THR%
BINERRBERBERRA B/
—T-ZERAZH
Bright Smart Property Management Limited ~ Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
BITOXERARDH 31 March 2014 BT TR
g8/
“E-mE=A=1-H
Bright Smart Property Management Service  Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
Limited 22 August 2017 17T TBR%
RINFERRBARAR Ek/
ZE-+EN\AZtCH
Bright Smart Securities International (H.K) Hong Kong/ HK$1,141,000,000 = 100%  Securities broking and
Limited 10 August 1998 1,141,000,0007% 7T margin financing
BT E5ER(EE)ERLA G5/ BFRERARRE
—“AMANENATH
Bright Smart Select Fund OFC Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Inactive
BARERRNAES AR 3 December 2021 1B Tmex
i
“E-%+-A=H
Charm Capital Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 S 100%  Administrative services
BEBBLT 18 February 2016 1T TH RS
i/
—Z-R"EZATNA
Everlasting Source Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
BYERAR 8 December 2010 BT THR%
&b
ZE-ZETZANA
Glow Dragon Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
BEERAA 21 January 2010 1T THR%
B/
“E-Z5-A-t+-H
Huge Dynasty Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
EEERAF 13 January 2010 B TH RS
i/
“E-%45-A+=A
Ideal Magic Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
HwEFBE AT 13 January 2010 BT THRS
Ek/
“E-Z4-A+=H
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19

20

198

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

19 RMBRARZRE#)

Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company incorporation paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
kL S AR L % R B BRTRBRERE EERARER TEXEK
Direct Indirect
HE B#
Merit Act Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 S 100%  Administrative services
ERBRAT 3 November 2009 BT THR%
Ek/
—EENET-A=H
Rainbow Town Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
T BRAH 8 Qctober 2015 B TH RS
Ek/
“Z-RETANA
Victor Tone Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
ERBBAHE 21 January 2010 18T THR%
Ek/
—2-24-A-t+-H
BAIREFACRINERAR People’s Republic of China/ HK$1,600,000 = 100%  Inactive
(Note) (Ff i) 10 January 2011 1,600,000 7T Emex
mEARLNE/
—2——%-f+H

Note: It is registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under
the laws of the People’s Republic of China.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Bret: WRRTDREBEREARKMBE RN
RENEBELE -

20 BEERR

Accounts payable FETBR X

— Cash clients —BeRP 450,682 471,844

— Margin clients — FREP 1,017,756 891,915

— Clearing houses — BEEA 143,022 210,178

— Brokers — &4 327,891 487,419
1,939,351 2,061,356

All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.

No ageing analysis in respect of accounts payable is
disclosed as the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the business nature.

IERNERAEPRR -—FREERARE

ENENBRINEFLEE - R OTLE
BYHEINEE WAARARETERED
1 e
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21 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER 21
PAYABLES

Bt X R BN KA

Commission rebate payable FER & B B 35,377 56,311
Accrued bonuses FEETTEAT 14,643 9,214
Stamp duty, trading levy and trading fee ~ BEfRTENTER « X5 HE &
payables R5E 12,111 13,711
Receipt in advance T8 W FRIE 2,840 2,905
Other payables E b JE S 3R 21,704 22,707
86,675 104,848
Included in the above balances are amounts of $794,000 R-ZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H st A L
as at 31 March 2022 (2021: $1,431,000) which are & 2 RIE AT794,000(ZE = — F -

expected to be settled in more than one year.

22 BANK LOANS

1,431,0007T) * J5 78 ﬁﬁﬁéfﬁ?ﬁaﬁ

RITER

Secured loans HEBER

— Bank loans — RITER 4,042,165 7,357,038

— Bank loans for IPO — BRAABERITER - 2,365,000

Unsecured loans EIRBE R

— Bank loans — RITEX 1,120,000 1,714,000

5,162,165 11,436,038

All the bank loans are repayable within one year and FIERITERAR—FRNEERDEAR

classified as current liabilities. The carrying amounts of the PBaE - HRTEECEMEREEATER

bank borrowings approximate their fair value. Ao

The bank loans as at 31 March 2022 are interest-bearing. RZBEZZF=ZA=+—HZRTEXRH
BB AEBHFREFTFEZESFK

Securities collateral deposited by the Group’s margin
clients was re-pledged to banks to secure loan facilities.
Such banking facilities were utilised to the extent of
$4,042,165,000 (2021: $9,722,038,000). The fair value of
the collateral re-pledged to banks as at 31 March 2022

amounted to $9,093,292,000 (2021: $14,240,019,000).
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\
onk

MR BEBFET UEBE

,\B'Aﬁ‘-ﬂé

BRARITRELE 2 8 F4,042,165,0007T (=

T ——4:9,722,038,0007T) °

A=

FZAZ+—H BEBFERITZERSR
N 1B £9,093,292,000T (= F = — 4 :

14,240,019,0007T) °
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23

24

200

LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group had obligations under contractual maturities of
the lease liabilities as follows:

As at 31 March 2022
R-E--%#=H=t-H

Present value
of the minimum

lease payments
BERERERE
$'000

i

23

Total minimum
lease payment

REAEFEAR

HERE

AEEEEEHEABEZANIHANT

As at 31 March 2021
RZZ--4=A=1-H
Present value
of the minimum
lease payments
REMRESNERE
$'000
Tr

Total minimum
lease payment
RERERELR
$'000

Tr

$000
r

Within one year -ER 54,186 55,629 61,141 61,864
After one year but within  —F&EBRLER

five years 51,304 51,793 6,565 6,667

105,490 107,422 67,706 68,531

Less: total future lease - A RAERLAE

expense (1,932) (825)
Present value of lease @~ HEEELRE

liabilities 105,490 67,706

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
— DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance and not previously covered by
the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$30,000 (2021: $30,000). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

24

BERAKEFN — ERAKENK
=t &

REERBEEBSRFMERTE ST EIEH B
RIEEBSEBEONRAAERIERRAE
TR EBEBAERTEREZEEL MR
flENEetE((REestE]) - 8HES
STEATEREIRIKTE  ABMIETA
B RERESHE BEXRHEEER
BBEREEMBEUWA Z5%M 8 1E H #
P MWELLE AW ASZ0,000T (ZE=—
F :30,0007T) & LR o sHEERENRERB
NIES -

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2021/22



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 755 R AR B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5= BEHEBI - KRB TINIR)

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 HMEMBRRARZFAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) (Tax recoverable)/current taxation in the (a) ZAEPBRRARZ(TEREHE)

consolidated statement of financial position

represents:

/ENERBL RIS

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
expense for the year

FREEFNBRAX
B 96,153 114,157

Provisional Profits Tax paid BT E RIS (114,398) (57,365)
(18,245) 56,792
Represented by: DT3P EEERT:
Current taxation B AR %5 18 3,462 57,764
Tax recoverable Al 3R [B1 7 18 (21,707) 972)
201
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25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 MEMBURRRZFAEBEH &)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b)(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities represents: i) EEHEEEREEE:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities REEHBRARER ZELERE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial (é?)/ﬁfﬁiﬁlﬂz*ﬁ &iﬁq A0
position and the movements during the year are as ™
follows:

Differences

between

depreciation

allowance and

Credit loss Accrued the related

allowance bonuses  depreciation
EEER RERER
B Bt HEREZZR
$°000 $°000 $°000

Tr T Tr

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities AT REMELZERERE
arising from: (BE)/8f&:

At 1 April 2020 W-2-2FMA-A (143 (1029) 1,050 (122)
(Credited)/charged to consolidated REAZERERGIA)/
statement of comprehensive income M (41 i282)

(note 83) (137) (480) 471 (146)
At 31 March 2021 R-B--£Z5=+-H (280) (1,509) 1,521 (268)
At 1 April 2021 K-B-—EMmA-A (280) (1,509) 1,521 (268)

(Credited)/charged to consolidated REAZERERGIA)/
statement of comprehensive income 1% (#/:28/3))

(hote 8(a)) (146) (861) (545) (1,552)
At 31 March 2022 RZZ-ZE=A=+-H (426) (2,370) 976 (1,820)
(b)(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of b)) EREGRE M BEARR K ZHER

financial position

Net deferred tax asset recognised in the TR 4R A BFFE Ak L & &
consolidated statement of financial MRZBEERIEEE
position FE 1,820 268
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 EX - BERRKEA

(a) Movement in components of equity (a) ERARIDZ2EE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AEBEHZEERSHEKE D F1) 6
balances of each component of the Group’s FREBCHBEHNGEEERED
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated x o AARE R AR D RFH)
statement of changes in equity. Details of the RFEREBzEBFBEHIOT:

changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the year
are set out below:

The Company RAE
Share Retained
capital Share premium profits Total equity
K& MR 43 8 REET ERlE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
T i T i
At 1 April 2020 R-E-Z£MA-A 509,189 738,020 2,549 1,249,758
Profit and total comprehensive FREFREANGESE
income for the year - - 481,081 481,081
Dividend paid during the year FRRAZRE - - (475,243) (475,243)
At 31 March 2021 RZB=-§
=ZA=+-H 509,189 738,020 8,387 1,255,596
At 1 April 2021 R-E--%¥MA-H 509,189 738,020 8,387 1,255,596
Profit and total comprehensive FEREFREZAKELE
income for the year - - 228,011 228,011
Dividend paid during the year ERRIZRE - - (220,649) (220,649)
At 31 March 2022 R=BzzZ%
ZA=1-H 509,189 738,020 15,749 1,262,958
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

204

26 EX - REERE &)

(Continued)
(b) Dividends by BE
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of (i) AEEEZRRELEAFEE
the Group attributable to the year EARE
Dividends declared in respect of the current RAFELER2BREMAT

(i)

year are as follows:

Final dividend proposed after the end RIS REBEZ

of the reporting period of 10.00 cents

a total of 1,697,296,308 issued shares

3

F 4 #£1,697,296,308 %
(2021: 13.0 cents) per ordinary share for ~ (ZZ=—
1,697,296,308% ) B # 17 %

in 2022 (2021: 1,697,296,308 issued MRERBRESFRE AR
shares) 10.00fl(ZZE=—%:13.0
) 169,730 220,649

The final dividend proposed after the end of WMEBREEBRBARB AR
the reporting period is subject to approval of BRENRAQBERERREEFK
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual Er#tERAFAEE BXE
general meeting of the Company and has not RmEHRBERLEE -
been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.
Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) AEEEZREEMLL—BK

of the Group attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the
year:

FEZRNRE (FREHER
AT -

Final dividend in respect of previous
financial year, approved and paid during
the year, of 13.0 cents (2021: 28.0
cents) per ordinary share for a total of
1,697,296,308 issued shares in 2022
(2021: 1,697,296,308 issued shares)

FHMRFEER T —F
£ #1,697,296,308f% (= &
~—%F:1,697,296,308%)
BRITRHDEERBBRET
B & 3@ A 13.0M (— T ——
4 1 28.01ll)
(FREHEE RIE )

220,649 475,243
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 EX - BERKRE(#)

(Continued)
(¢) Share capital () B=K
2022 2021
—E-C —Z-—%
No. of shares  Nominal value No. of shares  Nominal value
RO #E AfE Kirg 8 HfE
$000 $:000
Tr T
Authorised ordinary shares of SRAEE0TH
$0.30 each: EEERR:
At 1 April/31 March REA—R/
ZA=t-H 10,000,000,000 3,000,000 10,000,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERARAR:
At 1 Apri/31 March REA-R/
ZR=t-H 1,697,296,308 509,189  1,697,296,308 509,189
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive ETERFTEAERBDMTREIR 2
dividends as declared from time to time and are EREERARB ARG LRSI
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the MIR—F - RARFFBREEMS -
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with FrELBREEERZUA -

regard to the Company’s residual assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March REBEEZZE-_—F=-A=+—HBKZ

2022, no share options were exercised to subscribe T FZA=+—HItFE &

for any ordinary shares. TEBRERBEMTER -

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve d FEMEREN

(i) Share premium iy RBRHEE
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman BREREBESERRE  AAF
Islands, the share premium account of the ZEMNEERTARARKRRES
Company may be applied for payment of ORI E - RIS ERE#H
distributions or dividends to shareholders TSRS EBE%R - ARA]
provided that immediately following the date on B NERABEBBREFREN
which the distribution or dividend is proposed to HEHER o

be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

206

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations as well as the effective portion
of any foreign exchange differences arising
from hedges of the net investment in these
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out
in note 2(q).

Merger reserve

On 29 June 2010, the Company acquired
the entire issued share capital of Bright
Smart Futures & Commodities Co., Ltd,
Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.)
Limited and Merit Act Limited through Bright
Smart Investment Holdings Limited from
their respective shareholders. The difference
between the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired as a result of the
restructuring exercise and the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof is treated as an equity
movement and recorded in “Merger reserve”.

Distributability of reserve

The reserves of the Company are distributable
to the equity shareholders subject to the
provisions of the Company’s Memorandum
and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 March 2022, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to
equity shareholders of the Company was
$7583,769,000 (2021: $746,407,000).

260 BEX - RERKRE#®)

d) REEERENE)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

B 5
EXRREEEMAELERE
BINRBMBHRERZINEEZRE
K EE I FE BRI FRE
mE L 2 E A BINEZREED
2 o BRERERIRI E2(0)FTE
ZEETBREIE -

RG]
R-FB—FFRAZtTHhEB &
REEBRAREEZBRBERA
AlREARERARARIF
BT EZBERGEE)BRAA
FMORBABRRR A BR R
BAERRZE2MERHITRA -
REMAETSMRREZHB R
BAZBAEEEARBEITIE
SREZBEAEEMEZEZR
BIFaZ2HERIE WK AlR
HrEmIA -

72 K {8
REARBZABERNHAR
AR W RBEFH 2K
BRAQRRAEENAERSEB
RHIBMERFAET » ARF
] ) a5 B IR 0 R o A e

RZFZZF=ZA=+t—0 7
HORFARREREREZFH
6 42 £ %8 A753,769,0007T (=
T —— £ :746,407,0007T) °
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CAE TSR

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e

Capital management

The Group’s primary objective when managing capital
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost. In
addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group licensed
by the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”)
are obliged to meet the regulatory liquid capital
requirements under the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR”) at all times.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
For the licensed subsidiaries, the Group ensures each
of them maintains a liquid capital level adequate to
support the level of activities with sufficient buffer to
accommodate for increases in liquidity requirements
arising from potential increases in the level of
business activities. During the financial year, all the
licensed subsidiaries complied with the liquid capital
requirements under the FRR.

27 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2022 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

26 EX - @BEERE &)

(e

EXREH

AEBEEEAZHEERARER
SERELEZEN  UEEBRERE
BT RE®RERBEEEBIARIAE
EEW$HN%F&§ Zﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁx
B33 K2 7 Ho A HE 25 15 B A TS 2R Al 2
pboh - BESFRHAE EHE %%?Ea
((BEgHRUEFRIAEEE TMH
BRARIEREMRIREAEESFKE
B (MHER) A(THHERBRAD
HTIZEERBESRTE -

AEBBEBRLREHBRISLEEER
BB ErRHERSEEKTZER
PR RO FERBREAMATE KL
HREREREZEREFE  1ERE
RERFEZBEHERNGEBIELH
B pgHRHBARIME  AKEE
REMBLARERIFECEERE -
EMiﬁ%Fm%'Mﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ
ﬁtﬁ%ﬁﬁ%l@(ﬂmébééz
ﬁxtﬂ%ﬁbﬁﬁﬁm°\$wﬁ
FE - FIAFENEBRRHEESTI K
BRBUBTZRDESHRE °

27 BREYE

RZE-_—_F=ZA=+—BHEFXR

8175 %

REBBZERNEEWT

Contracted for BAT4 5,378 2,255
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

208

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency
and equity price risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and
the financial risk management policies and practices used
by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
amounts due from clients, brokers and clearing
houses. The management has a credit policy in place
and the exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of amounts due from clients, individual
evaluations are performed on all clients (including
cash and margin clients) based on underlying
collateral. Cash clients are required to place deposits
as prescribed in the Group’s policy before execution
of any purchase transactions. Receivables due from
cash clients are due within the settlement period
commonly adopted in the relevant market practices,
which is usually within a few days from the trade
date. Because accounts receivable from cash clients
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default, there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are considered fully receivable, and the prescribed
deposit requirements and the short settlement period
involved, the credit risk arising from the amounts
due from cash clients is considered low. The Group
normally obtains liquid securities and/or cash
deposits as collateral for providing financing to its
cash and margin clients and has policy to manage
these exposures on a fair value basis. Margin loans
due from margin clients are repayable on demand.
For commodities and futures brokerage, an initial
margin is required prior to opening transaction.
Market conditions and adequacy of securities
collateral and margin deposits of each cash account,
margin account and futures account are monitored
by the management on a daily basis. Margin calls and
forced liquidation are made where necessary.

28

BHERBEERAFE

AEBEZAREKRELREE

RBEE -

FR - INERBERE o TXE G A KE
FrE Yz ZFR R RASEREENRER
BFTRM A RERERRRER -

(a)

FERR

AEEZEERRIEXRBRESR
F Bulk@#EEmMcER  EEE

RIEEERR  IHBEEEEER
/DAD\ o]

N

FRUEFERTE FAEEF (B
RekFREP)HAEREHER
miE R ERIFFG RATEMEE
RHH - REEPARANEEZHE
TR BUCREEPHRIBTINERET
GEHERFAZEEHRNDE - —
BAXHBERBRA - EXEERE
BEFERF IR 2RI PAERFKL

BEBABRIER AR 28D - Mg
EERBRELMSREERE &
BRREEPEREEZEERR
Hil - ARE—REMERAERAIR
EFBMERBESFR,XEEFRE
RARERHBRE CEMD - XA
BERZRAVFEEEZSTAR - BK
FREPZHAREREARERER -
AR RHERLEETME  RHER
FAXNERARZE - EEESSH
ERMAAREREKRF - FREF
EHMERFZEFEFRERRE
ERRH  MEFTE  SEARIER
KRITHR -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a)

BAESETHEERRAF | —F——/

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of amounts receivable from brokers and
clearing houses, credit risks are considered low as
the Group normally enters into transactions with
brokers and clearing houses which are registered
with regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation in
the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk as credits are granted to a large population of
clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9 and measures the

related loss provision by 12-month ECLs or lifetime
ECLs.

FFEH

28

BHEEREERAFE®E

(a)

FERBRE)

HARARE—RED M EEE #EEM
AXERNBERHZELNREENE
TR BB R &EERRRX
ZEERBER -

HRAKERREZEFPREHEE - &
VTEEREFEERR -

AEBYERHEMEMER B
SAKREEmHEERR -
AEECRMBBH B RS ERF

A RREAEREEEEXEH
BHEEERFENEBHERS -

209



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B BB - ABTIIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIEMEERRAFER)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued) @ FERRE)

The movements in the expected credit losses during FANEEBEZEHNT:
the year are as follows:

2022 2021
—B-C B -F
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit- (not credit- (credit-
12-month ECL impaired) impaired)  12-month ECL impaired) impaired)

2HEN 2HEE

128 A FEER FEER
REGEER (REEAE) (CRERE)
$'000 $'000 $'000

T tr n

Accounts receivable ERER

At 1 April REA-H 1,248 - - 505 - -
Recognition of loss allowance % B2 & & 1,201 - - 743 = =
At 31 March R=E=t-H 2,539 - - 1,248 - -
Other receivables, deposits EtERFHE R4 R

and prepayments BfixE
At 1 April REA-H 31 - - 43 - -
Reversal of loss alowance ~ EEIEEEA (2) - = (12) - -
At 31 March R=A=1-H 29 - - 31 - -
Financial assets at BEERATEZ SR

amortised cost EE
At 1 Apri REA-A - - - = = =
Recognition of loss allowance BEREEEfE - - 6,542 = = =
At 31 March R=A=1t-H - - 6,542 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents B4 REEEEN
At 1 April REA-H 437 - - 317 - -
(Reversal)/recognition of loss (B )/ E A E&E

allowance (402) - - 120 - -
At 31 March R=A=t-A 35 - - 437 - -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b)

BAESETHEERRAF | —F——/

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, and to ensure compliance with FRR. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and funding in
the short and longer term. Except accrued expenses
and other payables amounted to $794,000 and lease
liabilities amounted to $51,304,000, all of the Group’s
liabilities are expected to be settled within one year.
The carrying amounts of all financial liabilities equal
the contractual undiscounted cash outflow, except
for bank loans of which the contractual undiscounted
cash outflow as at 31 March 2022 amounted to
$5,162,519,000 (2021: $11,439,016,000) and lease
liabilities as set out in note 283.

FFEH

28

BHEEREERAFE®E

(b)

REBE SRR

AEEAENELERAESACH
TEHE  BERESEREFAEMNERE
EHFE ARRTAVHERBRA
AEBZBRRREREEENRE
HRHESHFE WETHEERR
BREFEHREHEBRERAEAR
MHERBIARFAEMERE - R
NEEPRHESFE -

REBZBK AT HEE &R &85
RBESLTE  BREBEZHRS R
BREEUNENREHEE - brE:T
i 2 I £ ftb & 5 ZUIE794,0000T &
& B 1551,304,00070 5 - ANEE 2 Fr
EEEEHER—FREN- -
BEEEMEMRASRERTLHRIER
ReERHE EPTEERITER
ER-—ZE-_—F=RA=+—HzZPBEH
#IARALIRIR S M H = /5,162,519,000
T (ZZE=—4 :11,439,016,0007T)
MABEEHIAK 23 HEEE -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIEMEERRAFER)

FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk

(i) Interest rate profile

The Group charges interest on its margin clients
and cash clients with outstanding loan amounts M REEER
on the basis of its cost of funding plus a mark-
up. Financial assets (such as margin loans and
deposits with banks) and financial liabilities
(such as bank loans) are primarily at floating
rates. The Group’s income and operating cash

(© FM=mEk

(i) F=E4HAs

L

flows are not subject to significant interest rate Rk o

risk.

The interest rate profile of the Group at the
reporting date is as follows:

MERBE:

AEEREESKASINRE
ZITREFPR
ReEPERBAE - EBEE
(MFREREBTEFOEE
BEBMRITEF) TBRY
BHEFFE - AKEEZHBAR
RERSREALEEHE KT

TRENAKERBERRZ

Assets 5E
Deposits with banks RITTFER 37,566 53,811
Statutory deposits with exchanges XRSRBEHEMZEATE S
and clearing houses 77,628 76,079
Accounts receivable from FEWA T & I18 2 BR 3K
— Margin loans —HFRE® 7,062,400 10,804,648
— Cash clients with outstanding — WAREEERN
loan amounts REEFP 336,324 525,142
— Subscription of new shares in - REFRXAHAEE
IPO ESlE - 2,366,718
Financial assets at amortised BHEEKAFTEZSH
cost B E 1,443 7,787
7,515,361 13,834,185

Liabilities &8&

Secured bank loans BEBIRITER 4,042,165 9,722,038

Unsecured bank loans EIMMIRITER 1,120,000 1,714,000

Lease liabilities HEARE 105,490 67,706
5,267,655 11,508,744
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

BAESETHEERRAF | —F——/

Interest rate profile (Continued)

Except for financial assets at amortised
cost amounted to $1,443,000, all the above
interest-bearing financial assets are receivable
on demand or within one year.

Expect for lease liabilities amounted to
$51,304,000, all the above interest-bearing
financial liabilities are repayable within one year.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 March 2022, if interest rates had been
100 basis points higher with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before
taxation would have increased by approximately
$22,477,000 (2021: $23,227,000).

As at 31 March 2022, if interest rates had been
100 basis point lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before taxation
would have decreased by approximately
$21,620,000 (2021: $22,175,000).

The increased/decreased profit before taxation
results mainly from higher/lower interest income
from deposits with banks, statutory deposits
with exchanges and clearing houses and margin
loans and higher/lower interest expense on bank
loans. Other components of equity would not be
significantly affected by the changes in interest
rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
before taxation that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the
reporting dates and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to interest
rate risk at the reporting dates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2021.

FFEH

28 BIERBEERAFEE)

(¢ FERmEbE)

(i)

(i)

FERAE(E)
BRIZEIER AT EZSMEE
1,448,0007T5) + FTA LG &
S REE E AR ERkIRE sk R
—FRYE -

% & & 1551,304,0007T40 - BT
ELHEsRmABEAR —F
NEE -

BB E DM
RZE-_—_F=A=+—8"
EMBEEMERERFTE IS
ST AT E 100 @A 2
Bl 7S &= [ 2 BR B A & F1 FE 38 A0
4922,477,000 (Z F = — F:
23,227,0007T) °

W-_ZE-_—_F=ZA=+—8"

EMBEEMERERFTE IS
T EFIR T FH100E £ 2
B AN 52 & 2 Bk B A& 7 FE R
#921,620,00070 (=& = — F:
22,175,0007T) °

BB AE A, RS EER
RIBITEFER XBEEERZ
EERERFRERZHBW
AN RBITERF R
BN, RO R
Hi KD T RBNXEH
mMEERTE -

J:LSZ’:‘ZF ST B R R R K
""""" SN BEABRYE . BOfE
RAREFFAEAEEFRBFER
ﬁiﬁ% 5K 4 B & B ) %
ST A - /\$%.Z

%ﬁmmﬂﬁﬁZ%Fm

ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ_g:—imﬂ
Zg/i ﬁ' o
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

214

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
arising from financial instruments that are
denominated in United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”),
Japanese Yen (“JPY”), Australian dollars (“AUD”)
and British pound (“GBP”). As the Hong Kong dollar
(“HKD”) is pegged to the USD, the Group considers
the risk of movements in exchange rates between
the HKD and the USD as insignificant. In respect
of financial instruments denominated in other
currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept at an acceptable level by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances. The management
monitors all the foreign currency positions on a daily
basis.

Exposure to currency risk and sensitivity analysis
The Group’s significant net exposure to RMB, SGD,
JPY, AUD and GBP at the reporting date and the
estimated impact to the Group’s profit/(loss) for
the year had the foreign exchange rates of RMB,
SGD, JPY, AUD and GBP changed at that date are
illustrated below. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between the HKD and the USD
would be materially unaffected by any changes
in movement in value of the USD against other
currencies.

28

BEEREERAFESE)

d SMER

AEEMAZIVERRERIRANM
X ARE IR T - BEDRT
REFFHEZERIRE - ARNET
HETTHE  MASERS  BTH
XL ZEERZEB A BREM - B
HtERAEZERTAMS A%
EEEFENER MRNEEREA
HHEIINEARBREPREERN - #
PARE R B[ % BE M BRI IR X 27K o
EEESREEMANERR -

SN E B AR R BB E DA

e Rz AR  #pgoT - A
B -RTREFEXAMED  AK
ERHREEAMRUARE - FHINKT
HE - RTkEERATE KRR
FE UREHREBFAZEHN,
(BB ZEFEEIRET « slitm
5 ERRBTEITEXRHMBAIE
AETHEMEREBZEMNED
MEBERZE -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIEMEERAFE R
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) @ MERBEE)
2022 2021
“EBCCE —E--F
Appreciation/ Appreciation/
Net asset (depreciation) Effect on Net asset (depreciation) Effect on
in foreign in foreign  profit before in foreign in foreign  profit before
currency currency taxation currency currency taxation
WHEHEZ  NERE/ HRBA ANEREZ  AERE/ BB
BERE (BE) HBHz¥% BEFRE (BE) HAzype
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T n
RMB N 158,397 5 7,920 150,546 4 7,527
6) (7,920) B (7.521)
SGD iy k) 4,671 5 234 4,756 5 238
(5) (234) () (238)
JPY AE 6,932 5 347 6,964 o 348
(5) (347) () (348)
AUD An 6,204 5 310 5,571 5 279
(5) (310) () 279)
GBP 4 2,864 5 143 7 5 36
(5) (143) () (36)
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change BRESMEBRIINESER 2B
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re- ERAREFNGERNWMEBHEBIAR
measure those financial instruments which expose SEARIMNERR SR IE - Z
the Group to foreign currency risk at the reporting HEAMDERAE ST —FHRE
date. The analysis is performed on the same basis for HEHELT o
2021.
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

28

(e) Equity price risk (e)

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from listed equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, which have been
chosen based on their longer term growth potential
and are monitored regularly for performance against
expectations.

The following table shows the approximate change in
the Group’s other components of equity in response
to reasonable change in the value of listed equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:

Change in the relevant equity price risk 18 B % E 2 & 21 89
variaple: e

28
Financial assets at fair value through R FEFAEZEZ

profit or loss: EREE:
Increase £m 10
Decrease e (10)

The Group is also exposed to equity price risk in
relation to collaterals held for cash clients and margin
clients. Detailed analysis of the fair value of collaterals
held is set out in note 16.

216

HERBARR
2
$000
r

BHERBEERAFE®R

I 18 /= B

AEEBAZBERDBER/REAYFE
AABmZEMEEN ETBRAR
BZBREZBRAR -

AEBNMETREDEBT BB IR
£ DRBERBEREDHE -
VTERERRBARFERARESHEN -

TREIESBERE L FEFAR
HLEREENLTRAREEE
HRNAEEHENARERSH
AR E D EER O EE:

Effects
on profit
before tax

Effects

on profit
before tax
HR A

4,958 10
(4,958) (10)

7,059
(7,059)

AEETEHHEERBR TP RIFR
BEFFHANERZORERR - /7
FHEF @A T ESFAD NS RW
7116 o
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(BR=EEBI - LBITIHIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f) Fair values measurement

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

o Level 3 valuation: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a finance team performing
daily valuations for the financial instruments.
The team reports directly to the chief financial
officer.

BARSETHMEEERIA | —T——/ ——FFH
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BERREEERAFEE

®

AREME

(i)

BAFEFENERHEE
RFEER
TREI R BBERRREE
EEFGESDERBTEMB®
SEBFREIAFEFEIMR
REN=ZRRFEFHERED
AEBERMIARFE  RF
EFfFENFRENBINZ2EUT
BEEMERBAEBNATBE
MREZEEE:

.« E—MEE:RERE-
®e ME(DERAER R
B B AEER DB
AERERE G EHA
2

s FE_MMHE ERAF-K
BABECIRENEFE R
MAEEE AEB) BY KR
EREETAERBAE
AENDTE THEE
BAEEEBLIERNSH
Ema AR

« FCREE EREEF
TRERAETROAT
&

AEERE-—XHBEBE RS

BMTASXETHE - ZEK
ERAMGEAEER -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

®

(i)

(ii)

218

Fair values measurement (Continued)

Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

28

Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2022 categorised into

W-&-Z

EZA=+-BH

ATEHELEA

Level 1
£-%
$/000
T

Level 3
E=8
$000
Tz

Level 2
£
$000

Tz

BHERBEERAFE®R

Bt &)
BATEFENEREE(E)
RFEERE)

Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2021 categorised into

Level 2
E28
$000
r

Level 1

Level 8

Recurring fair value measurements S EEATE &
Assets: BE:
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFAER 2

profit or loss SHEAE
— Listed securities - &% 49,354 - - 70,593 = =
— Futures contracts - BEaH 221 - - = = =
— Accounts receivable - BYER - 747,300 1,285 - 13,806,087 -
During the year ended 31 March 2022, there HE-_Z-_—_F#=A=+—HIt

were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, while there were transfers into Level 3 from
Level 2 when significant inputs used in the fair
value measurements which were previously
observable became unobservable. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of fully collateralised accounts
receivables from cash clients, margin clients
and subscription in new shares in IPO is
determined by the fair value of collaterals,
capped by the principal amount and accrued
interest, without discounting.

(i)

FE - FEREF_EBZRAL
BRLEEMEBRE MRFER
FEERAUBRZEZEHA
BESTABRE  AE_E
BEZTE-E AEEZHX
DRBELEEEZREHRER
RFEERRBERBNZEY
B

BE_ELAFESEMAMGE
FERBAE
2HEERARZKEREEP
HFREFRRBERAMAEE
i B RR 2 A FETIR
Efmz A FEEE  LRAXN
TEEEAME TTRR -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f) Fair values measurement (Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March
2022 and 31 March 2021.

(iii)

(g)

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

(i)

Financial assets subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements

28

BHRBEERAFE®R

® 2F
(iii)

(g)
(i)

Bt &)
WHUAFEIRNEREE

rEBEZATE
AEEBRKAIENESBITA
JEEBEERAER-T__F=
A=Z+—-BR-Z-—%=5
=+t BZAFETEEAE
H o

TRMEERERMEE

ZHE BFERIALZHR
BUHBARZEHMEE

As 31 March 2022
R=BZZ§ZB=t-H
Gross
amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial
financial assets
liabilities ~ presented
Gross offset in the inthe  Related amounts not offset
amount of consolidated consolidated in the consolidated statement
recognised  statement  statement of financial position
financial  of financial  of financial  Collateral Financial
Type of financial assets assets position position received instruments  Net amount
R&&
HHERR % R&&
B BEMRNR  OERGREBRRR
ERRcH CRASE 2ilzeR BHEzRBER
SHEERD BEAR  BEAE  EERE EhERR  ERIA
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T Tr T T
Accounts receivable due from BB EF 2 ER
clearing houses 2,616,597  (2,313,026) 303,571 - (143,022) 160,549
Accounts receivable due BUEPZER
from clients 9482975 (2,012,464 7470511  (7,470,325) - 186
12,099,572 (4,325490) 7,774,082  (7,470,325) (143,022) 160,735
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIEMEERRAFER)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g HHETREERERMEEE)
liabilities (Continued)
() Financial assets subject to offsetting, (i) ZEE LFEIIZEED
enforceable master netting arrangements or HOUBBRNARzeMEEE)

similar agreements (Continued)

As 31 March 2021
e S
Gross

amount of  Net amount

recognised  of financial

financial assets

liabilities presented

Gross  offset in the inthe  Related amounts not offset
amount of  consolidated  consolidated in the consolidated statement
recognised statement statement of financial position
financial of financial of financial Collateral Financial
Type of financial assets assets position position received instruments  Net amount

EHAERM KEBE  AREE  REFE  Chifm
§1000 $1000 $1000 $1000
i T T 7

Accounts receivable due from EEER B

clearing houses 3,050,083 (2,766,000) 284,083 - (210,178) 73,905
Accounts receivable due BUEFZER
from clients 13,864,927 (2,425,783 11,439,144 (11,438,895 - 249

16915010 (5,191783)  11,723227  (11,438,8%5) (210,178) 74,154
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements

BHRBEERAFE®R

(p) EHLMEERSMAM)

(i) S RFEIBRER
BOBBEARZSBMEE

As 31 March 2022
R=B--§=B=1-A
Gross
amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial
financial liabilities
assets offset  presented
Gross in the inthe Related amounts not offset in
amount of consolidated consolidated the consolidated statement of
recognised statement of statement of financial position
financial financial financial ~ Collateral Financial
Type of financial liabilities liabilities position position pledged instruments  Net amount
wa&a
e BEMRNER  OERGREBRRER
EREAcH CRIASH E2hlzeR il FA
tHAEER BEAE  EESE  BEFE CEFERR ¢RIE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T
Accounts payable dus to EREERER
clearing houses 2,456,048  (2,313,026) 143,022 (143,022) - -
Accounts payable due ERXPLER
to clients 2585171 (2,012,464) 572,707 - - 572,707
5041219  (4,325,490) 715,729 (143,022) - 572,707
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIEMEERRAFER)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g HHETREERERMEEE)
liabilities (Continued)
(i) Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, (i) ZEHE LFHEIIZEEDH
enforceable master netting arrangements or HOUWBEARzemE8E&E(#E)

similar agreements (Continued)

As 31 March 2021
e S
Gross

amount of  Net amount

recognised  of financial

financial liabilities

assets offset presented
Gross in the inthe  Related amounts not offset in
amountof  consolidated  consolidated  the consolidated statement of

recognised  statement of  statement of financial position
financial financial financial Collateral Financial
Type of financial liabilties liabilities position position pledged  instruments  Net amount

BREAR
$'000
T T T T
Accounts payable dus to EREERER
dlearing houses 2076078 @I 200178 RI079 - -
Accounts payable due EREPZER
to clients 299,278 (2,425,783) 570,4% - - 570,495

5972456 (5,191,783) 780,673 (210,178 S 570,495
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIEMEERAFE R

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (2)

liabilities (Continued)

(iii) The tables below reconcile the “net amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities
presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position”, as set out above, to the
accounts receivable and accounts payable
presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position

EHTREERSBMARHE)

(iii)

TERRMGEEHBRRERES

ZEMEERETREE 2 FHE
(I EXFre) B a M HiRn
REV 2 BWRA R BN IR

Z ¥ iR

Net amount of financial assets after 0 F#l K518 & @l & &=
offsetting as stated above F R 7,774,082 11,723,227
Financial assets not in scope of WIKER REE
offsetting disclosure TEEE 1,144,324 3,417,689
Loss allowance EiE A (2,539) (1,248)
8,915,867 15,139,668
Net amount of financial liabilities mEEEEERmEE
after offsetting as stated above F R 715,729 780,673
Financial liabilities not in scope of I 3FE s FE & E 2
offsetting disclosure EmMEaE 1,223,622 1,280,683
1,939,351 2,061,356
223
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(Br=EEAIN -

29

30

224

LA TTIR )

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, corporate guarantees
provided by the Company in respect of banking facilities
granted by authorised institutions to its subsidiaries
engaging in securities and futures broking amounted to
$15,724,000,000 (2021: $14,917,000,000). As at 31 March
2022, the subsidiaries of the Company have utilised
$4,063,694,000 of these aggregate banking facility (2021:
$7,535,038,000).

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors did
not consider that any claim would be made against the
Group under any of the guarantees. The Group has
not recognised any deferred income in respect of the
guarantees as their fair value cannot be reliably measured
and the transaction price was nil.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group entered

into the following material related party transactions.

(@) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 9 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10, is as
follows:

29

30

ZAREE

RMEBR AR NBEEFRPEL
LEBZHBARBRURBEREZRT
b & 3% H15,724,000,000 T (ZE = —4F -
14,917,000,00070) Z AR ER - RZ &
T TFZA=Z+—H AR ZHEAT
EERAZERITRLE 8% 24,063,694,000
7T (=Z=—%:7,535,038,0007T) °

RBEMK - EFRAREABRYAE
iR AREARETA - MR BRZ
AFEFEARIERIDERT - #A
SELWB LS RREREDETRA -

/I

EXBEALRS

BRUBEEREMEORELHEALER
S REBETBETIERBEALRS °

(@ FTEEBEASHMN

AEETEEBABZETHN(BEW
HORME EMARNRESERWF100T
FPEANETEaFMNEESINZS
)T

Directors’ fees E=-¥ kN 687 656
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & - 2B & E Y& 7 22,052 16,097
Discretionary bonuses BB 4T 19,988 20,330

Contributions to Mandatory o HMEATE S M
Provident Fund 72 72
42,799 37,155

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 7(b)).

B m et ATE T AR K&
7(0)) °
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30

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

directors

Name of borrower

BRABE
Relationship with the Company

BARAZBE

Terms of the loan
BB

— Terms of the loan
- BRERERE

— Facilities granted
-ERZRE
— IPO loan
- BERAREEER
— Margin loan
- FREH

— Interest rate

- 7%
— IPOloan
- BRAFREER
— Margin loan

- FREXR

— Security

- &5

Yip Mow Lum and
his connected
entities

EEMR
HPERR

Director of the Company
and entities connected to
director

ARAAESREES
AREER

Repayable on demand

RERLER

4,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1.40%-1.57%

HIBOR plus 1.5% per annum - HIBOR plus 2% per annum -

Hong Kong

Dollar Prime Rate

plus 5% per annum
FRRTAEHEME%

ENE-BRRERNE

ME%E R X

Marketable securities

BEES

BABLZEREBERAR | —FT——/ ——FFR

30 EXEHEAEIXRFZ )

Loans to directors and entities connected with

Hui Yik Bun and
his connected
entities
FEWER
HRERR

Director of the Company
and entities connected to
director

ARREERAES
BREER

Repayable on demand

AREXEE

100,000,000

10,000,000

1.38%-1.98%

Hong Kong Dollar

Prime Rate plus

5% per annum
BRRTREREM2%

ENE-BrRBENEX

ms% %

Marketable securities

BEES

Chan Wing Shing,

Wilson and his

connected entities

RA#H R

HREER

Director of the Company
and entities connected to
director

FRAESREES
AHEEE

Repayable on demand
BREXEER

20,000,000

10,000,000

1.68%-1.98%

Hong Kong Dollar
Prime Rate plus
5% per annum

ELRERHE

MB%EH &

Marketable securities

BERS

(b)) ESKEEEAEAETRNER

Yu Yun Kong

RAA
Director of the Company

ARAER

Repayable on demand

RERLXER

20,000,000

10,000,000

HIBOR plus 4% per annum

BERITRARRE MA%FH =

Marketable securities

BEES
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30 EXEEALERZ @)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Loans to directors and entities connected with (b EELHEEEFBHEEBENER
directors (Continued) (&
Yip Mow Lum and Hui Yik Bun and Chan Wing Shing,
his connected his connected Wilson and his
Name of borrower entities entities connected entities Yu Yun Kong
EEHR TENR R R
BHRAER HREER HEEER HEEER FER
Balance of the loan
BN

— At 1 April 2020

- RZZ2_Z5WA-A
— |PO loan = = = -
- BRAREEER
— Margin loan 30,036,000 = - -
- FRER

— At 31 March 2021 and
1 April 2021
- R-F=-F%
ZR=+-Bk
“E--ENA-H
— PO loan - - - -
- BROABEER
— Margin loan 382,488,000 1,424,000 - -
- FRER

— At 31 March 2022
-RZE-Z%=A=+-H
— IPO loan - - - -
- BRORBEER
— Margin loan 313,609,000 8,505,000 - 47,000
- FRER

Maximum balance outstanding
ABRRE&ER
— During 2022
g
— IPO loan 2,059,977,000 4,544,000 4,099,000 =
- BRAREEER
— Margin loan 532,883,000 9,169,000 19,000 50,000
- FRER

— During 2021

-RZBZ-F
— IPO loan 2,199,023,000 8,045,000 4,126,000 5,227,000
- BROREEER
— Margin loan 593,019,000 1,363,000 49,000 282,000
- FREH
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30

BAESETHEERRAF | —F——/

F A TTEIR)

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(©)

Balances with related parties

(i)

(if)

(i)

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had accounts
receivable from related parties of $322,161,000
(2021: $383,912,000) and accounts payable
due to related parties of $77,353,000 (2021:
$83,502,000) respectively which was arising
from the Group’s ordinary course of business
in securities broking, margin financing and
commodities and futures broking. Accounts
receivable/payable from/to related parties are
set at the same terms as those normally offered
to third party clients.

As at 31 March 2022, included in the other
receivables, deposits and prepayments were
rental and office management deposits of
$16,570,000 (2021: $13,599,000) which had
been made to related companies owned by Mr.
Yip. These amounts were unsecured, interest-
free and repayable upon expiry of the respective
leases.

As at 31 March 2022, right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities arising from the lease
arrangements with related companies owned
by Mr. Yip were amounted to $93,058,000 and
$92,782,000 (2021: $50,914,000 of right-of-use
assets and $49,949,000 of lease liabilities). For
the year ended 31 March 2022, the depreciation
of the right-of-use assets and the interest
expense of the lease liabilities were amounted
to $50,561,000 and $817,000 respectively (2021:
$50,914,000 and $2,006,000 respectively).

FFEH

30

EXBAEAEIRZ®)

(0 EEEALZHER

(i)

(if)

(ii)

RZE-_—_F=A=+—H "
AEBREWBEALZER
£322,161,000c (=& = —F :
3839120007‘5)&%11‘@%@/\
+ 7 BR # A77,353,0007T (=
— — 4 :83,502,0007T) ’“E\
REAEBASESPRET
ZREHERL  HFEBRENULS
mEEELER - EREE
ALTZERER ENBEALZ
ERHE-—RREERTFE=ZFFF
HIEFKAER -

R-ZEBE-—_F=A=+—H0 &
fthEW R IE « & RTEN KA
F7516,570,0007T (ZE=—%F :
13,599,000 T ) /& 7 M E 5t 4 A
BEEzEB ARSI zZHSR
RRAEEEZRS  HERES
EXFR R B AR ERE
HEmEEEE -

RZEZZF#=ZA=+—H" ' A
MESEMBEEZHEBE AR
MEZHmMEEZFTRBEEE
K & & & 5 5l 593,058,000
E&%?%OMMﬂ_?_*Ei
R A1 A E E50,914,0007TC
& T & & 1549,949,0007T) » &
BT F=ZA=+—HIEHF
- ERAEEETEREERE
FEF X 55 A50,561,0007T &
817,000t (—ZE_—F: D7l A
50,914,0007T %2,006,0007T) °
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(©)

(d)

228

Balances with related parties (Continued)

(iv)

On 9 July 2018, the Company entered into
a loan facility letter with World Mix Limited
(“WML”), a company which is 100% beneficially
owned by Mr. Yip, for the provision of
$1,000,000,000 revolving loan facility from WML
to the Company for the Company’s general
working capital purpose. The loan bore interest
at HIBOR plus 2.75% per annum, is unsecured
and repayable on demand. No interest expense
was incurred during the year (2021: $1,621,000).
As at 31 March 2022, no drawing was made
(2021: $Nil) under the facility.

On 9 July 2018, Bright Smart Securities
International (H.K.) Limited (“BSSI”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a loan facility letter with China
Finance (Worldwide) Limited (“CFW”), a
company which is 100% beneficially owned
by Mr. Yip, for the provision of a revolving loan
facility of $1,000,000,000 by CFW to BSSI for
BSSI's general working capital purposes. The
loan bore interest at HIBOR plus 2.75% per
annum, is unsecured and repayable on demand.
No interest expense was incurred during the
year (2021: $4,408,000). As at 31 March 2022,
no drawing was made (2021: $Nil) under the
facility.

Other transactions with related parties

Brokerage income of $1,287,000 (2021: $1,066,000)
and interest income of $6,620,000 (2021: $9,514,000)
was received from the directors of the Company,
their close family members and related companies
owned by a director of the Company in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business of securities broking,
commodities and futures broking and margin and IPO
financings. Commission rates are set at the same
level as those normally offered to third party clients.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = HIEBIN - LABTIIR)

31 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 31 AEIBEZHMBEMRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZB-__%=RA=+—-H

At 31 March 2022

Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REB AR Z®E 19,887 19,887
Deferred tax assets RIEFIBEE 1 2
Total non-current asset ~ : *nmEERE 0 19888 19,889
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries L NN 2,363,739 2,944,958
Other receivables, deposits and HEMERRIE ZHE2K

prepayments TE T BOIE - 242
Cash and cash equivalents BeReEEY 10,913 9,782
Total currentassets ~~ nBRERAE 000000 2,374,652 2,954,982
Current liabilities REBERE
Other payables H b JE T FRIR 456 481
Amounts due to subsidiaries & < B B8 2 B FRIR 11,000 4,000
Bank loans RITER 1,120,000 1,714,000
Current taxation BN ER #5718 126 794
Total current liabilities RBEEAE 1,131,582 1,719,275
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,243,070 1,235,707
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,262,958 1,255,596
EQUITY &
Share capital % s 26 509,189 509,189
Share premium f% 17 3% & 26 738,020 738,020
Retained profits REE & F 26 15,749 8,387
TOTAL EQUITY ERxEE 1,262,958 1,255,596

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 24 June 2022.

Yip Mow Lum
EEM

BABLZEREBERAR | —FT——/ ——FFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=EEAIN -

32

33

230

LA TTIR )

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors consider the immediate parent and ultimate
holding company of the Company as at 31 March 2022 to
be New Charming Holdings Limited which was incorporated
on 6 July 2009 in the British Virgin Islands under the laws
of the British Virgin Islands and beneficially owned by Mr
Yip Mow Lum. New Charming Holdings Limited does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2022 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the conceptual
framework’

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment:
Proceeds before intended use’

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous contracts — cost of
fulfilling a contract’

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 cycle!

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as

current or non-current?

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of accounting policies?
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BA IS MR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S BHEBH - B TIIR)

33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2022 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting
estimates?

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets
and liabilities arising from a single transaction?

U Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

e Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Five-year Financial Summary

AFYBRRE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-ALEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Results —E-C - Z%-% “E-nFE  ZE)N\E
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Tz TET FHET FET TET

Revenue WA 1,068,012 1,285,201 864,017 830,305 944,440
Profit before taxation bR Bt A& A 656,117 817,188 528,911 499,185 600,592
Income tax & (94,712) (113,289) (57,933) (58,257) (84,499)
Profit for the year EREH 561,405 703,905 470,978 440,928 516,099
Other comprehensive income Et2EKE (157) (293) 233 250 2,241
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZE K& 2% 561,248 703,612 471,211 441,178 518,340

As at 31 March
R=A=1+-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Assets and Liabilities —E-C “2--F —T-TF —E-JF Z—T-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THL THT T&T TEL

Current assets MHEE 9,541,311 15,663,569 6,198,745 7725443 12,425 457
Non-current assets ERBEE 227,203 194,818 260,390 125,898 213,647
Total assets BERE 9,768,514 15,858,387 6,459,135 7,851,341 12,639,104
Current liabilities nEYEE 7,245,045 13,719,716 4,490,487 4,928,034 10,002,103
Non-current liabilities Eneas 52,098 7,996 66,342 17 39
Total liabilities BEAE 7,297,143 13,727,712 4,556,829 4,928,051 10,002,142
Net assets BEEHE 2,471,371 2,130,675 1,902,306 2,923,290 2,636,962
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